
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

MARCH 4, 2013 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted By 

The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov




 

 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, 
communications and recommendations that accompany your 
agenda.  Also included are suggested or requested resolutions 
and/or ordinances for your consideration and possible adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been 
prepared by department directors and staff members.  I am 
indebted to them for their efforts to provide insight and professional 
advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as 
your deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 

GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 

Provide effective and efficient local government 

 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 

Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 

Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

March 4, 2013 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Pastor John Frankenstein from Zion Christian Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Troy Youth Assistance Presentation (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, Community 
Affairs Director) 1 

C-2 Troy Historic Village – A City of Troy – Troy Historical Society Partnership 
(Presented by:  Loraine Campbell, Museum Director) 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 



F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 1 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous 
Zoning Ordinance Revisions 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments - None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Historic District Commission 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Zoning Board of Appeals 4 

I-3 Closed Session 6 

I-4 DTE Energy Solar Currents Proposal (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic 
Development Specialist) 7 

I-5 2013 Tri-Party Program – Concrete Slab Replacements on County Roads 
(Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City Engineer) 7 

I-6 Approval of Second Amendment to MDOT Capital Contract for Troy Multi-Modal 
Transit Facility, MDOT Contract No. 2011-0231/A2 (Introduced by:  Steve 
Vandette, City Engineer) 8 

I-7 Approval of Second Amendment to Architectural/Engineering Services Contract 
for Design of the Safety Crash Wall at the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
(Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City Engineer) 8 

I-8 Approval of Contract Amendment No. 2 for Construction of the Safety Crash Wall 
at the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility (Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City 
Engineer) 9 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 10 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 10 



J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 10 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 10 

a) City Council Minutes-Draft – February 18, 2013 ................................................. 10 
b) City Council Minutes-Draft – February 20, 2013 ................................................. 10 

J-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 10 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 10 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and 
Landscape Services ........................................................................................... 10 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Hauling and 
Disposal of Dirt and Debris ................................................................................. 11 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contracts - Upgrade and 
Expansion of Exchange Email System ............................................................... 11 

J-5 Addendum #1 – Charnwood Hills Phase 1 Contract #12-05 Chip Seal Treatment 
in Charnwood Hills 12 

J-6 Request for Special Budget Study Session Date Change 12 

J-7 Gennari v City of Troy Lawsuit 12 

J-8 Paint Creek 3
rd

 Annual Regional Arts & Culture Awards 12 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 13 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 13 

a) March 18, 2013 - Rezoning Application (Z-742) – Proposed 1071 Villa Park .... 13 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): 13 

a) Proposal to Amend Chapter 69 – Precious Metal, Gems and Items .................. 13 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 13 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 13 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 13 



N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 13 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 13 

O. REPORTS: 13 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 13 

a) Election Commission-Final-September 27, 2012 ............................................... 13 

b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final-September 27, 2012 ..................... 13 
c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final-October 25, 2012 .......................... 13 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-January 2, 2013 ..................................... 13 
e) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft-January 22, 2013 ............................ 13 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final-January 22, 2013 ............................ 13 

g) Election Coordinating Committee-Final-January 25, 2013 ................................. 13 

h) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-February 6, 2013 ................................... 13 
i) Election Commission-Draft-February 25, 2013 .................................................. 13 

O-2 Department Reports: 13 

a) 2012 Towing Contract Report – A & M Towing (Introduced by:  Keith A. Frye, 
Captain – Investigative/Administrative Services Division) .................................. 13 

O-3  Letters of Appreciation 14 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer From David McCain, US Dept. of 
Justice Regarding Officer Assistance at the ATF Comprehensive Violence 
Reduction Partnership Taskforce ....................................................................... 14 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer From Asteria Diana Regarding Officer 
Scott Allan and Traffic Emergency Assistance ................................................... 14 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer From Stephanie Bergeron, Walsh 
College Regarding Traffic Flow Assistance for Commencement Ceremonies ... 14 

d) Letter of Appreciation to Troy Police Department From Bethany Mosshart 
Regarding Police Services ................................................................................. 14 

e) Letter of Appreciation to Officer Paul Bednard From Shelley and Henry 
Rosenfield Regarding Traffic Assistance ............................................................ 14 

f) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer From Jeffrey Kreibich Regarding 
Excellence in Police Services Concerning an Armed Robbery Incident ............. 14 

O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 14 

O-5  Historical Society Annual Report 14 

O-6  Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Bureau of Construction Codes 
Notice of Public Hearing for Michigan Part 7 Plumbing Code Rules and Survey 
and Remonumentation Rules 14 



P. STUDY ITEMS: 14 

P-1  Library – Troy Working Together – “What Kind of City Do We Want to Be?” 14 

Q. CLOSED SESSION: 14 

Q-1  Closed Session 14 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 14 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 15 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, March 18, 2013 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 15 

Monday, April 8, 2013 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 15 
Monday, April 15, 2013 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 15 

Monday, May 13, 2013 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 15 
Monday, May 20, 2013 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 15 
Monday, June 3, 2013 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 15 

Monday, June 17, 2013 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 15 
Monday, July 8, 2013 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 15 

Monday, July 22, 2013 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 15 
Monday, August 12, 2013 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 15 

Monday, August 26, 2013 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 15 
Monday, September 9, 2013 Regular Meeting ...................................................... 15 

Monday, September 23, 2013 Regular Meeting .................................................... 15 
Monday, October 7, 2013 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 15 
Monday, October 21, 2013 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 15 

Monday, November 11, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 
Monday, November 25, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 
Monday, December 2, 2013 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 15 

Monday, December 16, 2013 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 15 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 15 

Monday, March 11, 2013 Special Meeting ............................................................ 15 

Monday, April 22, 2013 Special Meeting ............................................................... 15 
Monday, April 29, 2013 Special Meeting ............................................................... 15 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pastor John Frankenstein from Zion Christian Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of            at the 
Regular City Council Meeting of March 4, 2013, due to           . 
 
Yes:       
No:       

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Troy Youth Assistance Presentation (Presented by:  Cindy Stewart, Community 
Affairs Director) 

 

C-2 Troy Historic Village – A City of Troy – Troy Historical Society Partnership 

(Presented by:  Loraine Campbell, Museum Director) 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 

the Public and Visitors: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 2 - 

 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 
the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda or Study 
items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the 
Public Comment for Items On the Agenda portion of the Agenda. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 
three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda portion of the 
Agenda. 

 All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide 
his or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). 
If the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then 
the speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City 
Council members. 

 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum for 
City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 

The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather 
than to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is 
required to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start 
of the meeting. There are two Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the 
Agenda, speakers can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent Agenda, 
or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Speakers can sign up to address all other 
topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in 
front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there is one minute of speaker time remaining, and 
turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
 
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments 
about any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, 
including having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 3 - 

deletion of speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be 
careful to avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and 
defamation.   
 
Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum 
befitting this great City. 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous 

Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Articles 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13 and 16 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the 

City of Troy, pertaining to miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance revisions, be AMENDED to read as 
written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 244), City Council Public 
Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning Commission, with a copy of the Planning 

Commission Minutes to be ATTACHED to the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments - None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Historic District Commission 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments - None 
 

b) City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 4 - 

7 Regular Members 
3 Year Term 

 

Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 

Term Expires:  3/1/2014 Ann Partlan 

 Term currently held by: Ann Partlan 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown 

Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City 
Council Meeting for action: 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor 
13 Regular Members 

4 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last  
Name 

First 
Name 

App Resume 
Expire 

Appointment 
Date 

Appointment 
Expire 

Notes 1 Notes 3 

Bostick Dennis 1/31/2015 2/4/2013 9/30/2016 In District  

Hay David 11/16/2013 3/5/2012 9/30/2015 In District  

Jonna Arkan 10/22/2014 1/14/2013 9/30/2016 In District  

Keisling Laurence 5/25/2014 1/14/2013 9/30/2016 At Large  

Kiriluk Alan 10/12/2014 1/14/2013 9/30/2016 In District  

Knight P. 1/4/2014 3/5/2012 9/30/2015 At Large  

MacLeish Daniel 5/26/2014 1/14/2013 9/30/2016 In District  

Randol Ward 10/12/2013 10/17/2011 9/30/2014 In District  

Reschke Ernest 9/21/2012 10/17/2011 9/30/2014 At Large  

Schroeder Douglas 9/30/2012 10/17/2011 9/30/2014 At Large  

Slater Dane    At Large Mayor 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 5 - 

Vacancy    9/30/2013 At Large 
Michele Hodges’  
term (Resigned) 

Van Dyke Earle 1/31/2014 3/5/2012 9/30/2015 In District  
 

 

Nominations to the Downtown Development Authority: 
 

Term Expires:  09/30/2013  At Large 

 Term currently held by: Vacancy-Michele Hodges resigned 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 

Hoef Paul 11/21/2013 EDC exp. 4/30/2015 

Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014  

Kempen Edward 2/1/2014 Planning Comm exp 12/31/2013 

Knight Barbara 1/4/2014 EDC exp. 4/30/2015 

Kornacki Rosemary 11/15/2013 Brownfield Redev Authority exp 4/30/2014 

Mallin Aaron 10/10/2013  

Sawyer Jr. Thomas 12/11/2014 Municipal Bldg. Authority exp. 01/31/2013 

Schultz Robert 11/11/2013  

Swartz Robert D. 2/12/2015 Brownfield exp 4/30/2014; EDC exp 4/30/2018 

Vassallo Joseph 12/6/2013 Brownfield Redev. Auth. exp 4/30/2015 

Wilberding Bruce 2/8/2014 Brownfield Redev. Auth. exp 4/30/2013 
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

b) City Council Nominations: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 

 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Appointment Notes 2 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 6 - 

Expire Expire 

Clark Glenn 5/31/2014 4/30/2015  

Courtney Kenneth 2/25/2015 4/30/2013  

Fisher William 6/16/2012 4/30/2013  

Kaltsounis Orestis Rusty 1/20/2014 1/31/2015 
ZBA (Alternate);  
P&R Bd exp 9/30/2015 

Kneale A. Allen 3/9/2013 4/30/2014 
ZBA exp 4/30/14; Brownfield exp 
4/30/13 

Lambert Dave 1/8/2015 4/30/2014 Requests Reappointment 

Strat Thomas 11/16/2013 12/31/2014 PC Rep. to ZBA 

Vacancy   1/31/2015 
ZBA (Alternate);  
Bruce Bloomingdale resigned 

Vacancy   4/30/2015 Michael Bartnik resigned 
 

 

Nominations to the Zoning Board of Appeals: 
 

Term Expires:  1/31/2015  (Alternate) 

 Term currently held by: Bruce Bloomingdale (Resigned) 
   

Term Expires:  4/30/2015  

 Term currently held by: Michael Bartnik (Resigned) 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name 
App Resume 

Expire Notes 2 

Chambers Barbara 4/30/2014 Historic Dist exp 3/1/2014; Hist Dist Study-Ad Hoc 

Eisenbacher David 11/14/2013  

Kaltsounis Andrew 12/13/2014 Liquor Advisory Comm. exp. 1/31/2013 

Kempen Edward 2/1/2014 Planning Comm exp 12/31/2013 

Krent Thomas 12/13/2014 Planning Commission exp. 12/31/2013 

Ragan John 1/26/2014  
 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-3 Closed Session 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
Moved by        
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 7 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – Knutson v. City of Troy, et. al. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 

I-4 DTE Energy Solar Currents Proposal (Introduced by:  Glenn Lapin, Economic 
Development Specialist) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy was approached by Solar Project Developers, GenPoint Energy 
and Inovateus, to identify potential sites for inclusion in a response to a Request For Proposal 
issued by DTE Energy for DTE’s Solar Currents program; and 
 
WHEREAS, DTE Energy is seeking to build approximately a 1 Megawatt solar panel system in 
Troy as a part of its commitment to have at least 10% of its generated power originate from 
renewable energy sources; and 
 
WHEREAS, DTE Energy has targeted approximately four acres of the City owned future Public 
Park site adjacent to northbound I-75 (east of I-75) and south of Long Lake Road for this 
project; and 
 
WHEREAS, A 20-year lease of the site is being proposed by DTE Energy which would 
generate annual lease payments to the City in an amount to be determined; and 
 
WHEREAS, All project expenses, including maintenance, would be borne by DTE Energy;  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS / DOES NOT 

DIRECT the City Attorney and City Manager to negotiate a Lease Agreement to present to City 
Council.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-5 2013 Tri-Party Program – Concrete Slab Replacements on County Roads 
(Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City Engineer)  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement between the City of Troy and the Board of 
Road Commissioners for Oakland County for the 2013 Tri-Party Program is hereby 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 8 - 

APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $177,692, and the Mayor and City Clerk 

are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.    
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-6 Approval of Second Amendment to MDOT Capital Contract for Troy Multi-Modal 

Transit Facility, MDOT Contract No. 2011-0231/A2 (Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, 
City Engineer) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, On September 12, 2011 City Council approved Capital Contract No. 2011-0231 with 
MDOT (Resolution No. 2011-09-210) for $8,485,212 in federal funds for the final design and 
construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility; and   
 
WHEREAS, On January 17, 2012, City Council resolved that the total cost of the Troy Multi-
Modal Transit Center not exceed $6,272,500 (Resolution No. 2012-01-008); and  
 
WHEREAS, On November 12, 2012, City Council approved the First Amendment to the MDOT 
Capital Contract to reduce the grant funding amount from the original $8,485,212 to 
$6,272,500; and  
 
WHEREAS, Canadian National Railroad (CN) has recently imposed a safety requirement that 
requires the addition of a crash wall for the west elevator/bridge support tower on the 
Birmingham side at a cost of $348,236. 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a Second 
Amendment to MDOT Capital Contract No. 2011-0231 between the City of Troy and the 
Michigan Department of Transportation to increase the funding amount from $6,272,500 to a 

not to exceed amount of $6,620,736, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and Clerk to execute the 
contract amendment documents. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-7 Approval of Second Amendment to Architectural/Engineering Services Contract 

for Design of the Safety Crash Wall at the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
(Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City Engineer) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 9 - 

 
WHEREAS, On January 17, 2012, City Council approved a contract with Hubbell, Roth and 
Clark, Inc. (HRC) for Architectural and Engineering Services (A/E) for the Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility (Resolution No. 2012-01-008); and 
 
WHEREAS, On November 12, 2012 City Council approved Contract Amendment No. 1 in the 
amount $64,822.20 for Construction Testing Services in support of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility.  The total amount of the contract became $713,470.96; and 
 
WHEREAS, HRC has submitted a design proposal in the amount of $60,613 for design, testing 
and construction staking for the crash wall required by CN along the west elevator/bridge 
support tower.  
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Contract 
Amendment No. 2 in the amount of $60,613, as submitted by HRC for design, testing and 
construction staking for construction of the safety crash wall, for a total contract amount of 

$774,083.96 and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and Clerk to execute the contract amendment 
documents. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

I-8 Approval of Contract Amendment No. 2 for Construction of the Safety Crash Wall 

at the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility (Introduced by:  Steve Vandette, City 
Engineer) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a federal grant for the construction of the Troy Multi-
Modal Transit Facility through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) High-
Speed Intercity Passenger Rail (HSIPR) Program, Federal Rail Administration (FRA), as 
secured through a TIGER grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, On January 17, 2012 City Council resolved that the total cost of the Troy Multi-
Modal Transit Facility shall not exceed $6,272,500; and   
 
WHEREAS, On October 22, 2012 City Council approved Contract Amendment No. 1 in the 
amount of $4,456,141 for construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility by Tooles/Clark 
and the total contract, including the original contract amount for construction management 
services, became $5,104,872; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tooles/Clark LLC has submitted a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) proposal of 
$287,623 for construction of the crash wall required by CN along the west elevator/bridge 
support tower. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 10 - 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Contract 
Amendment No. 2 in the amount of $287,623 as submitted by Tooles/Clark for construction of 
the safety crash wall for a total contract amount with Tooles/Clark of $5,392,495 and 

AUTHORIZES the Mayor and Clerk to execute the contract amendment documents. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 

presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a) City Council Minutes-Draft – February 18, 2013 

b) City Council Minutes-Draft – February 20, 2013 
 

J-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 
 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and 

Landscape Services 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
 
WHEREAS, On March 15, 2010, Troy City Council awarded a three-year contract to provide 
mowing and landscape services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 11 - 

total bidder, Green Meadows Lawnscape of Sterling Heights, MI (Resolution #2010-03-071 
Item I-4b); and  
 
WHEREAS, The awarded bidder has agreed to exercise a one-year option to renew plus add 
additional acreage under the same prices, terms, and conditions as originally bid; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in 
the City’s best interest to exercise the option to renew the contract with Green Meadows 
Lawnscape now of Shelby Township, MI, to provide one-year requirements of mowing and 
landscape services to all municipal property under the same contract prices, terms, and 
conditions for an estimated total cost of $410,000 expiring December 31, 2013. 
 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option - Hauling and 

Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
 
WHEREAS, On April 2, 2012, Troy City Council awarded a one-year contract to provide 
Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to 
the low bidder, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI (Resolution #2012-04-070-J-4a); and  
 
WHEREAS, The awarded bidder has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby DEEMS it to be in 
the City’s best interest to exercise the option to renew the contract with Bedrock Express LTD 
of Ortonville, MI, to provide one-year requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
under the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring April 30, 2014. 
 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Cooperative Contracts - Upgrade and 

Expansion of Exchange Email System 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
 
WHEREAS, The City utilizes Microsoft Exchange as the foundation for its email system; and  
 
WHEREAS, The current version Exchange 2003 will no longer be supported as of April, 2014; 
the newest versions 2010 and 2013 offer many features which would improve City email 
services, and there is a need to expand mailbox size; 
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the purchase of 
Exchange 2013 and related hardware through the National IPA and REMC cooperative 

contracts with CDW-G as detailed in Attachment B, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting, utilizing approved purchasing procedures for an estimated cost 
of $79,355.00, plus an estimated $2,800.00 for annual recurring maintenance fees. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 12 - 

J-5 Addendum #1 – Charnwood Hills Phase 1 Contract #12-05 Chip Seal Treatment in 

Charnwood Hills 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
 
RESOLVED, That contract No. 12-05, Charnwood Hills Phase I Chip Seal with Highway 

Maintenance & Construction Co., P.O. Box 74411, Romulus, MI  48174-04111, be AMENDED 
to include Chip Seal work in Charnwood Hills Phase 2 Sewer Project Area at an estimated cost 
of $230,000. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 

requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 20% of the total project cost. 
 

J-6 Request for Special Budget Study Session Date Change 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Special Budget Study Meeting scheduled for Monday, April 29

th
 at 

7:30pm in the Council Boardroom at 500 W. Big Beaver Road be RESCHEDULED for 
Wednesday, April 24

th
 at 7:30pm in the Council Boardroom at 500 W. Big Beaver Road. 

 

J-7 Gennari v City of Troy Lawsuit 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03-      
 

RESOLVED, That the City Attorney is hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the 
City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of Maurice Gennari, Sandra 
Gennari, and Sandra Gennari Trust, u/a/d April 2008 v. City of Troy, et. al. (Oakland County 
Circuit Court Case No. 2013-132103-CH) and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City.  
 

J-8 Paint Creek 3
rd

 Annual Regional Arts & Culture Awards 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2013-03- 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby NOMINATES The Belian Art Gallery and Gallery 
Director Zabel Belian to represent the City of Troy in the Paint Creek Center of the Arts’ “2013 
Regional Arts Awards” competition. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 13 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   

a) March 18, 2013 - Rezoning Application (Z-742) – Proposed 1071 Villa Park 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time):  

a) Proposal to Amend Chapter 69 – Precious Metal, Gems and Items 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 

O. REPORTS: 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 

a) Election Commission-Final-September 27, 2012  

b) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final-September 27, 2012 

c) Parks and Recreation Advisory Board-Final-October 25, 2012  

d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-January 2, 2013 

e) Planning Commission Special/Study-Draft-January 22, 2013 

f) Planning Commission Special/Study-Final-January 22, 2013 

g) Election Coordinating Committee-Final-January 25, 2013 

h) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-February 6, 2013 

i) Election Commission-Draft-February 25, 2013 
 

O-2 Department Reports:  

a) 2012 Towing Contract Report – A & M Towing (Introduced by:  Keith A. Frye, Captain – 
Investigative/Administrative Services Division) 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 14 - 

O-3  Letters of Appreciation 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer From David McCain, US Dept. of Justice 
Regarding Officer Assistance at the ATF Comprehensive Violence Reduction 
Partnership Taskforce 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer From Asteria Diana Regarding Officer Scott Allan 
and Traffic Emergency Assistance 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer From Stephanie Bergeron, Walsh College 
Regarding Traffic Flow Assistance for Commencement Ceremonies 

d) Letter of Appreciation to Troy Police Department From Bethany Mosshart Regarding 
Police Services 

e) Letter of Appreciation to Officer Paul Bednard From Shelley and Henry Rosenfield 
Regarding Traffic Assistance 

f) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer From Jeffrey Kreibich Regarding Excellence in 
Police Services Concerning an Armed Robbery Incident 

 

O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 

O-5  Historical Society Annual Report 
 

O-6  Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Bureau of Construction Codes 

Notice of Public Hearing for Michigan Part 7 Plumbing Code Rules and Survey and 

Remonumentation Rules 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 

P-1  Library – Troy Working Together – “What Kind of City Do We Want to Be?” 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1  Closed Session 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 4, 2013 

 

- 15 - 

 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, March 18, 2013 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 

Monday, April 8, 2013 ...................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, April 15, 2013 .................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, May 13, 2013..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, May 20, 2013..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, June 3, 2013 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, June 17, 2013 ................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, July 8, 2013 ....................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, July 22, 2013 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, August 12, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

Monday, August 26, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

Monday, September 9, 2013 ............................................................................ Regular Meeting 

Monday, September 23, 2013 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, October 7, 2013 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 

Monday, October 21, 2013 .............................................................................. Regular Meeting 

Monday, November 11, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, November 25, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 

Monday, December 2, 2013 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 

Monday, December 16, 2013 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, March 11, 2013 .................................................................................. Special Meeting 

Monday, April 22, 2013 ..................................................................................... Special Meeting 

Monday, April 29, 2013 ..................................................................................... Special Meeting 
 
 



Troy Historic Village 
Annual Report for FY2011/12 

A City of Troy - Troy Historical Society Partnership 
 

stewartc
Text Box
C-02



• Capital support to acquire, relocate and restore 
historic buildings  

$1,477,600 

• Operational support for education programs 
that serve 11,000 students annually, family 
enrichment programs and special events 

$459,000 

• Volunteer Service averaging 3,000 hours/year 
and valued at $7.00/hour 

$880,000 

Total investment through 2013          $2.78 Million
   

Troy Historical Society   
Contributions to Develop and Manage  

The Troy Historic Village 



Operations Agreement  

• THS assumed operational management of Village on 
July 1, 2011: 

• 5 year agreement can be renewed 5 times 

• City retains ownership and is responsible for:  
• Utilities  
• Liability insurance  
• Security  
• Buildings and grounds maintenance  
• Major capital repairs 

• THS responsible for: 
• Full time Executive Director 
• Part time paid staff 
• Collections management 
• Volunteer management 
• All programs and services 
• Marketing 
• Fundraising 
• Information Technology 
• Prior agreements to expand Village 



Transition Year Accomplishments 
• Public access, education and enrichment programs were 

maintained or increased (open Saturday during summer) 

• Earned revenues from programs, facilities rentals, and 
development maintained or increased 

• Initiated cooperative programming with the Troy  Nature 
Society/Troy Nature Center  

• Sponsorships increased 

• Improvements made in public areas and signage 

• Five-year capital projects plan prepared  

• Exterior repairs to Niles-Barnard House completed 

• Critical collections storage issues addressed 

• New volunteers recruited, oriented and trained 

• New accounting and bookkeeping policies, procedures 
and systems established 

• Human Resources policies and procedures  established 
and employee handbook developed 



Financial Transition 

Recent Operations Budgets: 
• FY 2009/10   514,200 
• FY 2010/11   295,600 
• FY 2011/12   365,600 * 
• FY 2012/13   369,000 

 
Troy Historical Society Revenues and Expenses Audit FY 2011/12 
• Revenue   248,740  
• Expenses   292,600 
• Expenses over revenue  (43,858) 
• THV operating loss     (8,448)   

 
  *Includes $73,000 from City for core costs 
 



Grants Awarded 
FY 2011/12 
• Michigan Humanities Council   4,310 
• Michigan Humanities Council 12,535 
• Kresge Foundation  20,000 
• James & Lynelle Holden Fund   1,000  
     Total      37,845 
 
FY 2012/13 
• Kresge Foundation  15,000 
• Brooksie Way     1,871 
• Lula C. Wilson Trust    2,500 
      FY 2013 committed to date   19,371 
 
FY 2013/14 
• Kresge Foundation  15,000 
      FY 2014 committed to date   15,000 
 
Grant Income FY2012-14  committed to date 72,216 



Progress Toward Sustainable Operations 

 
• Invested in increased institutional and program marketing and advertising 

• Improved communications with members through on-line and social media 
sites and traditional print media 

• Increased participation in Chamber of Commerce and Cultural Source 

• Recruited new Trustees skilled in strategic planning, financial management 
and education 

• Convened Strategic Planning Team to provide a structure to support 
sustainable operations and management 

• Submitted major grant proposal to the Institute for Museum and Library 
Services (IMLS) to develop participatory visitor experiences 

• Expanded cooperative programming with the Troy Nature Society 

• Established service relationship with BuildOn 

• Open 6 days a week during the summer 

 



Working Together 
 Going Forward  

• Work with the City to maximize the economic and 
community impact of the quality of life services in Troy 
 

• Schedule quarterly meetings with City management to: 

• Review, clarify and  update 5-year agreement 

• Discuss ongoing implementation of the approved THV 
Site Plan 
 

• Request that the City of Troy provide the following annual 
financial support:  

• Core services as outlined in the agreement 

• Operational support of $100,000 

• Capital maintenance fund renewable to $50,000 
 



stewartc
Text Box
O-05



























































 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date: February 4, 2013 
 

To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 

From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

Subject: PUBLIC HEARING – FEBRUARY 18, 2013 – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 

(File Number: ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
 

 

History 
 

The City of Troy Zoning Ordinance was adopted in April 2011.  Prior to adoption, it was anticipated there 
would be some revisions that would be necessary once staff, the Planning Commission and applicants 
had an opportunity to use the document.  The proposed revisions will fix inconsistencies, clarify 
provisions and generally make the document easier to use and understand. 
 
There are a total of 26 issues proposed to be resolved.  Of these, 14 are simple non-substantive 
corrections such as typos.  The remaining 12 issues are more substantive.  The attached PowerPoint 
presentation describes the proposed changes.  The PowerPoint will be used to present this item at 
the February 18, 2013 Regular meeting.  
 
The Planning Commission discussed these revisions at a number of public meetings. 
 

The attached reports prepared by Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. summarize the revisions. 
 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on January 8, 2013 and recommended 
approval of the text amendment.  City Council is the approval body for this amendment, following a 
public hearing. 
 
Recommendation 
 

City Management recommends approval of the proposed Zoning Ordinance text amendment. 
 

City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
 
 
 
____________________________   
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney Date 
 
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
H-01



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Attachments: 

1. Proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments - Public Hearing Draft 
2. Report prepared by CWA, dated September 19, 2012. 
3. Report prepared by CWA, dated October 17, 2012. 
4. Planning Commission minutes (excerpts). 
5. City Council PowerPoint presentation. 

 
RBS\kc\G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 244  Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions\CC Memo_Public Hearing 2013 02 18.doc 



     

CITY OF TROY 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39, Zoning 
Ordinance, of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended as follows: 
 
1.  Amend Section 2.02 to read as follows: 
 

LOT FRONTAGE:  The horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured 
between the points where said lot lines intersect the street right-of-way.  Said 
frontage shall be continuous and unbroken and shall be measured along the 
constructed portion of the right-of-way only.   

 
2.  Add Section 3.02.H to read as follows:  
 

H.  

 

Enforce and interpret the meaning and applicability of all provisions and 
requirements of the ordinance.    

3.  Amend Section 3.10.C.1.c to read as follows: 
 

c. The recommendation of approval to City Council of all preliminary plats 
subdividing land, site condominium plans,

 

 planned unit developments,  some 
special use approval applications, and any amendments or alterations 
thereof. 

4.  Amend Section 3.10.C.1.e to read as follows  
 

e. Acting as the approval authority on site plans, site condominiums, and most 
special use approval applications. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5.  Amend Table 4.06.C to read as follows: 
 

Minimum Lot Size Per Dwelling Unit Maximum Height Minimum Yard Setback (R) (Per Lot 
in Feet) 

Minimum 
Floor Area 
Per Unit 
(Square 
Feet) 

Maximum % 
of Lot Area 
Covered by 
Buildings 

Use 
District 

Area 
in 

Sq.Ft 
(1) 

Width 
in Ft. 
(1) 

Frontage 
in Ft. (1) 

In 
Stories 

(2) 

In 
Feet 
(2) 

Front Sides Rear 

(3) 
Least 
One 
(4) 

Least 
Two 
(4) 

(5) 

R-1A 

No 
Sewer 

30,000 150 150 2 ½ 
30 

40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

Sewer 21,780 120 120 2 ½ 40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

R-1B 

No 
Sewer 

21,780 110 110 2 ½ 
30 

40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

Sewer 15,000 100 100 2 ½ 40 10 25 45 1,400 30% 

R-1C 

No 
Sewer 

21,780 110 110 2 ½ 
30 

30 15 30 40 1,200 30% 

Sewer 10,500 85 85 2 ½ 30 10 20 40 1,200 30% 

R-1D 

No 
Sewer 

21,780 110 110 2 ½ 
30 

25 15 30 40 1,000 30% 

Sewer 8,500 75 75 2 ½ 25 8 20 40 1,000 30% 

R-1E 

No 
Sewer 

21,780 110 110 2 ½ 
30 

25 15 30 35 1,000 30% 

Sewer 7,500 60 60 2 ½ 25 5 15 35 1,000 30% 

 
 

6.  Add Section 4.06.D.6 Supplemental District Standards to read as follows: 
 

6. LOT FRONTAGE ON CORNER LOTS, CURVED ROADS, AND CUL-DE-
SACS: 

 
a. On all corner lots, the frontage set forth shall be measured on one (1) 

street only.   
b. For lots on curved streets that have curvilinear frontages, frontage shall be 

determined by measuring the linear distance along the curve. 
c. In the event that the lot is situated on a cul-de-sac, the frontage, shall be 

measured along the minimum setback line for the zone in which said lot is 
located.   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7.  Amend Section 4.06-4:18 so that legend icon is consistent in both graphic and 
tables (eExample below):  
 

 
 

8.  Amend Section 4.07 Table to read:  
 
Minimum Lot Size Per Dwelling 
Unit 

Maximum Height Minimum Yard Setback  Minimum 
Floor 
Area Per 
Unit 
(Square 
Feet) 

Maximum % of 
Lot Area 
Covered by 
Buildings 

Area in 
Sq.Ft 

(1) 

Width in 
Ft. (1) 

Frontage in 
Ft.  

In 
Stories 

(2) 
In Feet (2) 

Front Sides Rear 

  
(3) 

Least 
One 
(4) 

Least 
Two 
(4) 

(5) 

15,000 
without 
sewers 

75 N/A 
2 ½ 

 
30 25 10 5 20 15 35 

1,000 
 

30% 
 5,000 

without 
sewers 

40 40 

 
 
 
 

9.  Amend Section 4.13.D.4.a and b, Section 4.14.D.4.a and b, Section 4.16.D.4.a 
and b, Section 4.18.D.5.a and b to read as follows:  

 



a. 
a. No more than fifty (50) percent of 

Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 
the total a site’s linear feet along the 

front building line shall be occupied by parking lot required parking as set 
forth in Section 4.21 may be located in a front yard.

b. 
   

 

Through the Sustainable Development Option as set forth in Section 12.01 
of the Ordinance, relief may be granted to allow greater than fifty (50) 
percent of a site’s required parking to be located in a front yard.     

 
 
10.  Amend Section 4.14 to replace the existing graphic with the following 
graphic:  

 
11.  Amend Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table to read as follows:  
 
 

Automobile Use IB 

Vehicle, recreational vehicle 
sales 

S 

Vehicle repair stations S P 

Vehicle fueling/multi-use stations S 

Vehicle washes S 

Vehicle auctions S 

Antique and classic vehicle sales S P 

Ambulance facilities S P 

Vehicle rental S P 

 



12.  Amend Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations to read as follows: 
 

 R1-A 
through 
R1-E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Extended Stay 
Facility 

NP NP S S NP NP NP S P P NP S NP NP NP 

 
13.  Amend Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table to read as follows: 

 

 R1-A 
through 
R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Oil Change 
Facility 

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP NP P NP 

 

14.  Amend Header for Section 4.21 Schedule of Regulations Table to read as 
follows: 
 

Uses Districts 

 R-1A 

through  

R-1E 

R-1T 

RT 

MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV 

 

P 

15.  Amend Section 4.21 Schedule of Regulations Table to read as follows: 
 

Uses  Districts 

 R-1A 

through 

R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV 

Retail,  

P 

Large- 

Format 

              

 

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP NP N
P 

 

NP 

 
16.  Amend Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table to read as follows: 

 

 R1-A 
through 
R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility 
(complies with 
section 
6.30.B.1 ) 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility (free 
standing tower) 

NP NP NP NP NP S NP S S S S S S S S 

 
 



17.  Amend Section 5.03 Form Based Districts Use Group by Category to read as 
follows:  
 

 
TABLE 5.03-A-1 

USE GROUPS BY CATEGORY 
 

PRINCIPAL USE 

Use Group 5 
Retail, Entertainment, and Service Uses: 

Lodging 

Financial institutions 

General retail 

Retail, large-format 

Shopping centers 

Fitness, gymnastics, and exercise centers 

Theatres and places of assembly 

Indoor commercial recreation establishments 

Restaurant 

Personal services 

Business services 

 

18.  Amend Section 5.03 Form Based Districts Use Groups by Category to read as 
follows:  

 
TABLE 5.03-A-1 

USE GROUPS BY CATEGORY 
 

PRINCIPAL USE 

Use Group 6 
Miscellaneous Commercial Uses: 

Building & lumber supply 

Garden centers, nurseries 

Outdoor commercial recreation 

Indoor commercial recreation 

Self-Storage 

Commercial kennels / pet day care 

Drive-through facilities 

 

 
19.  Add Section 5.03.C to read as follows:  
 

C. Landscaping In Form-Based Districts 
 
1. 

a. 

In addition to landscape requirements to Section 13.02, the following 
landscaping requirements shall apply:  

Supplemental to Section 13.02.E.1.a, a minimum of fifteen percent (15%) 
of the site area shall be comprised of landscape material. 



b. 

c. 

Landscaping can consist of approved trees, shrubs, ground cover, vines, 
grasses, or other approved plan material.  Up to twenty-five (25%) of the 
required landscape area may be brink, stone, or pavers or other public 
plaza elements, but shall not include any parking area or required 
sidewalks.   

 

Up to twenty-five (25%) of the required landscape area may be relieved 
through the Sustainable Design Option as outlined in Section 12.01.    

20.  Amend Section 6.10.C.1 to read as follows: 
 
1.  Each stacking lane shall be one-way, and each stacking lane space shall be a 

minimum of twelve (12) ten (10) feet in width and twenty (20) feet in length. 
 
21.  Amend Section 6.16 Lodging to read as follows: 
 

Lodging/Extended Stay Facilities that includes a restaurant, bar/lounge, 
auditorium, exhibition, or public meeting space shall provide parking to 
accommodate all uses on the site, in accordance with the standards set forth in 
Section 13.06. 

 
22.  Add Section 6.26.F. Vehicle Repair to read as follows:  
 

F. Any proposed vehicle repair use within three hundred (300) feet (measured 
from the nearest lot line to the nearest lot line on a straight-line basis) to any 
residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes shall be 
reviewed as a special use as set forth in Article 9.  
 

23.  Amend Section 6.26, Section 6.27, and Section 6.28 (Page 179) to change text 
color from blue to black for “Vehicle Repair”, “Vehicle Sales – New, Used, and 
Vintage”, and “Vehicle Fueling / Multi-Use Station”  

 

24.  Amend Section 6.30.B.2 to read as follows 
 

2. If it is demonstrated by an applicant that a wireless communication facility is 
required to be established outside an area identified in Section 6.29.B.1  
6.30.B.1, then, wireless communication facilities may be applied for 
elsewhere in the City and must follow the district specific criteria and is 
subject to the criteria and standards set forth in this Ordinance. 

 
25.  Add Section 6.31. Antique Vehicle Sale, Ambulance Facility, and Vehicle 

Rental to read as follows:  
 

SECTION 6.31: ANTIQUE VEHICLE SALE, AMBULANCE FACILITY, AND 
VEHICLE RENTAL  

 
A. Any proposed antique vehicle sale, ambulance facility, and vehicle rental use 

within three hundred (300) feet (measured from the nearest lot line to the 
nearest lot line on a straight-line basis) to any residential zoning district or any 



parcel used for residential purposes shall be reviewed as a special use as set 
forth in Article 9.  

 
26.  Add Section 6.32 to read as follows: 

 
SECTION 6.32:     MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING UNITS IN THE IB DISTRICT  

 
A. One-story multi-family dwelling building is a permitted use in the IB district 

only through the conversion of an existing building.    
 

27.  Amend Section 7.13.I.4 to read as follows:   
 

4. The maximum duration of use shall be four (4) seven (7) consecutive days for 
any one (1) event, including setup and takedown, not to exceed four (4) 
events within a period of twelve (12) calendar months. 

 

28.  Amend Section 10.04.E.1 to read as follows:  
 

1.  Overall density shall not exceed the number of residential cluster units 
determined in Section 10.05.D 10.04.D, unless a density bonus has been 
granted by City Council. 

 

29.  Amend Section 12.04.F.1.a to read as follows:   
 

1. Setbacks 
 

a. The distance between a WECS or TMT and the nearest property line shall be 
at least the one and a half (1.5) times the height of the WECS or TMT for all 
zoning districts except R1-A, R1-B, R1-C, R1-D, R-1E, CR-1 and R-1T  RT 
Districts. For R1-A, R1-B, R1-C, R1-D, R-1E, CR-1 and R-1T RT

 

 Districts, the 
distance between a WECS or TMT and the nearest property line shall be at 
least the two (2) times the height of the WECS or TMT. This shall include 
property lines that abut a public right-of-way. 

30.  Amend Section 12.04.F.2.a.i to read as follows:  
 

i.  In R1-C, R1-D, R-1E, CR-1 and R-1T RT Districts, on-site WECS and TMTs 
shall not exceed twenty-five (25) feet in height. 

 

31.  Add Section 13.02 add the following title to Table 13.02-C:  
 

Table 13.02-C: Minimum Size and Spacing Requirements for Landscaping 
 Materials 
 

32.  Amend Section 13.05.C.3:  
 

3.  Height. The maximum height of a base, a pole and fixtures shall be twenty-
five (25) feet. A maximum height of thirty (30) feet may be permitted in an 



industrial district the IB or PV districts where fixtures are no closer than two 
hundred (200) feet to any residential district. 

 

33.  Add Section 16.03.C to read as follows:  
 

C.  Standards for Approval.  A rezoning may only be approved upon a finding and 
determination that all of the following are satisfied: 

 
1. 

 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Master Plan.  If the current 
zoning is in material conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to 
one of the following:  

a. 
 
A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted 

b. 
 
A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 

c. 
 

An error in the Master Plan. 

2. The proposed rezoning will not cause nor increase any non-conformity.   
 

3. Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be 
capable of accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the 
development.  
 

4. The rezoning will not impact public health, safety, and welfare. 
 

5. The rezoning will insure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 
 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2013. 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Dane Slater, Mayor 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, City Clerk  
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 244  Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions\CC Public Hearing Draft Complete ZOTA 2012-2013.doc 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, AICP, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: September 19, 2012 
 
RE: Zoning Ordinance Amendments  
 
 
The City of Troy Zoning Ordinance was adopted in April 2011.  It is common that a year or so after the 
adoption of a new zoning ordinance, staff, planning commissioners, and outside interests identify 
specific language and other clarifications that need further discussion and potential amendments.  Many 
of the proposed amendments are minor (capitalization, consistency in labeling, etc); however some 
considerations for amendments are substantive.   
 
As part of the process of reviewing the existing ordinance, we have identified twelve (12) substantive 
and fourteen (14) minor amendments changes.  Listed below are the cumulative twenty-five (26) 
amendments for consideration.  For the substantive amendments we have provided a detailed 
explanation and proposed ordinance language.  For the typographical errors we have simple listed the 
existing language and the proposed ordinance language.  If requested we can provide additional 
information.   
 

Substantive Amendments:  
 
Each amendment has three parts: 1). the ordinance section number, page number, and existing 
ordinance language; 2). details outlining the proposed text amendment and explanation as to why the 
amendment is warranted; and 3). the proposed amended language.  Removed text is struck-through and 
proposed new ordinance language is underlined.   
 
1. Section 4.13.D.4.a (CB District Page 72) : Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 

Section 4.14.D.4.a (GB District Page 76) : Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 
Section 4.15.D.4.a (O District Page 84) : Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 
Section 4.18.D.5.a (RC District Page 92) : Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 

 
Issue:  The parking requirements for districts CB, GB, O, and RC do not allow parking in the front 
yard.    Front Yard is defined as “An open space extending the full width of the lot, the depth of 
which is the minimum horizontal distance between the front lot line and the nearest line of the 
main building.”  Hence due to the definition of front yard, parking is not permitted in the front 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

of any building these districts, regardless of how far back the actual building is from the street.  
In conversations between with staff it is unclear if the intent was to preclude any parking in 
front of the building.  Irrespective of the intent, in these auto-oriented commercial and office 
districts a limited parking in front of the building, but outside of the required front yard, should 
be permitted.  Unlike form-based districts, where there is a requirement to place buildings up to 
the street in order to create pedestrian forms and street presence, developments in these 
districts are more auto-oriented.   
 
One of the primary justifications for limiting parking in front of the building is to ensure that the 
parking is does not dominate the front façade, as well as ensure that the building is able to 
create some street presence.  However, in these districts there already exists language in the 
ordinance that state “No more than fifty (50) percent of the total site’s linear feet along the 
front building line shall be occupied by parking lot.” This requirement limits the total amount of 
parking in front of the building and mitigates concerns that parking would dominate parking in 
the front yard.   

 
Please note that an amendment to the parking location for these sections will not amend any 
parking location requirement in form-based districts.  

 
Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
Section 4. Off-Street Parking Location. 
 
a. 
b. No more than fifty (50) percent of the total site’s linear feet along the front building line 

shall be occupied by parking lot. 

Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 

 
2. Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table (Page 101): Reclassify selective automotive 

limited automotive and transportation uses in the IB district from Special to Permitted.  
 
Current Ordinance: 
 

Use IB 
Vehicle, recreational vehicle sales S 
Vehicle repair stations S 
Vehicle fueling/multi-use stations S 
Vehicle washes S 
Vehicle auctions S 
Antique and classic vehicle sales S 
Ambulance facilities S 
Vehicle rental S 

 
Issue: Recognizing that some of the area devoted to manufacturing and industrial uses may be 
outdated and conductive to redevelopment of other uses, the IB District was created.   The IB 
District is intended to continue to recognize more traditional manufacturing and industrial use; 
however encourage redevelopment and reuse of existing buildings and sites by permitting other 
compatible uses.  The IB District recognizes the difficulty of certain sites for redevelopment and 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

open up the list of uses accordingly.  As such, the IB District permits a multitude of uses by-right 
ranging from multiple-family residential to shopping centers to light and medium industrial uses.  
However, automobile uses are the only category of uses that require special uses.  Many 
concerns associated with further opening the IB District Use and potential impact upon 
surrounding properties, are mitigated through the special use process for drive-through uses, 
limitation on outdoor storage, and landscape transitions between incompatible uses.    
 
We recommend that certain uses in the Automotive/Transportation category that have minimal 
exterior impacts be allowed by-right.   

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 

Use IB 
Vehicle, recreational vehicle sales S, P 
Vehicle repair stations S, P 
Vehicle fueling/multi-use stations S 
Vehicle washes S 
Vehicle auctions S 
Antique and classic vehicle sales S, P 
Ambulance facilities S, P 
Vehicle rental S, P 

 
 

3. Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table (Page 101): Add “Oil Change Facility” into 
Automotive/Transportation Use group.  Classify use as Permitted or Special based on district. 

 
Issue:  Oil change facilities are not a listed use in the Schedule of Use Regulations. In previous 
practice oil facilities were treated similar to vehicle repair.  However, oil change facilities are a 
common use that have different impacts than other vehicle repair and other automobile uses.   
In addition, vehicle repair has defined supplemental use regulations as listed in Section 6.26, of 
which are not applicable to oil change facility operations.   Oil change facilities should be added 
and classified as a Permitted or Special Use based on district. 
 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 4.21: 
 

 R1-A 
through 
R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Vehicle Repair 
Facility 

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP S S NP NP NP S NP 

Oil Change Facility NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP NP P NP 

 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

4. Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table (Page 101): Add “Wireless Communication 
Facility (free standing tower)” into miscellaneous group.  Classify use as Permitted or Special based 
on district.  (Note: see section 6.30) 

 
Issue:  Wireless Communication Facilities are a use defined in Article 2 (definitions) and have 
specific use standards outlined in Section 6.30, but are not a listed use in the Schedule of Use 
Regulations.  Wireless Communications, both attached to existing building and free-standing 
tower, are a common use that should be added to the use table.  Due to different visual effects 
and potential for secondary impact, free standing towers should require greater regulations in 
regards to both ability to be located in certain districts and requirement to obtain special use 
approval in others.  Wireless communication facilities located on existing structures are 
permitted in all districts provided that they meet those supplemental use regulations listed in 
Section 6.30.B.1.  
 
All Wireless communication facilities still must comply with Section 6.30.   

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 4.21: 
 

 R1-A 
through 
R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility (complies 
with section 
6.30.B.1 ) 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility (free 
standing tower) 

NP NP NP NP NP S NP S S S S S S S S 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

5. Section 5.03 Form Based Districts Use Group by Category (Page 108): Add “Lodging” as use in 
Use Group 5 

 
Issue:  Lodging facilities are not a listed use in the form-based code.  Previous applications for 
lodging facility in the form-based districts have been required to go through a P.U.D. process.  
Lodging facilities are an intended use in the form-based districts.   Not including this use was an 
oversight of the previous draft.  Adding lodging to the code is consistent with the Master Plan 
and would clarify the intent of the zoning ordinance.   
 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 

TABLE  5.03-A-1 
USE GROUPS BY CATEGORY 

PRINCIPAL USE 
Use Group 5 
Lodging 

Financial institutions 

General retail 

Retail, large-format 

Shopping centers 

Fitness, gymnastics, and exercise centers 

Theatres and places of assembly 

Indoor commercial recreation establishments 

Restaurant 

Personal services 

Business services 

Financial institutions 

General retail 

 
6. Section 5.03 Form Based Standards Applicable to All Districts (Page 110):  Add “Section C” to 

add specific landscaping requirements in the Form Based Districts.  
 

Issue:  Section 13.02 outlines Landscaping requirements.  These requirements are not district 
specific and rather apply throughout the city. These regulations include screening between uses, 
parking lot landscaping, greenbelt planting, and a requirement to provide at least 20% of the 
site landscaping.  However, as recently discussed by the Planning Commission for the Big Beaver 
PUD, a 20% landscaping requirement for developments in the more urban and pedestrian 
oriented Form-Based districts might not be appropriate.  Due to the building form requirements 
of the Big Beaver corridor, and the desire to build more “urban” style developments, obtaining 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

20% site landscaping is often difficult to obtain.   Looking at other ordinances including City of 
Omaha and the City of Chicago, we recommend reducing the total percentage of site 
landscaping to 15% with options for relief.   
 
Proposed Amendment Language:  

 
Section 5.03.C: Landscaping in Form-Based Districts 
 

1. 

a. 

In addition to landscape requirements to Section 13.02, the following landscaping 
requirements shall apply:  

b. 

Supplemental to Section 13.02.E.1.a, a minimum of fifteen percent (15%) of the 
site area shall be comprised of landscape material. 

c. 

Landscaping can consist of approved trees, shrubs, ground cover, vines, grasses, 
or other approved plan material.  Up to twenty-five (25%) of the required 
landscape area may be brink, stone, or pavers or other public plaza elements, 
but shall not include any parking area or required sidewalks.   

 

Up to twenty-five (25%) of the required landscape area may be relieved through 
the Sustainable Design Option as outlined in Section 12.01.    

 
7. Section 6.10.C.1 and C.2 (Page 170): Amend Section 6.10.C.1 and C.2 to reduce the width of 

drive-through drive-aisles from 12 feet to 10 feet. 
 
Issue:  The requirement of a 12-foot width for drive-through aisles is not necessary.  First, due to 
adjacent buildings, other cars, and necessities to stop (order menus, pick-up windows, atms, 
tellers booths, etc) cars travel slower through drive-through aisles.  Secondly, all drive-through 
aisles are one way, or separated via striping or curbs.  12-foot wide lanes are only necessary for 
two-way traffic.  Reducing the width from 12-feet to 10-feet will not cause additional traffic 
conflict, will allow additional area for both building or landscaped area, and will have the added 
effect of naturally reducing automobile speed.  The ten (10) foot drive-through aisle width is 
consistent with what was recently passed for bank uses in the Big Beaver form based district.   

 
Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
Section 6.10.C.1 and C.2: 
 
Each drive-through facility shall provide stacking space meeting the following standards: 

1. Each stacking lane shall be one-way, and each stacking lane space shall be a minimum of 
twelve (12) ten (10) feet in width and twenty (20) feet in length. 
 
  

EXAMPLE: LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENT IN FORM-BASED DISTRICT 
Site Area 15% required 

landscaping 
50% of 15% 
of required 
landscaping 
(greenscape) 

25% of 15% of 
required 
landscaping 
(hardscape) 

25% of 15% of required 
landscaping can be relived 
through sustainable design 
option 

100,000 sq/ft 15,000 sq/ft 7,500 sq/ft  3,750 sq/ft 3,750 sq/ft 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

8. Add Section 6.31 (Page 170): Add Section 6.31 to allow 1 story multi-family residential uses as 
permitted uses in the IB districts only for conversion of existing buildings.  
 

Issue:  Recognizing that some of the area devoted to manufacturing and industrial uses may be 
outdated and conductive to redevelopment of other uses, the IB District was created.   The IB 
District is intended to continue to recognize more traditional manufacturing and industrial use; 
however encourage redevelopment and reuse of existing buildings and sites by permitting other 
compatible uses.  The IB District recognizes the difficulty of certain sites for redevelopment and 
open up the list of uses accordingly.  As such, the IB District permits a multitude of uses by-right 
ranging from multiple-family residential to shopping centers to light and medium industrial uses.   
 
The current ordinance prevents the construction of one-story multi-family dwelling units. The 
intent of requiring multiple story multi-family structures is to require greater massing and scale.  
However, there are many existing one story buildings in the IB District that could be converted 
into multi-family. The proposed amendment to allow one-story multi-family dwelling units is 
only permitted for existing building in the IB district.   

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 6.31:     Multi-family dwelling units in the IB District.  

A. One-story multi-family dwelling building is a permitted use in the IB district only through 
the conversion of an existing building.    

 
9. Section 7.13.I.4 (Page 199):  Amend the maximum duration for outdoor special events from four 

(4) to seven (7) days.   
 
Issue:  Section 7.13.1.4 limits outdoor special events, such as grand openings and corporate, 
institutional, and community celebrations and fundraising activities, to a maximum of four (4) 
consecutive days.  These four (4) days includes on-site event preparation, setup, and cleanup.  
Often due to on-site event preparation, setup, and cleanup, a maximum of four (4) days is not 
sufficient.  Extending the time allowance from four (4) to seven (7) days would provide the 
necessary time to setup for the event, hold the event, and cleanup.  Extending the time for 
outdoor events would not significantly impact traffic or public facilities (police, fire, etc).   

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 7.13.I.4: 
 
The maximum duration of use shall be four (4) seven (7) consecutive days for any one (1) event, 
including setup and takedown, not to exceed four (4) events within a period of twelve (12) 
calendar months. 
 

10. Section 16.03 (page 313): Add standards for rezoning  
 
Issue:  While there are standards for conditional rezoning as outlined in Section 16.04; there are 
no standards for a straight rezoning outlined in Section 16.03.   The ordinance should include 
standards for the Planning Commission and ultimately the City Council to consider in regards to 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
8  P a g e  

rezoning.   Such standards can include consistency with Master Plan, impact upon public 
facilities, etc. 

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 16.03.C:  Standards for Approval.  A rezoning may only be approved upon a finding and 
determination that all of the following are satisfied: 

 
A. 

1. 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Master Plan.  If the current zoning is in 
material conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the following:  

2. 
A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted 

3. 
A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 

B. The proposed rezoning will not cause nor increase any non-conformity.   
An error in the Master Plan. 

C. Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be capable of 
accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the development.  

D. The rezoning will not impact public health, safety, and welfare. 
E. The rezoning will insure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 

 
11. Single-Family Districts: Amend Frontage requirements  

 
Issue:  There is not a minimum lot frontage requirement for lots in the R-1 districts.  The 
requirement of minimum lot frontage, in combination with minimum lot size, depth, width, and 
setback ensures that newly created lots will be able to comply with all site development 
standards.  Requiring a minimum lot frontage would ensure that the creation of new lots have 
the necessary access with the extension of a road that meets City of Troy requirement.  A lack of 
minimum lot frontage requirement would allow the creation of a new lot by extending the road 
as a driveway.  Furthermore, requiring a minimum lot frontage eliminates the creation of flag 
lots.   

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
• Add Lot Frontage Definition to Article 2: 
 
Lot Frontage: The frontage of any lot shall be the horizontal distance between the side lot lines 
measured between the points where said lot lines intersect the street right-of-way.  Said 
frontage shall be continuous and unbroken and shall be measured along the constructed portion 
of the right-of-way only.   
 
• Amend Table 4.06.C: 
 

Minimum Lot Size Per Dwelling Unit Maximum Height Minimum Yard Setback (R) (Per Lot in 
Feet) 

Minimum 
Floor Area 
Per Unit 
(Square Feet) 

Maximum % 
of Lot Area 
Covered by 
Buildings Use 

District 

Area 
in 

Sq.Ft 
(1) 

Width in 
Ft. (1) 

Frontage 
in Ft. (1) 

In Stories 
(2) 

In Feet 
(2) 

Front Sides Rear 

(3) 
Least 
One 
(4) 

Least 
Two 
(4) 

(5) 

R-1A 
No Sewer 30,000 150 150 2 ½ 

30 
40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

Sewer 21,780 120 120 2 ½ 40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
9  P a g e  

R-1B 
No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 

30 
40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

Sewer 15,000 100 100 2 ½ 40 10 25 45 1,400 30% 
R-1C 
No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 

30 
30 15 30 40 1,200 30% 

Sewer 10,500 85 85 2 ½ 30 10 20 40 1,200 30% 
R-1D 
No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 

30 
25 15 30 40 1,000 30% 

Sewer 8,500 75 75 2 ½ 25 8 20 40 1,000 30% 
R-1E 
No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 

30 
25 15 30 35 1,000 30% 

Sewer 7,500 60 60 2 ½ 25 5 15 35 1,000 30% 

 
• Amended Section 4.06.D Supplemental District Standards to add frontage language 

regarding corner lots and cul-de-sacs: 
 

Section 4.06.D.6:  Lot Frontage on Corner Lots, Curved Roads, and Cul-de-Sacs 
a. On all corner lots, the frontage set forth shall be measured on one (1) street only.   
b. For lots on curved streets that have curvilinear frontages, frontage shall be determined 

by measuring the linear distance along the curve. 
c. In the event that the lot is situated on a cul-de-sac, the frontage, shall be measured 

along the minimum setback line for the zone in which said lot is located.   
 

12. Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations (p.100): Add Extended Stay Facilities as a use to the 
schedule of use regulations.   

 
Issue:  There are a least two extended stay facilities in Troy.  One is controlled by a consent 
judgment, and the other is in the MR, Multiple Family zoned district.  While it is defined in 
Article 2 (Definitions), extended stay facilities are not a listed use in the ordinance.  Previous 
practice considered these facilities most similar to hotel.  However, hotel is not a permitted use 
in the multiple family districts.  Thus this extended stay facility is considered non-conforming.   
 
The table of uses should be amended to add extended stay facilities as a use.    In consideration 
of similar uses, hotel uses is not most appropriate use to compare such use too.   Rather, due to 
similar operations and impacts, these facilities are more similar to multiple-family and 
apartments uses, and should be regulated in a similar manner.   

 
Proposed Amendment Language:  
 

Section 4.21: 
 

 R1-A 
through 
R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Multiple Family 
Dwelling Unit (2-
8 stories) 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Multiple Family 
Dwelling Unit (9 
stories + )  

NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
10  P a g e  

Lodging NP NP NP NP NP NP NP S P P NP S NP NP NP 
Extended Stay 
Facility 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
11  P a g e  

Minor: 
 
1. Section 3.10.C.1.c and d (page 41): Remove mention that the Planning Commission is the 

recommending body for Site Condominiums as the Planning Commission is the approving body, as 
outlined in Section 3.10.C.2. 

 
2. Section 4.07 Table (page 51): Amend “5,000 without sewers “to “5,000 with sewers” and reduce 

side yard to 5’ for least one and 15’ for least two.  Reducing side yard setbacks is consistent with R-
1E lot requirements.   

 
Minimum Lot Size Per Dwelling Unit Maximum Height Minimum Yard Setback  Minimum 

Floor Area 
Per Unit 
(Square 
Feet) 

Maximum % of 
Lot Area Covered 
by Buildings 

Area in 
Sq.Ft (1) 

Width in 
Ft. (1) 

Frontage in 
Ft.  

In 
Stories 

(2) 
In Feet (2) 

Front Sides Rear 
  

(3) 
Least 

One (4) 
Least 

Two (4) 
(5) 

15,000 
without 
sewers 

75 N/A 
2 ½ 

 
30 25 

10  
5 

20 
15 

35 
1,000 

 
30% 

 5,000 
without 
sewers 

40 40 

 
3. Section 4.14 Graphic (page 75): Amend graphic to include an additional building mid-block (no 

substantive change to regulations).  New Graphic:  

 
 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
12  P a g e  

4. Section 4.06-4:18 (pgs. 47, 51, 55, 59,65, 71, 53, 75, 79, 83, 87, and 91): Amend all district 
regulation tables so that legend icon is consistent in both graphic and tables.  Example below:  

 

 
 
 
5. Section 4.21 Schedule of Regulations Table (page 98): Amend “R-T” to “RT” 
 
6. Section 4.21 Schedule of Regulations Table (Page 99): Add “P” to Retail, large-format for CB 

district 
 
7. Section 5.03 Form Based Districts Use Groups by Category Table (Page 108): Remove bold 

and underline from “Drive-through facilities” 
 
8. Section 5.04, Section 5.05, and Section 5.06 Form Based District Use Groups Permitted 

Table (Page 133, 143, and 158): Amend “Table 5.03-1” to “Table 5.03-A-1”   
 
9. Section 6.26, Section 6.27, and Section 6.28 (Page 179): Change text color to black for “Vehicle 

Repair”, “Vehicle Sales –New, Used, and Vintage”, and “Vehicle Fueling / Multi-Use Station”  
 
10. Section 6.30.B.2 (Page 182): Amend “Section 6.29.B.1” to “6.30.B.1” 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
13  P a g e  

11. Section 10.04.E.2 (Page 225): Amend “Section 10.04.E.2” to refer to “Section 10.04.D”  
 
12. Section 12.04.F.1 and 2.a.i (Page 251): Amend “R-1T” to “RT” 
 
13. Section 13.02 (Page 276): Add the following label to table: “Table 13.02-C: Minimum Size and 

Spacing Requirements for Landscaping Materials” 
 
14. Section 13.05.C.3 (Page 282): Amend Section 13.05.C.3: Amend “in an industrial district where” 

to say “in the IB or PV districts when” 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.   
 
 

 
  
 



 

  

605 S. Main Street, Ste. 1 
Ann Arbor, MI  48104 
 
(734) 662-2200 
(734) 662-1935 Fax 

 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: R. Brent Savidant, AICP, Planning Director 
 
FROM: Ben Carlisle, AICP 
 
DATE: October 17, 2012 
 
RE: Zoning Ordinance Amendments  
 
 

Complete list of Substantive Amendments (including October 9th Considerations):  
 
Listed below is the list of substantive amendments.  We have only listed the proposed amendment 
language.  For more details regarding justification, please refer to our September 19, 2012 memo.  
 
1. Section 4.13.D.4.a (CB District Page 72) : Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 

Section 4.14.D.4.a (GB District Page 76) : Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 
Section 4.15.D.4.a (O District Page 84) : Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 
Section 4.18.D.5.a (RC District Page 92) : Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 

 
Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
Section 4. Off-Street Parking Location. 

 
a. 

 
Parking shall not be located in the front yard. 

a. No more than fifty (50) percent of total site’s linear feet along the front building line shall be 
occupied by parking lot.  

b. 

a site’s required parking as set forth in Section 4.21 may be located 
in a front yard.   
Through the Sustainable Development Option as set forth in Section 12.01 of the Ordinance, 
relief may be granted to allow greater than fifty (50) percent of a site’s required parking to 
be located in a front yard.  

 
   

2. Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table (Page 101): Reclassify selective automotive 
limited automotive and transportation uses in the IB district from Special to Permitted.   Require 
that automobile uses within 300-feet of residential zoned or used property shall be reviewed as a 
special use as set forth in Article 9.  

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
2  P a g e  

 
Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table (Page 101): 
 

Automobile Use IB 
Vehicle, recreational vehicle sales S 
Vehicle repair stations S, P 
Vehicle fueling/multi-use stations S 
Vehicle washes S 
Vehicle auctions S 
Antique and classic vehicle sales S, P 
Ambulance facilities S, P 
Vehicle rental S, P 

 
Section 6.26.F. Vehicle Repair (Page 179): 
 
F. Any proposed vehicle repair use within three hundred (300) feet (measured from the 

nearest lot line to the nearest lot line on a straight-line basis) to any residential 
zoning district or any parcel used for residential purposes shall be reviewed as a 
special use as set forth in Article 9.  
 

Section 6.31. Antique Vehicle Sale, Ambulance Facility, and Vehicle Rental: 
 

A. Any proposed antique vehicle sale, ambulance facility, and vehicle rental use within 
three hundred (300) feet (measured from the nearest lot line to the nearest lot line on a 
straight-line basis) to any residential zoning district or any parcel used for residential 
purposes shall be reviewed as a special use as set forth in Article 9.  
 

3. Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations (p.100) and Section 6.16 Lodging (Page 174): Add 
Extended Stay Facilities as a use to the schedule of use regulations and add Extended Stay Facilities 
to the special use provisions of Lodging Facilities.   

 
Section 4.21: 

 
 R1-A 

through 
R1-E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Multiple 
Family 
Dwelling 
Unit (2-8 
stories) 

NP NP P P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Multiple 
Family 
Dwelling 
Unit (9 
stories + )  

NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Lodging NP NP NP NP NP NP NP S P P NP S NP NP NP 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
3  P a g e  

Extended 
Stay 
Facility 

NP NP S S NP NP NP S P P NP S NP NP NP 

 
Section 6.16. Lodging Facilities (Page 174): 
 
SECTION 6.16 LODGING FACILITIES / 

 
EXTENDED STAY FACILITIES 

Lodging/Extended Stay Facilities that includes a restaurant, bar/lounge, auditorium, exhibition, 
or public meeting space shall provide parking to accommodate all uses on the site, in 
accordance with the standards set forth in Section 13.06. 

 
4. Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table (Page 101): Add “Oil Change Facility” into 

Automotive/Transportation Use group.  Classify use as Permitted or Special based on district. 
 

Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 4.21: 
 

 R1-A 
through 
R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Vehicle Repair 
Facility 

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP NP S S NP NP NP S NP 

Oil Change Facility NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP NP P NP 

 
 

5. Section 4.21 Schedule of Use Regulations Table (Page 101): Add “Wireless Communication 
Facility (free standing tower)” into miscellaneous group.  Classify use as Permitted or Special based 
on district.  (Note: see section 6.30) 

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 4.21: 
 

 R1-A 
through 
R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility (complies 
with section 
6.30.B.1 ) 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility (free 

NP NP NP NP NP S NP S S S S S S S S 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
4  P a g e  

standing tower) 
 

 
6. Section 5.03 Form Based Districts Use Group by Category (Page 108): Add “Lodging” as use in 

Use Group 5 
 

Proposed Amendment Language: 
 

TABLE  5.03-A-1 
USE GROUPS BY CATEGORY 

PRINCIPAL USE 
Use Group 5 
Lodging 

Financial institutions 

General retail 

Retail, large-format 

Shopping centers 

Fitness, gymnastics, and exercise centers 

Theatres and places of assembly 

Indoor commercial recreation establishments 

Restaurant 

Personal services 

Business services 

Financial institutions 

General retail 

 
7. Section 5.03 Form Based Standards Applicable to All Districts (Page 110):  Add “Section C” to 

add specific landscaping requirements in the Form Based Districts.  
 

Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
Section 5.03.C: Landscaping in Form-Based Districts 
 

1. 

a. 

In addition to landscape requirements to Section 13.02, the following landscaping 
requirements shall apply:  

b. 

Supplemental to Section 13.02.E.1.a, a minimum of fifteen percent (15%) of the 
site area shall be comprised of landscape material. 
Landscaping can consist of approved trees, shrubs, ground cover, vines, grasses, 
or other approved plan material.  Up to twenty-five (25%) of the required 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
5  P a g e  

landscape area may be brink, stone, or pavers or other public plaza elements, 
but shall not include any parking area or required sidewalks.   

c. 

 

Up to twenty-five (25%) of the required landscape area may be relieved through 
the Sustainable Design Option as outlined in Section 12.01.    

8. Section 6.10.C.1 and C.2 (Page 170): Amend Section 6.10.C.1 and C.2 to reduce the width of 
drive-through drive-aisles from 12 feet to 10 feet. 

 
Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
Section 6.10.C.1 and C.2: 
 
Each drive-through facility shall provide stacking space meeting the following standards: 

1. Each stacking lane shall be one-way, and each stacking lane space shall be a minimum of 
twelve (12) ten (10) feet in width and twenty (20) feet in length. 

 
9. Add Section 6.31 (Page 170): Add Section 6.31 to allow 1 story multi-family residential uses as 

permitted uses in the IB districts only for conversion of existing buildings.  
 

Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 6.31:     Multi-family dwelling units in the IB District.  

A. One-story multi-family dwelling building is a permitted use in the IB district only through 
the conversion of an existing building.    

 
10. Section 7.13.I.4 (Page 199):  Amend the maximum duration for outdoor special events from four 

(4) to seven (7) days.   
 

Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 7.13.I.4: 
 
The maximum duration of use shall be four (4) seven (7) consecutive days for any one (1) event, 
including setup and takedown, not to exceed four (4) events within a period of twelve (12) 
calendar months. 
 

11. Section 16.03 (page 313): Add standards for rezoning  
 

Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
Section 16.03.C:  Standards for Approval.  A rezoning may only be approved upon a finding and 
determination that all of the following are satisfied: 

 
A. 

1. 

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Master Plan.  If the current zoning is in 
material conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the following:  

2. 
A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted 
A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
6  P a g e  

3. 
B. The proposed rezoning will not cause nor increase any non-conformity.   

An error in the Master Plan. 

C. Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be capable of 
accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the development.  

D. The rezoning will not impact public health, safety, and welfare. 
E. The rezoning will insure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 

 
12. Single-Family Districts: Amend Frontage requirements  

 
Proposed Amendment Language: 
 
• Add Lot Frontage Definition to Article 2: 
 
Lot Frontage: The frontage of any lot shall be the horizontal distance between the side lot lines 
measured between the points where said lot lines intersect the street right-of-way.  Said 
frontage shall be continuous and unbroken and shall be measured along the constructed portion 
of the right-of-way only.   
 
• Amend Table 4.06.C: 
 

Minimum Lot Size Per Dwelling Unit Maximum Height Minimum Yard Setback (R) (Per Lot in 
Feet) 

Minimum 
Floor Area 
Per Unit 
(Square Feet) 

Maximum % 
of Lot Area 
Covered by 
Buildings Use 

District 

Area 
in 

Sq.Ft 
(1) 

Width in 
Ft. (1) 

Frontage 
in Ft. (1) 

In Stories 
(2) 

In Feet 
(2) 

Front Sides Rear 

(3) 
Least 
One 
(4) 

Least 
Two 
(4) 

(5) 

R-1A 
No Sewer 30,000 150 150 2 ½ 

30 
40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

Sewer 21,780 120 120 2 ½ 40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 
R-1B 
No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 

30 
40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

Sewer 15,000 100 100 2 ½ 40 10 25 45 1,400 30% 
R-1C 
No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 

30 
30 15 30 40 1,200 30% 

Sewer 10,500 85 85 2 ½ 30 10 20 40 1,200 30% 
R-1D 
No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 

30 
25 15 30 40 1,000 30% 

Sewer 8,500 75 75 2 ½ 25 8 20 40 1,000 30% 
R-1E 
No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 

30 
25 15 30 35 1,000 30% 

Sewer 7,500 60 60 2 ½ 25 5 15 35 1,000 30% 

 
• Amended Section 4.06.D Supplemental District Standards to add frontage language 

regarding corner lots and cul-de-sacs: 
 

Section 4.06.D.6:  Lot Frontage on Corner Lots, Curved Roads, and Cul-de-Sacs 
a. On all corner lots, the frontage set forth shall be measured on one (1) street only.   
b. For lots on curved streets that have curvilinear frontages, frontage shall be determined 

by measuring the linear distance along the curve. 
c. In the event that the lot is situated on a cul-de-sac, the frontage, shall be measured 

along the minimum setback line for the zone in which said lot is located.   
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
7  P a g e  

 

Minor: 
 
1. Section 3.10.C.1.c and d (page 41): Remove mention that the Planning Commission is the 

recommending body for Site Condominiums as the Planning Commission is the approving body, as 
outlined in Section 3.10.C.2. 

 
2. Section 4.07 Table (page 51): Amend “5,000 without sewers “to “5,000 with sewers” and reduce 

side yard to 5’ for least one and 15’ for least two.  Reducing side yard setbacks is consistent with R-
1E lot requirements.   

 
Minimum Lot Size Per Dwelling Unit Maximum Height Minimum Yard Setback  Minimum 

Floor Area 
Per Unit 
(Square 
Feet) 

Maximum % of 
Lot Area Covered 
by Buildings 

Area in 
Sq.Ft (1) 

Width in 
Ft. (1) 

Frontage in 
Ft.  

In 
Stories 

(2) 
In Feet (2) 

Front Sides Rear 
  

(3) 
Least 

One (4) 
Least 

Two (4) 
(5) 

15,000 
without 
sewers 

75 N/A 
2 ½ 

 
30 25 

10  
5 

20 
15 

35 
1,000 

 
30% 

 5,000 
without 
sewers 

40 40 

 
3. Section 4.14 Graphic (page 75): Amend graphic to include an additional building mid-block (no 

substantive change to regulations).  New Graphic:  

 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
8  P a g e  

 
4. Section 4.06-4:18 (pgs. 47, 51, 55, 59,65, 71, 53, 75, 79, 83, 87, and 91): Amend all district 

regulation tables so that legend icon is consistent in both graphic and tables.  Example below:  
 

 
 
 
5. Section 4.21 Schedule of Regulations Table (page 98): Amend “R-T” to “RT” 
 
6. Section 4.21 Schedule of Regulations Table (Page 99): Add “P” to Retail, large-format for CB 

district 
 
7. Section 5.03 Form Based Districts Use Groups by Category Table (Page 108): Remove bold 

and underline from “Drive-through facilities” 
 
8. Section 5.04, Section 5.05, and Section 5.06 Form Based District Use Groups Permitted 

Table (Page 133, 143, and 158): Amend “Table 5.03-1” to “Table 5.03-A-1”   
 
9. Section 6.26, Section 6.27, and Section 6.28 (Page 179): Change text color to black for “Vehicle 

Repair”, “Vehicle Sales –New, Used, and Vintage”, and “Vehicle Fueling / Multi-Use Station”  
 
10. Section 6.30.B.2 (Page 182): Amend “Section 6.29.B.1” to “6.30.B.1” 
 



Carlisle Wortman Associates, Inc. 
9  P a g e  

11. Section 10.04.E.2 (Page 225): Amend “Section 10.04.E.2” to refer to “Section 10.04.D”  
 
12. Section 12.04.F.1 and 2.a.i (Page 251): Amend “R-1T” to “RT” 
 
13. Section 13.02 (Page 276): Add the following label to table: “Table 13.02-C: Minimum Size and 

Spacing Requirements for Landscaping Materials” 
 
14. Section 13.05.C.3 (Page 282): Amend Section 13.05.C.3: Amend “in an industrial district where” 

to say “in the IB or PV districts when” 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions.   
 
 
 
 

 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 
  
 
 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous 

Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
 

Mr. Savidant and Mr. Carlisle dually presented the report prepared by Carlisle/Wortman 
Associates, Inc.  The report explained that the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance was 
adopted in April 2011.  It is common that a year or so after the adoption of a new zoning 
ordinance, staff, planning commissioners, and outside interests identify specific 
language and other clarifications that need further discussion and potential amendments.  
Many of the proposed amendments are minor (capitalization, consistency in labeling, 
etc); however, some considerations for amendments are substantive.   
 
The non-substantive amendments listed in the report were not discussed.  The Planning 
Commission members were asked to review those items on their own.  Any suggestions 
would be shared with the Planning Commission at a later meeting.  
 
The Planning Commission discussed the twelve substantive items proposed in the 
report.  They reached consensus on all items.   
 
Mr. Savidant stated the Planning Department would revise the proposed language as 
agreed upon by the Planning Commission and return with revised language at a future 
date. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 244  Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions\Minutes\2012 09 25 PC Minutes Excerpt.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 9, 2012 
  

 
 

 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous 

Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
 
There was general discussion of proposed text amendment language. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 244  Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions\Minutes\2012 10 09 PC Minutes Excerpt.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 23, 2012 
  
 
 

 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous 

Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
 
The Planning Commission discussed and reached consensus on four items: 
 

1. Parking in front yard. 
 
2. Regulations of extended stay facilities. 
 
3. Spacing provisions for used automobile dealerships. 
 
4. Rezoning Rochester Villas from R-1D to RT. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 244  Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions\Minutes\2012 10 23 PC Minutes Excerpt.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 8, 2013 
  
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number 

ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the proposed amendment changes to the April 2011 Zoning 
Ordinance.  He asked if the Board had any comments and for a recommendation 
to City Council for approval of the proposed revisions. 
 
Mr. Edmunds requested the correction of the spelling of “insure” to “ensure”. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-01-005 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13 and 16 of Chapter 39 of the Code 
of the City of Troy, which includes miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance revisions, be 
amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



February 18, 2013 



• Zoning Ordinance was adopted in April 2011 
• After one year or so of use and application it is common to 

address clarifications and amendment if necessary 

 

• 26 amendments total: 
• 12 substantive 
• 14 minor (capitalization, consistency in labeling) 

 

• 4 meetings with Planning Commission 
• Public Hearing held on January 8th  
• Forwarded unanimously 

 

 



• Allow parking in front of building in CB, GB, O, and RC   
 

• Issue:   

• Due to the definition of front yard, parking is not permitted 
in the front of any building CB, GB, O, and RC districts.  
 

• A limited parking in front of the building should be 
permitted.   
 

• Existing language in ordinance mitigates concerns that 
parking would dominate parking in the front yard.   
 

 



• No more than 50% of the required onsite parking may 
be located in the front yard. 

• Additional parking in front yard may be provided 
through Sustainable Development Option 

EX: 
 
8,000 sq.ft general retail building 
requires 32 spaces.   
 
Only 16 of those spaces may be 
located in front of building.  

Front Yard Line 

Setback Line 



• Allow selective automotive and transportation uses in IB 
Districts permitted by-right: 
• Vehicle repair 
• Antique and classic vehicle sales 
• Ambulance facilities 
• Vehicle rental  
 

• Require special use for these uses within 300-feet of a 
residentially zoned or used parcel.  
• Protect single-family properties 

 
 



Allow selective auto uses as permitted in IB 
Proposed Amendment Language: 

Use IB 
Vehicle, recreational vehicle sales S 
Vehicle repair stations S, P 
Vehicle fueling/multi-use stations S 
Vehicle washes S 
Vehicle auctions S 
Antique and classic vehicle sales S, P 
Ambulance facilities S, P 
Vehicle rental S, P 



• Add Extended Stay Facilities in Ordinance 
and regulate similar to hotel / lodging use.   
 

• Issue 
• Use not listed in Ordinance  
• At least two (2) exist in City 

 

 



Section 4.21 
 
 

 

 

  R1-A 
throu
gh R-
1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Multiple Family 
Dwelling Unit (9 
stories + )  

NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP P NP NP NP NP NP 

Lodging NP NP NP NP NP NP NP S P P NP S NP NP NP 

Extended Stay 
Facility 

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP S P P NP S NP NP NP 

Section 6.16: Lodging Facilities and Extended Stay Facilities 
 

Lodging/extended stay facilities that includes a restaurant, 
bar/lounge, auditorium, exhibition, or public meeting space 
shall provide parking to accommodate all uses on the site, in 
accordance with the standards set forth in Section 13.06 

 
 



• Add “Oil Change Facility” into Automotive/Transportation Use 
group.  Classify use as Permitted.  
 

• Issue:   
• Oil change facilities are not a listed use in the Schedule of Use 

Regulations.  
• In previous practice oil facilities were treated similar to vehicle 

repair.  
• Vehicle repair has defined supplemental use regulations as 

listed in Section 6.26, some of which are not applicable to oil 
change facility operations.    

 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
   R1-A 

through 
R-1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

 
Vehicle  

 
Repair  

 
Facility 

 
NP  

NP  
NP  

NP  
NP  

NP  
NP  

NP  
S  

S 
 P 

 
NP  

NP  
NP  

S  
NP 

Oil 
Change 
Facility 

NP NP NP NP NP NP NP P P P NP NP NP P NP 



• Add “Wireless Communication Facility (free standing 
tower)” into miscellaneous group.  Classify use as Permitted 
or Special based on district.  

 

• Issue:   
• Use not listed in the Schedule of Use Regulations but have specific 

use standards outlined in Section 6.30 
• New proposed free standing towers require Special Use.     
• Wireless communication facilities located on existing structures are 

permitted in all districts provided that they meet those supplemental 
use regulations listed in Section 6.30.B.1.  

 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
 

  R1-A 
throu
gh R-
1E 

RT MR UR MHP CF EP CB GB IB O OM RC PV P 

Miscellaneous  

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility (complies 
with section 
6.30.B.1 ) 

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

Wireless 
Communication 
Facility (free 
standing tower) 

NP NP NP NP NP S NP S S S S S S S S 



• Add “Lodging” as use in Use Group 5 
 

• Issue:   
• Not a listed use in the form-based code.   
• Previously required to go through a P.U.D. process.   
• Not including this use was an oversight of the previous draft.   
• Adding lodging to the code is consistent with the Master 

Plan and would clarify the intent of the zoning ordinance.   
 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
 

TABLE  5.03-A-1 
USE GROUPS BY CATEGORY 

PRINCIPAL USE 
Use Group 5 

Lodging 
    Financial institutions 
    General retail 
    Retail, large-format 
    Shopping centers 
    Fitness, gymnastics, and exercise centers 
    Theatres and places of assembly 
    Indoor commercial recreation establishments 
    Restaurant 
    Personal services 
    Business services 
    Financial institutions 
    General retail 



• Add “Section C” to add specific landscaping 
requirements in the Form-Based Districts.  

 
• Issue:   

• Section 13.02 outlines Landscaping requirements.   
• A 20% landscaping requirement for developments in the more 

urban and pedestrian oriented Form-Based districts might not be 
appropriate.   
• Building form requirements and the desire to build more 

“urban” style developments make 20% site landscaping 
difficult to obtain.    

• Looking at other ordinances including City of Omaha and the 
City of Chicago, we recommend reducing the total percentage 
of site landscaping to 15% with options for relief.   
 

 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 
Section 5.03.C: Landscaping in Form-Based Districts: 
 

I. In addition to landscape requirements to Section 13.02, the 
following landscaping requirements shall apply: 

a) Supplemental to Section 13.02.E.1.a, a minimum of fifteen 
percent (15%) of the site area shall be comprised of 
landscape material. 

b) Landscaping can consist of approved trees, shrubs, ground 
cover, vines, grasses, or other approved plan material.  Up to 
twenty-five (25%) of the required landscape area may be 
brink, stone, or pavers or other public plaza elements, but shall 
not include any parking area or required sidewalks.   

c) Up to twenty-five (25%) of the required landscape area may 
be relieved through the Sustainable Design Option as outlined 
in Section 12.01.    

 
 

 

 



EXAMPLE: LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENT IN FORM-BASED DISTRICT 

Site Area 15% required 
landscaping 

50% of 15% of 
required 
landscaping 
(greenscape) 

25% of 15% 
of required 
landscaping 
(hardscape) 

25% of 15% of 
required landscaping 
can be relived through 
sustainable design 
option 

100,000 sq/ft 15,000 sq/ft 7,500 sq/ft  3,750 sq/ft 3,750 sq/ft 

 

 



• Reduce the width of drive-through aisles from 12 
feet to 10 feet.  
 

• Issue:   

• The requirement of a 12-foot width for drive-through aisles 
is not necessary.  

• Reducing the width will  
• not cause additional traffic conflict;  
• allow additional area for both building or landscaped area; and 
• have the added effect of naturally reducing automobile speed.   

• The ten (10) foot drive-through aisle width is consistent with what was 
recently passed for bank uses in the Big Beaver form based district.  

 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 

Section 6.10.C.1 and C.2: 
1. Each drive-through facility shall provide stacking space meeting the 
following standards: 

a. Each stacking lane shall be one-way, and each stacking lane space 
shall be a minimum of twelve (12) ten (10) feet in width and twenty 
(20) feet in length. 

 
 

 

 



• Add Section 6.31 to allow 1-story multi-family residential uses as 
permitted uses only for conversion of existing buildings.  
 

• Issue:   
• The IB District permits a multitude of uses by-right   
• In any district, the current ordinance prevents the construction of one-story 

multi-family dwelling units.  
• The intent of requiring multiple story multi-family structures is to 

require greater massing and scale.   
• There are many existing one story buildings in the IB District that could be 

converted into multi-family.  
• Provides reuse of buildings 
• Provides alternative housing option 
• The proposed amendment to allow one-story multi-family dwelling 

units is only permitted for existing building in the IB district.   

 
 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 

Section 6.31:     Multi-family dwelling units in the IB District.  
1. One-story multi-family dwelling building is a permitted 

use in the IB district only through the conversion of an 
existing building.    

 
 

 

 



• Amend the maximum duration for outdoor special events 
from four (4) to seven (7) days.   
 

• Issue:   
• Section 7.13.1.4 limits outdoor special events to a maximum of 

four (4) consecutive days.   
• Includes on-site event preparation, setup, and cleanup. 

• Troy Family Daze is an example  
• Extending provides the necessary time to setup for the event, 

hold the event, and cleanup.   

 
 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 

Section 7.13.I.4: 
 
1. The maximum duration of use shall be four (4) seven (7) 

consecutive days for any one (1) event, including setup and 
takedown, not to exceed four (4) events within a period of 
twelve (12) calendar months. 

 
 

 

 



• Add Rezoning Standards  
 

• Issue:   

• Standards for conditional rezoning but no standards for a 
straight rezoning.   

• The ordinance should include standards for the Planning 
Commission and ultimately the City Council to consider in 
regards to rezoning.    

• Such standards include consistency with Master Plan;  
impact upon health, safety and welfare; impact upon public 
facilities, etc. 

 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 

Section 16.03.C:  Standards for Approval.  A rezoning may only 
be approved upon a finding and determination that all of the 
following are satisfied: 
  

A. The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Master Plan.  If the current zoning is 
in material conflict with the Master Plan, such conflict is due to one of the 
following:  
1.  A change in City policy since the Master Plan was adopted 
2.  A change in conditions since the Master Plan was adopted. 
3.  An error in the Master Plan. 

B.  The proposed rezoning will not cause nor increase any non-conformity.   
C.  Public services and facilities affected by a proposed development will be 

capable of accommodating service and facility loads caused by use of the 
development.  

D.  The rezoning will not impact public health, safety, and welfare. 
E.  The rezoning will insure compatibility with adjacent uses of land. 
 

 

 

 



• Add Frontage Requirements 
 

• Issue:   
• There is not a minimum lot frontage requirement for lots in the 

R-1 districts.   
• The requirement of minimum lot frontage ensures that newly 

created lots will be able to comply with all site development 
standards.   

• Requiring a minimum lot frontage would ensure that the 
creation of new lots have the necessary access with the 
extension of a road.   

• A lack of minimum lot frontage requirement would allow the 
creation of a new lot by extending the road as a driveway.   



Proposed 
Requirements 

Road Ends 

Minimum Frontage 
requires continuation 
of road (rather than 
driveway) to build 
on this lot.  



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 

• Add Lot Frontage Definition to Article 2: 
 

• Lot Frontage: The frontage of any lot shall be the 
horizontal distance between the side lot lines measured 
between the points where said lot lines intersect the 
street right-of-way.  Said frontage shall be continuous 
and unbroken and shall be measured along the 
constructed portion of the right-of-way only.   

 
 

 

 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
 

• Amend Table 4.06.C: 
 

 
 

 

 

Minimum Lot Size Per Dwelling Unit Maximum Height Minimum Yard Setback (R) (Per Lot in Feet) Minimum Floor 
Area Per Unit 
(Square Feet) 

Maximum % of Lot 
Area Covered by 
Buildings 

Use District Area in 
Sq.Ft (1) 

Width in Ft. 
(1) Frontage in Ft. (1) 

In 
Stories 

(2) 
In Feet (2) 

Front Sides Rear 

(3) Least One 
(4) 

Least Two 
(4) (5) 

R-1A 

No Sewer 30,000 150 150 2 ½ 
30 

40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

Sewer 21,780 120 120 2 ½ 40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

R-1B 

No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 
30 

40 15 30 45 1,400 30% 

Sewer 15,000 100 100 2 ½ 40 10 25 45 1,400 30% 

R-1C 

No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 
30 

30 15 30 40 1,200 30% 

Sewer 10,500 85 85 2 ½ 30 10 20 40 1,200 30% 

R-1D 

No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 
30 

25 15 30 40 1,000 30% 

Sewer 8,500 75 75 2 ½ 25 8 20 40 1,000 30% 

R-1E 

No Sewer 21,780 110 110 2 ½ 
30 

25 15 30 35 1,000 30% 

Sewer 7,500 60 60 2 ½ 25 5 15 35 1,000 30% 



Proposed Amendment Language:  
  
1. Section 4.06.D.6:  Lot Frontage on Corner Lots, Curved 

Roads, and cul-de-Sacs 
a) On all corner lots, the frontage set forth shall be measured 

on one (1) street only.   
b) For lots on curved streets that have curvilinear frontages, 

frontage shall be determined by measuring the linear 
distance along the curve along the minimum setback line for 
the zone in which said lot is located. 

c) For lots on a cul-de-sac, the frontage, shall be measured 
along the minimum setback line for the zone in which said 
lot is located.   

 
 

 

 



1. Section 3.10.C.1.c and d (page 41): Remove mention that 
the Planning Commission is the recommending body for 
Site Condominiums as the Planning Commission is the 
approving body, as outlined in Section 3.10.C.2. 
 

2. Section 4.07 Table (page 51): Amend “5,000 without 
sewers “to “5,000 with sewers” and reduce side yard to 
5’ for least one and 15’ for least two.  Reducing side yard 
setbacks is consistent with R-1E lot requirements.   
 

3. Section 4.14 Graphic (page 75): Amend graphic to 
include an additional building mid-block (no substantive 
change to regulations). 

 
 

 

 



4. Section 4.06-4:18 (pgs. 47, 51, 55, 59,65, 71, 53, 75, 79, 83, 87, and 
91): Amend all district regulation tables so that legend icon is consistent 
in both graphic and tables. 
 

5. Section 4.21 Schedule of Regulations Table (page 98): Amend “R-T” to 
“RT” 
 

6. Section 4.21 Schedule of Regulations Table (Page 99): Add “P” to 
Retail, large-format for CB district 
 

7. Section 5.03 Form Based Districts Use Groups by Category Table 
(Page 108): Remove bold and underline from “Drive-through facilities” 
 

8. Section 5.04, Section 5.05, and Section 5.06 Form Based District Use 
Groups Permitted Table (Page 133, 143, and 158): Amend “Table 5.03-
1” to “Table 5.03-A-1”   
 

  
 
 

 

 



9. Section 6.26, Section 6.27, and Section 6.28 (Page 179): Change 
text color to black for “Vehicle Repair”, “Vehicle Sales –New, Used, 
and Vintage”, and “Vehicle Fueling / Multi-Use Station”  
 

10. Section 6.30.B.2 (Page 182): Amend “Section 6.29.B.1” to “6.30.B.1” 
 

11. Section 10.04.E.2 (Page 225): Amend “Section 10.04.E.2” to refer to 
“Section 10.04.D”  
 

12. Section 12.04.F.1 and 2.a.i (Page 251): Amend “R-1T” to “RT” 
 

13. Section 13.02 (Page 276): Add the following label to table: “Table 
13.02-C: Minimum Size and Spacing Requirements for Landscaping 
Materials” 
 

14. Section 13.05.C.3 (Page 282): Amend Section 13.05.C.3: Amend “in 
an industrial district where” to say “in the IB or PV districts when” 

 
 
 

 

 



February 18, 2013 



 

 
 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

  
Date:             February 25, 2013              
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Tim Richnak, Public Works Director 

Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
  Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
 
Subject: DTE Energy Solar Currents Proposal 
 

 
Solar Project Developers, GenPoint Energy and Inovateus, approached the City of Troy 
in an effort to identify potential sites for inclusion in a response to a Request For 
Proposal (RFP) issued by DTE Energy for DTE’s Solar Currents program.  The RFP 
sought project developers to build and transfer solar systems for DTE.  DTE is seeking 
to build approximately a 1 Megawatt solar panel system in Troy.  DTE is also reviewing 
other potential sites in Michigan.  DTE would generate power from this and other 
statewide sites as a part of its commitment to have at least 10% of its power originate 
from renewable energy sources.   
 
DTE has targeted the site adjacent to northbound I-75 (east of I-75) and south of Long 
Lake Road (map attached) for this project.  This City owned property was acquired 
several years ago for a proposed, but never built, off ramp from northbound I-75.  The 
Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) has deleted the interchange ramp 
project from its 2035 Regional Transportation Plan for Southeast Michigan.   
 
DTE is proposing to use approximately four acres of the target site for the solar panel 
system.  A 20-year lease of the site is being proposed by DTE which would generate 
annual lease payments to the City in an amount to be negotiated.  All project expenses, 
including maintenance, would be borne by DTE Energy.  In addition to annual lease 
payments, consideration will be given by DTE to providing a public amenity on the site, 
such as a small public park. 
 
Some factors to consider include the following: 
 

• The City of Troy, as reflected in the 2008 Master Plan, is interested in initiatives 
that advance green technology and renewable energy solutions.   

• This is expected to be Michigan’s largest solar field installation to date. 

• The City of Troy would generate annual lease revenues for a non-income 
generating property.  However, lease payments may not necessarily be at a level 

stewartc
Text Box
I-04



 

 
 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  

 considered to be adequate for this particular parcel.  An acceptable lease 
payment would need to be negotiated as a part of the Lease Agreement.  

• The approximately four-acre property would be obligated for the 20-year lease 
period.   

• Potential for park development by DTE Energy at the site. 

• Unlike wind turbines, cell towers or other electrical power installations, these 
solar panels would be ground mounted (about 3 feet in height) and relatively 
unobtrusive. 

• At the end of the lease period, DTE Energy would be responsible for system 
removal and restoration of the site. 

• DTE Energy would own all the solar equipment, related systems and all energy 
generated from the system. 
   

Representatives from GenPoint Energy and Inovateus are scheduled to make a 
presentation to City Council at its March 4, 2013 meeting.  They will be available to 
answer any questions as well. 
 
If there is interest in moving forward with this proposed project, a negotiated Lease 
Agreement would need to be executed by April 17th.  The Solar Project Developers 
would need to follow normal local government approval processes, including site plan 
review and any special use approval from the Planning Commission.    
 
Recommendation 
 
City Council to determine whether or not there is interest to proceed with the next step 
of this proposed project which is for the City Attorney and City Manager to negotiate a 
Lease Agreement between the City of Troy and DTE Energy to present to City Council 
at a future meeting.   
 
 
_____________________________________              _________________________ 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality             Date 
 
 
 
Attachments 
 

1. GenPoint Energy and Inovateus PowerPoint presentation. 
2. Map of proposed site. 
3. Frequently Asked Questions. 

 

 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, 
surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are 
hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Legend

February 28, 2013Created:

Map Scale:  1=

Proposed Property for DTE 
Solar Currents Project

Description:

686



DTE SolarCurrents 2012 Program   
Solar Site Host Opportunity 

GENPOINT ENERGY 



DTE SolarCurrents – Site Host Opportunity 

  

• On September 28, 2012, DTE issued an RFP for bids from project 
developers to build and transfer solar systems under the DTE-
owned portion of its SolarCurrents program 

• As a solar developer/contractor team, GenPoint Energy and 
Inovateus Solar worked with Troy city officials to submit various 
Troy sites for Phase I consideration on 12/21/2012. 

• Of more than 90 sites proposed in Phase I, the Troy I-75/Long 
Lake Road site is one of less than ten sites short-listed for Phase II 
consideration. 

• Phase II timing : Detailed proposals are due 4/17/2013 

• Project awards/construction: DTE expects final awards by June 
2013, with permitting and construction to commence and be 
completed by 12/31/2013 

 GENPOINT ENERGY 



Benefits to Troy as Site Host 

  

• No expenses or capital costs – the developer/contractor will 
develop the project at its expense; DTE will buy the project 
assets from the developer/contractor and own/maintain the 
system over its 20 year life 

• The project will generate an annual lease payment to City of 
Troy for the site easement 

• City of Troy will have full rights to publicize the project as 
part of its green initiatives 

• Educational benefits – DTE to provide informational kiosk 

GENPOINT ENERGY 



Project Overview 

  

GENPOINT ENERGY 

Project Description 

• This site was proposed to DTE as a 
host location for DTE’s 
SolarCurrents program.  

• The proposed 1 MW solar array 
will be located on approximately 5 
acres of undeveloped city-owned 
land at the southeast corner of I-75 
and Long Lake Road.  

• DTE believes this is a high quality 
site based on physical 
characteristics and visibility from I-
75.  

• If approved by the City of Troy and 
selected by DTE, this site will host 
one of the largest solar arrays in 
Michigan.   

• The solar PV array will be fully paid 
for, constructed, and operated by 
DTE. 

• To satisfy Phase II requirements, 
the site host (Troy) will need to 
approve and execute a 20-year site 
easement agreement. 

• Phase II submissions are due April 
17, 2013.   

 



GENPOINT ENERGY 

Ground Mount Solar Installations 



Next Steps 

  

• Contingent approval of the easement agreement 

• Subject to legal review and approval 

• Subject to negotiation of acceptable financial 
terms 

• Planning Commission review and approval 

GENPOINT ENERGY 



Appendix 



Partners on the DTE SolarCurrents 2012 RFP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Site 
Origination 

Design 

• Site Assessment 
• Lease Option /Letter of 

Intent 
 

Build 
Own and 
Operate 

GenPoint Energy Inovateus Solar DTE Energy 

Roles of The Development Team and DTE Energy 

• Detailed System Engineering 
• Permitting and Interconnection 
• Procurement & Construction 

Site Host 

Lease Option/Letter of Intent 
Easement 

Agreement 
Lease 

Payments 

• Buy Project at COD 
• Own ,Operate, 

Maintain the System 

GENPOINT ENERGY 



About Inovateus Solar and GenPoint Energy 

Inovateus Solar:  

• Started in 2003  with the mission of promoting the solution to our country’s growing 
energy problems; experience in many large-scale photovoltaic installations worldwide. 

• Inovateus Solar, LLC has put together a strong portfolio of projects that we have 
constructed and supplied materials for. 

• We are capable of constructing the highest quality solar rooftop, ground mount, or 
carport system at the most competitive price. 

• By partnering with several of the world’s largest electrical contractors and roofing 
companies, Inovateus Solar has been successful in working with large organizations all 
across the country. 

GenPoint Energy:  

• Started in 2012 by solar industry veterans to focus on project development in Michigan 

• Project resume includes commercial rooftop, ground mount, and solar landfill covers 

GENPOINT ENERGY 



Collectively, we have developed and constructed solar projects both with 
local Michigan clients, as well as throughout North America:  

 

• Detroit Edison Company 

• Dayton Power & Light 

• Consolidated Edison  

• City of Greenville, MI 

• General Motors 

• Marathon Oil 

• University of Notre Dame 

• Toronto Renewable  

       Energy Cooperative 

Clients / Past Projects 

• General Electric  

• IKEA 

• Hubert Corporation 

• Schneider Electric 

• Sears Corporation 

• United Parcel Service  

• Hartz Mountain   

• Toys R Us 

• Republic Services 

GENPOINT ENERGY 



Examples of Inovateus Projects 

Ford Motor – Wayne, MI – 500kW Ballasted Ground Mount 

City Airport - Greenville, MI – 180kW Metal Roof  Installation 

GE Carports – Plainfield, CT– 100kW Integrated Carports 

Kari-Out Corp – Totowa, NJ – 1.29 MW Ballasted Rooftop 

GENPOINT ENERGY 

Additional project references can be found at: 
http://inovateussolar.com/project-profiles  

http://inovateussolar.com/project-profiles
http://inovateussolar.com/project-profiles
http://inovateussolar.com/project-profiles
http://inovateussolar.com/project-profiles
http://inovateussolar.com/project-profiles


DTE Educational Kiosk 

  

GENPOINT ENERGY 



 

Prepared for the City of Troy by Inovateus Solar and GenPoint Energy 

QUESTIONS/ANSWERS FOR PROPOSED GROUND-MOUNTED SOLAR 
PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM IN TROY 

What is the proposed project? 

DTE has proposed to construct a solar photovoltaic (PV) installation on approximately four acres of city-
owned property located at the southeast corner of I-75 and Long Lake Road.  If approved, the City of Troy 
will enter into a long term lease of the city-owned property to DTE.  The property otherwise is expected to 
be undeveloped.  DTE will pay for all costs of the installation and will be responsible for maintaining the site 
and the solar PV system during the 20-year term of the lease.  The site of the solar installation will be 
fenced for safety and security. 

What are the benefits to the city? 

The city will be paid rent during the lease term. The rent amount is a negotiated amount comparable to 
lease rates paid by DTE at other sites in Michigan but adjusted for market conditions following negotiations 
with city managers. If constructed, Troy will be host to one of the largest solar PV installations in the state.  
The construction of solar installations in Troy is consistent with the goals of the 2008 Master Plan to 
increase alternative energy supply in Troy.   

What impact will it have on adjacent property? 

The impact on adjacent property is considered negligible.  There may be some minor increased traffic or 
noise during construction, which is estimated to take 3-4 months.  The nearest residential neighborhoods 
are separated from the location by an existing berm that shields the residential areas from I-75. To make 
the site suitable for locating a solar installation, ground cover and trees that could impair visibility and 
performance of the system will be removed. 

How much energy will be generated from the PV installation? 

The proposed 1 megawatt installation will produce an estimated 1,114,000 kWh hours of electricity 
annually.  The clean solar energy produced by the system will be equivalent to the energy used by 
approximately 75 homes over one year and will reduce annual greenhouse gas emissions equivalent to 
operating 150 passenger vehicles. 

What, if any, health risks do chemicals used in solar panels and other devices used in solar PV 
arrays pose if they are released into the environment? 

Because PV panel materials are enclosed and do not mix with water or vaporize into the air, there is 
negligible risk of chemical releases to the environment during normal use. The most common type of PV 
panels are made of strong tempered glass and conform to state and federal fire safety, electrical, and 
building codes. Transformers used at PV installations are similar to the ones used throughout the electricity 
distribution system in Troy already.  Modern electrical transformers typically use non-toxic coolants which if 
released are not expected to present a risk to human health. Any releases of toxic materials from solid state 
inverters installed at a solar PV installation are unlikely provided appropriate electrical and installation 
requirements are followed. 

What, if any, health risks do the electric and magnetic fields (EMF) from solar panels and other 
components of solar PV arrays pose? 

Solar PV panels, inverters, and other components that make up solar PV installations produce extremely 
low frequency EMF when generating and transmitting electricity. The extremely low frequency EMF from 
PV arrays is about the same that people are exposed to from household electrical appliances, wiring in 
buildings, and power transmission lines (all at the power frequency of 60 hertz). In industry studies, the 



 

Prepared for the City of Troy by Inovateus Solar and GenPoint Energy 

magnetic field levels at the boundary areas of comparable solar PV site were in a very low range, below the 
typical levels experienced by most people at home.  A concise summary of issues regarding solar PV and 
electromagnetic fields was prepared by the State of Oregon in connection with a large proposed PV 
installation, and can be found here: www.oregon.gov/odot/hwy/oipp/docs/emfconcerns.pdf.  

How do ground-mounted solar PV arrays adjacent to residential neighborhoods influence the 
property values in those neighborhoods? 

There is little evidence that ground-mounted solar arrays influence nearby property values.  Some research 
concludes that residential solar PV installations increase the home property values on the houses on which 
they are installed. 

What public safety issues arise from people’s (including children) access areas where the solar 
arrays are installed? Can electrical and other equipment associated with solar projects cause 
electrical fires? 

This site, like most ground-mounted solar PV arrays, will be enclosed by fencing. This prevents children and 
the general public from coming into contact with the installations, thus preventing unsafe situations. The 
National Electric Code has mandatory requirements to promote the electrical safety of solar PV arrays. The 
solar industry and firefighters provide training and education for emergency personnel to ensure that the 
proper safety precautions are taken.  Leading solar PV modules are certified to Underwriters Laboratories 
(UL) safety standards for electrical devices. 

Do the inverters, transformers or other equipment used as part of ground-mounted solar PV 
create noise that will impact the surrounding neighborhood? 

Ground-mounted solar PV array inverters and transformers make a humming noise during daytime, when 
the array generates electricity.   At 50 to 150 feet from the boundary of the arrays, any sound from the 
inverters is typically inaudible. Sound levels along the fenced boundary of the planned PV system are 
expected to be at background levels. 

How significant is glare and potential visual impacts from solar projects? 

Solar panels are designed to absorb solar energy and convert it into electricity.  Any reflective light 
therefore represents a loss in the amount of energy that is created.   Most new PV panels are designed with 
anti-reflective coatings on the front glass surface that improves the ability of the PV module to absorb light 
and therefore increase solar energy production.  These anti-reflective coatings minimize the amount of 
reflection and, therefore, glare.  Many projects throughout the U.S. and the world have been installed near 
airports with no impact on flight operations. Also, design of the array, including the proper utilization of 
trees and berms, can minimize any potential glare to surrounding areas. 

Will the solar PV site attract birds or small animals? 

As with other structures in open areas, birds or small animals may tend to seek out the small cracks and 
crevices of the solar array frame to take residence.  The frame structures are designed with caps of any 
openings that might be attractive to animals.  DTE will be responsible for operating and maintaining the 
system on a routine basis and will clean the site and the array to minimize opportunities for small animals 
or birds to settle. 

Will signs be located at the site of the solar installation? 

As part of its solar program, DTE requires that signage be installed identifying the solar array as constructed 
and owned by DTE.  Any signage will comply with the City of Troy sign ordinance requirements.   

http://www.oregon.gov/odot/hwy/oipp/docs/emfconcerns.pdf




 
 
Date:   February 25, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From:   Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
   Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
   Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
Subject:  2013 Tri-Party Program – Concrete Slab Replacements on County Roads  
 
 

History: 
The Tri-Party Program provides funding for projects on County Roads.  The City has directed these 
funds to concrete slab replacement on County roads for the past several years.  The 2013 Tri-Party 
agreement includes the remainder of the 2012 additional funds ($232,330) plus the new 2013 
allocation of $300,748 for a total 2013 Tri-Party program amount of $533,078.  Several communities 
have dropped out of the Tri-Party program as they are not able or willing to provide the 1/3 local 
match and as such Troy’s share of the program has been increased. 
 
Project locations for the remainder of the 2012 program and new 2013 program are: 
 

• Crooks at I-75 
• Long Lake crossovers, east and west of Livernois 
• Livernois, south of Long Lake 
• Big Beaver at Troy Sports (spot repair) 

 
Should funds be available after the worst areas are completed, other areas on County roads would 
be identified to maximize the benefit received by the Tri-Party program funds.  These funds are not 
sufficient to complete all necessary repairs on County Roads, but will be used to address only the 
worst locations.  Specific locations would be identified in the field in coordination with the RCOC prior 
to work commencing. 
 
Financial: 
The City of Troy’s share of the Tri-Party program is one-third (1/3) or $177,692 of the total amount.  
The remaining two-thirds (2/3) or $355,386 is shared equally by the Board and the Oakland County 
Board of Commissioners (County).     
 
Funds for the City of Troy’s share are included in the 2012-2013 Major Road fund and proposed 
2013-2014 Major Road fund.  Funds in the proposed budget year would not be expended until after 
July 1, 2013. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-05



2 
 

  
 2013 Tri-Party Program – Concrete Slab Replacements on County Roads 
 February 25, 2013 
 

Recommendation:  
Staff recommends that City Council approve the attached Cost Participation Agreement between the 
City of Troy and the Board of Road Commissioners for Oakland County (Board) for the 2013 Tri-
Party Program to be used for concrete slab replacements on County Roads at an estimated cost to 
the City of Troy of $177,692.  Furthermore, staff recommends that the Mayor and City Clerk be 
authorized to execute the agreements.    
 
 
WJH/wjhG:\Funding Issues\TRIPARTY\2013\To CC re 2013 Tri Party for Slab Work.docx 



















COST PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT 
2013 Concrete Slab Replacement 

Crooks Road, Long Lake Road, Livernois Road, Big Beaver Road 
City of Troy 

Board Project No. 51751 
 
 

This Agreement, made and entered into this    day of ________________, 2013, 

by and between the Board of Road Commissioners for the County of Oakland, Michigan, 

hereinafter referred to as the BOARD, and the City of Troy, hereinafter referred to as the 

COMMUNITY, provides as follows: 

WHEREAS, the BOARD and the COMMUNITY have programmed the concrete slab 

replacement on Crooks Road, Long Lake Road, Livernois Road, and Big Beaver Road, 

described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part hereof, which improvements involve 

roads under the jurisdiction of the BOARD and within the COMMUNITY, which improvements 

are hereinafter referred to as the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, the estimated total cost of the PROJECT is $533,078; and 

WHEREAS, said PROJECT involves certain designated and approved Tri-Party Program 

funding in the amount of $533,078, which amount shall be paid through equal contributions by 

the BOARD, the COMMUNITY, and the Oakland County Board of Commissioners, hereinafter 

referred to as the COUNTY; and 

WHEREAS, the BOARD and the COMMUNITY have reached a mutual understanding 

regarding the cost sharing of the PROJECT and wish to commit that understanding to writing in 

this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein and in 

conformity with applicable law, it is hereby agreed between the COMMUNITY and the BOARD 

that: 



2013 Concrete Slab Replacement 
City of Troy 
Project No. 51751 
2/25/2013 

- 2 -

1. The COMMUNITY shall forthwith undertake and complete the PROJECT, as 

above described, under Road Commission for Oakland County permit; and shall 

perform or cause to be performed all preliminary engineering services and 

administration in reference thereto.  

2. The actual total cost of the PROJECT shall include total payments to the 

contractor. 

3. The COMMUNITY shall comply with the provisions as set forth in Exhibit “B” 

attached hereto. 

4. The COMMUNITY shall comply with the liability and insurance requirements as set 

forth in Exhibit “C” attached hereto. 

5. The estimated total PROJECT cost of $533,078 shall be funded in the following 

order: 

a. The Tri-Party Program funding is not to exceed $533,078. 

b. The COMMUNITY agrees that any PROJECT costs above the Tri-Party 

Program funding of $533,078 will be funded 100% by the COMMUNITY. 

6. Upon execution of this agreement, the COMMUNITY shall submit two invoices to 

the BOARD: 

a. The first invoice shall be payable by the BOARD in the amount of $177,693 

(being 100% of the BOARD’s Tri-Party contribution). 

b. The second invoice shall be payable by the COUNTY in the amount of 

$177,693 (being 100% of the COUNTY’S Tri-Party contribution). 

c. The invoices shall be sent to: 

Ms. Julie Enders, Engineering Aide 
Road Commission for Oakland County 
31001 Lahser Road 
Beverly Hills, MI 48025 



2013 Concrete Slab Replacement 
City of Troy 
Project No. 51751 
2/25/2013 

- 3 -

7. Within 90 days of completion of the PROJECT, the COMMUNITY shall submit the 

following to the BOARD: 

a. A cover letter originated by the COMMUNITY certifying that the PROJECT is 

now complete. 

b. A copy of the FINAL payment estimate paid to the contractor. 

c. One copy of the complete set of the as-built construction plans containing the 

adjusted quantities of the PROJECT. 

  



2013 Concrete Slab Replacement 
City of Troy 
Project No. 51751 
2/25/2013 

- 4 -

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement the day and 

date first written above. 

 BOARD OF ROAD COMMISSIONERS FOR THE  
 COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
 A Public Body Corporate 

 
 By_________________________________________ 
 
 
 Its_________________________________________ 
 
 
 CITY OF TROY 

 
By_________________________________________ 

 
 
 Its_________________________________________ 
 
 

By_________________________________________ 
 
 
 Its_________________________________________ 



2013 Concrete Slab Replacement 
City of Troy 
Project No. 51751 
2/25/2013 

- 5 -

Contractor Payments $533,078

Total Estimated Project Cost $533,078

COMMUNITY COUNTY BOARD TOTAL

$77,443 $77,443 $77,444 $232,330

$100,249 $100,250 $100,249 $300,748

$177,692 $177,693 $177,693 $533,078

Concrete slab replacement on Crooks Road, Long Lake Road, Livernois Road, and Big 
Beaver Road in the City of Troy.

EXHIBIT A
T R I - P A R T Y   P R O G R A M

2013 Concrete Slab Replacement

Crooks Road, Long Lake Road, Livernois Road, Big Beaver Road

City of Troy

Board Project No. 51751

TOTAL SHARES

FY13 Tri-Party Program

COST PARTICIPATION BREAKDOWN

ESTIMATED PROJECT COST

FY12 Add'l Tri-Party Program

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit B 
PROVISIONS 

Bidding:  The COMMUNITY shall select the contractor for its share of the work, on a competitive basis by 

advertising for sealed bids in accordance with its established practices. 

Bonds – Insurance:  The COMMUNITY shall require the contractor provide payment and performance bonds for the 

PROJECT; said bonds to be in compliance with the provisions of 1963 PA 213 as amended, compiled at MCL 

129.201, et seq. 

Further, the COMMUNITY shall require the contractor to provide insurance naming the Road Commission for 

Oakland County as additional named insured’s.  Coverage’s shall be substantial as set forth in Exhibit “C”, attached 

hereto. 

Records:  The parties shall keep records of their expenses regarding the PROJECT in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting procedures, and shall make said records available to the other during business hours upon 

request giving reasonable notice.  Such records shall be kept for three (3) years from final payment. 

Final costs shall be allocated after audit of the records and adjustments in payments shall be invoiced and paid within 

thirty (30) days thereafter. 

EEO:  The COMMUNITY shall require its contractor to specifically agree that it will comply with any and all applicable 

State, Federal, and Local statutes ordinances, and regulations, and with RCOC regulations during performance of the 

SERVICES and will require compliance of all subcontractors and subconsultants. 

In accordance with Michigan 1976 PA 453, the COMMUNITY hereto agrees not to discriminate against an employee 

or applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment, because of 

race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight or marital status.  Further, in accordance with Michigan 

1976 PA No. 220, as amended, the parties hereby agree not to discriminate against an employee or applicant for 

employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or 

indirectly related to employment, because of a disability that is unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the 

duties of a particular job or position. 

The COMMUNITY further agrees that it will require all subconsultants and subcontractors for this PROJECT comply 

with this provision. 

Governmental Function, Scope:  It is declared that the work performed under this AGREEMENT is a governmental 

function.  It is the intention of the parties hereto that this AGREEMENT shall not be construed to waive the defense of 

governmental immunity held by the RCOC, and the COMMUNITY. 

Third Parties:  This AGREEMENT is not for the benefit of any third party. 



2013 Concrete Slab Replacement 
City of Troy 
Project No. 51751 
2/25/2013 

- 7 -

EXHIBIT C 
LIABILITY AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

Hold Harmless Agreement:  The Contractor shall hold harmless, represent, defend and indemnify the Board of 

County Road Commissioners of Oakland County, the Road Commission for Oakland County, its officers and 

employees; the County of Oakland; the Water Resources Drain Commissioner and relevant drainage district(s), if 

applicable; the Michigan State Transportation Commission; the Michigan Department of Transportation; and the local 

unit(s) of government, within which the Project is located against all claims for damages to public or private property, 

for injuries to persons, or for other claims arising out of the performance or non-performance of the contracted work, 

whether during the progress or after the completion thereof. 

Insurance Coverage:  The Contractor, prior to execution of the contract, shall file with the Road Commission for 

Oakland County, copies of complete certificates of insurance as evidence that he carries adequate insurance 

satisfactory to the Board.  Insurance coverage shall be provided in accordance with the following: 

a. Workmen’s Compensation Insurance:  To provide protection for the Contractor’s employees, to the statutory 

limits of the State of Michigan and $500,000 employer’s liability.  The indemnification obligation under this 

section shall not be limited in any ways by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation or 

benefits payable by or for the Contractor under worker’s disability compensation coverage established by 

law. 

b. Bodily Injury and Property Damage Other than Automobile:  To afford protection against all claims for 

damages to public or private property, and injuries to persons arising out of and during the progress and to 

the completion of the work, and with respect to product and completed operations for one year after 

completion of the work. 

1. Bodily Injury Liability   or: Single Limit:  Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
Each Person:  $1,000,000  Each Occurrence:     $1,000,000 
Each Occurrence $1,000,000  Aggregate:        $2,000,000 
Aggregate  $2,000,000 

 
  Property Damage Liability: 
  Each Occurrence: $250,000  
  Aggregate:  $250,000  

Such insurance shall include: 1) explosion, collapse, and underground damage hazards (x,c,u), which shall 

include, but not be limited to coverage for (a) underground damage to facilities due to drilling and excavating 

with mechanical equipment; and (b) collapse or structural injury to structures due to blasting or explosion, 



2013 Concrete Slab Replacement 
City of Troy 
Project No. 51751 
2/25/2013 

- 8 -

excavation, tunneling, pile driving, cofferdam work, or building moving or demolition; (2) products and 

completed operations; (3) contractual liability; and (4) independent contractors coverage. 

2. Bodily Injury Liability and Property Damage Liability - Automobiles (Comprehensive Auto Liability). 

The minimum limits of bodily injury liability and property damage liability shall be: 

Bodily Injury Liability  or Single Limit:  Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability 
Each Person  $500,000 Each Occurrence: $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence $1,000,000  

 
Property Damage Liability: 
Each Occurrence: $1,000,000 

 

Such insurance shall include coverage for all owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles. 

c. Excess and Umbrellas Insurance – The Contractor may substitute corresponding excess and/or umbrella 

liability insurance for a portion of the above listed requirements in order to meet the specified minimum limits 

of liability. 

d. The Contractor shall provide for and on behalf of the Road Commission for Oakland County and all agencies 

specified by the Road Commission, as their interest may appear, Owner’s Protective Public Liability 

Insurance.  Such insurance shall provide coverage and limits the same as the Contractor’s Public Liability 

Insurance. 

e. Notice – The Contractor shall not cancel, renew, or non-renew the coverage of any insurance required by 

this Section without providing 30 day prior written notice to the Road Commission for Oakland County.  All 

such insurance shall include an endorsement whereby the insurer shall agree to notify the Road Commission 

for Oakland County immediately of any reduction by the Contractor.  The Contractor shall cease operations 

on the occurrence of any such cancellation or reduction, and shall not resume operations until new insurance 

is in force.  If the Contractor cannot secure the required insurance within 30 days, the Board reserves the 

right to terminate the Contract. 

f. Reports – The Contractor or his insurance carrier shall immediately report all claims received which relate to 

the Contract, and shall also report claims investigations made, and disposition of claims to the County 

Highway Engineer. 

 

EXHIBIT C PAGE 2 



 
 
February 27, 2013 
 
 
TO:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Second Amendment to MDOT Capital Contract for 
 Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, MDOT Contract No. 2011-0231/A2 
 

Background: 
 
City Council approved Capital Contract No. 2011-0231 (Resolution No. 2011-09-210) with MDOT for 
the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility on September 12, 2011.  
MDOT provided federal funding in the amount of $8,485,212 to the City for design and construction 
of the Transit Center. 
 
On January 17, 2012, City Council approved the total cost of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Center at  
$6,272,500 (Resolution No. 2012-01-008). 
 
The First Amendment to the MDOT Capital Contract, approved on November 12, 2012 (Resolution 
No. 2012-11-203), reduced the grant funding amount from the original $8,485,212 to the $6,272,500 
amount previously approved by City Council. 
 
Canadian National Railroad (CN) has recently imposed a safety requirement that requires the 
addition of a crash wall for the west elevator/bridge support tower on the Birmingham side (no wall is 
needed on the Troy side).  The wall will provide added protection to the elevator/bridge support tower 
in the event of a train derailment.  This new requirement has resulted in a redesigned foundation and 
tower wall that is 2.5’ thick, 12’ high and approximately 60’ long.  The crash wall design has been 
reviewed and approved by CN.  The cost of the wall, including engineering and construction, will add 
$348,236 to the Transit Center construction budget. 
 

History of Crash Wall: 

 
Provided below is a chronological summary of the CN clearance reviews and the crash wall: 
 
In early May of 2012, CN was asked by the design team, including the team’s Rail Engineering 
Specialist, to review critical clearances due to the many project site limitations.  The review request 
contained all the horizontal and vertical clearances of the west tower, the platform and bridge.  On 
May 25, 2012, CN provided the following by e-mail with regard to their determinations on these 
clearances. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-06



2 
 

  
       Item                                                Proposed clearances                                        CN comments          
 
Platform Height                                                                    8 inches above Top of Rail                                NOT APPROVED, pending 
MDOT Close                                                                                                                                                        Clearance permit.  
                                                                                                                                           Also, platform can be no closer than 5'1" from 
                                                                                                                                           centerline of track.  
        
                                                                                                                                
Bridge Height                                                                   23 feet Minimum above Top of Rail                             Approved  
East Face of Stair/Elevator Structure                           10 feet 6 inches from Centerline of West Track         Approved  
East Face of Pedestrian Bridge Support                      20 feet from Centerline of West Track                         Approved  
   

The approval of the east face of the pedestrian bridge support is given without exception.  It is this 
clearance of 20 feet, which is less than the AREMA guidelines of 25 feet that CN can interpret as 
needing a crash wall. 
 
Based on the above clearance approvals from CN, it was agreed that these clearances could be 
utilized as a basis for completing the final design of the project.  To further confirm the clearances 
approved in the May 25, 2012 email, the design team of HRC Neumann/Smith Architecture and 
Quandel Consultants (Railway Engineering Specialist) prepared a Station Design Criteria Report for 
the project which listed these clearances along with many other key elements of the facility.  The 
Report was submitted to CN and other project agencies on June 7, 2012. The Station Design Criteria 
Report  that was submitted to CN for their review clearly states in Section 6.2, Horizontal Clearance, 
Design Recommendation, that a crashwall was not intended to be provided.  Having not received any 
verbal or written statements from CN to the contrary, the project did not include a crash wall until 
required in writing by CN on February 14, 2013.  Below is Section 6 of the Station Design Criteria 
report.   
   

6 Track Overpass Clearances 
 

6.1 Vertical Clearances 

Alternatives Considered – Minimum vertical clearance between top of rail and overhead 
structures is governed by AREMA, the state and the host railroad. The state of Michigan is least 
conservative with a minimum requirement of 22’-6”. Both AREMA and CN require a minimum 
of 23’-0”. The vertical clearance guidelines are only required within the railroad dynamic 
envelope. 
Design Recommendation – The minimum vertical clearance from Top of Rail elevation to the 
low point of the structure shall be 23 ft. as depicted in AREMA Figure 28-1-6 over the entire 
length of the bridge to the face of the towers within a lateral zone 6 ft. perpendicular to the 
track centerline. This dimension allows for a future track lift. 
6.2 Horizontal Clearance 

Alternatives Considered – AREMA recommends that overhead bridge piers be located a 
minimum of 25 ft. from the track centerline. Where site constraints require locating piers at a 
distance less than 25 feet, AREMA recommends that the piers be constructed with additional 
concrete to create a crash wall with the ability to resist the impact of a derailed train. 
Design Recommendation – Due to site constraints, the Track Overpass support piers shall be 
located a minimum of 20 ft. from the track centerline which very nearly meets the lateral 



3 
 

clearance suggested by AREMA. As a practical consideration in the vicinity of a passenger 
platform, crashwalls shall not be provided. (emphasis added) 
 

In August 2012, CN again reviewed the clearances shown on detailed plans that were provided to 
them during the mandatory Close Clearance Review meeting hosted by MDOT.  The meeting was 
attended by a representative of CN.  On August 21, 2012 CN provided the following by email with 
regard to their determinations on these clearances, without any crash wall requirement being made. 
 

The following is a list of items that need to be addressed  
 
1 - the 10' platform has to be 8'-6" from center line of track.  
2 - the ramp has to be gated both at the entrance at the bottom of the ramp and gated at the open end 
of the platform.  
3 - funds will have to be made available tie and surface the track prior to construction so as not to 
disturb the platform height of 8" above the rail for the next 10 - 15 years. 
4 - install a drain pipe below at the end of the tie for the length of the platform extending beyond the 
platform to provide drainage for the track structure.  
5 - is CN responsible to install the close clearance signs or the contractor?  
6 - slope of the platform should be away from the track so runoff, especially in the winter with salt and 
chloride, runs away from the track.  
7 - Agreement needed for platform located on CN property which should include, but not limited to:  
      a - reimbursement for all maintenance cost to maintain platform 8" above rail.  
      b - snow removal ,by whomever is maintaining the platform, must not be dumped on tracks.  
      c - the platform and area surrounding platform must be maintained, weed controlled, and kept 
clean of debris and garbage.  
8 - Station and platform must be removed if Amtrak or City of Troy closes the station.  
9 - It was already agreed that the old Birmingham facility would be removed and graded to its original 
state, funds would need to be made available to remove the existing crossing timber in main 1 and the 
concrete between main 1 and main 2 and reestablish the grade.      
 

The Final Plans for the project were submitted to CN and other project agencies on August 30, 2012 
for review and approval.  The final plans did not include a crash wall per the approved clearances 
and the Station Design Criteria Report.  Discussions following the submittal of final plans were held 
between the design team and CN and verbal acceptance of the plans was given.  Tooles/Clark had 
separate discussions and meetings with CN prior to starting construction and they were granted a 
right of entry permit from CN and began construction of the project in November.  The acceptance by 
CN to allow Tooles/Clark to begin construction within the CN right of way and CN providing inspection 
for this work, confirmed that CN had approved the plans as submitted. 
 
On February 6, 2013, CN representatives from Chicago met with the entire project team to discuss 
CN crash wall requirements.  This meeting was the result of approximately one month of multiple 
discussions with CN and requests for a determination on whether or not they would require a crash 
wall.  On this date CN stated for the first time that a crash wall will be required.  It was determined 
that HRC would provide CN with additional information on the structural components of the west 
tower so that their structures group could review and provide a written response (determination) 
regarding the crash wall.  The foregoing was reflected in the meeting minutes. 
 

Crash Wall 
• HRC is to provide the original design criteria and a written 
description with additional information on the structural 



4 
 

components of the West tower to CN. 
• CN will review this information internally with their structures 
group and provide a written response regarding the crash wall 
and any other design concerns. 

 
On  February 14, 2013, CN provided the first written statement on requiring a crash wall in an email:      
 

CN Engineering Bridge design group has reviewed the submitted Troy MMTF drawings and the 
calculations. The proposed pedestrian bridges meets our CN vertical clearance requirements. The 
horizontal clearance from the west track requires a crash wall.   
 

Representatives from HRC (design team) and Tooles/Clark (construction team) will be present at the 
Council meeting to answer any questions concerning the design and construction of Transit Center 
and the late addition of the crash wall requirement.    
  

MDOT Funding: 
 
MDOT has agreed to amend the funding contract to increase the grant amount to include the cost of 
adding the safety crash wall.  The funding comes from approximately $2.2 million that the City turned 
back to MDOT last November when Amendment A1 was approved.  MDOT continues to hold these 
funds for future construction of access to the platform from the Birmingham side, which the Federal 
Rail Administration cited as an objective of the project; to service both communities by strengthening 
the existing transportation options in the area.    
 
In April of 2011 Birmingham pulled out of the project due to their inability at that time to acquire 
property at fair market value for access to the platform.  Their withdrawal from the project caused, 
among other things, the tunnel to become a bridge and the west elevator/bridge support tower to be 
wholly located within the CN right-of-way.  Had the tunnel been built  as originally planned, there 
would be no need for the tower or crash wall.  Had the elevator/bridge tower been located outside the 
CN right-of-way on land that Birmingham was to acquire,  there would be no need for the crash wall.  
Taking back some of the $2.2 million will make Troy’s project whole.   
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
The total project cost, including the cost of the crash wall, continues to be fully funded, 100% with 
federal ARRA funds.  No city funding is needed for construction of the Transit Center. 
 
A summary of actions taken to date is provided below: 
 

Original Contract $8,485,212 Original Grant Amount 
 

Amendment #1  $6,272,500 
 

Council Compromise – Reduction approved by City Council 

Amendment #2  
Tooles/Clark 

$287,623 Crash Wall Construction 

Amendment #2  
HRC 

$60,613 Crash Wall Design, Testing and Staking 

Recommended 
Revised Contract  

$6,620,736  



5 
 

Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve a Second Contract Amendment to MDOT Capital 
Contract No. 2011-0231 for the purpose of increasing grant funds to $6,620,736 for design and 
construction of the Transit Center.   
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Transit Center\DESIGN and CONSTRUCTION 2012\COUNCIL APPROALS AND RELATED ITEMS\MDOT Amendment A2\To CC re Second MDOT Amendment_A2_R6.doc 



 
 
March 1, 2013 
 
 
TO:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Second Amendment to Architectural/Engineering Services Contract for 

Design of the Safety Crash Wall at the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 
History: 
 
On January 17, 2012 City Council approved (Resolution No. 2012-01-008) a contract for 
Architectural/Engineering (A/E) services in the amount of $648,648.76 for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility.        
 
On November 12, 2012 City Council approved Contract Amendment No. 1  in the amount $64,822.20 for 
Construction Testing Services in support of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility.  The total amount of the 
contract became $713,470.96.  Including construction, architectural/engineering services, utility relocations and 
all other costs the total Transit Center cost as approved was $6,272,500.   
 
Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc.(HRC) has submitted design costs of $60,613 for design, testing and construction 
staking for the safety crash wall as required by CN along the west elevator/bridge support tower.  The costs 
have been reviewed by the City Engineer and MDOT and are recommended for acceptance.  
  
Financial Considerations: 
 
A summary of actions taken to date is provided below: 
 
Original Contract $8,485,212 Original Grant Amount 

 
Amendment #1  $6,272,500 

 
Council Compromise – Reduction approved by City Council 

Amendment #2  
Tooles/Clark 

$287,623 Crash Wall Construction 

Amendment #2  
HRC 

$60,613 Crash Wall Design, Testing and Staking 

Recommended 
Revised Contract  

$6,620,736  

 
The total project cost continues to be fully funded, 100% with federal ARRA funds.  No city funding is needed 
for the Transit Center. 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-07



 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approval of MDOT Contract Amendment No.2 in the amount of $60,613 as submitted by 
HRC for  design, testing and construction staking for the safety crash. The total contract amount with HRC will 
be $774,083.96.  The total funding for the Transit Center, including construction, architectural/engineering 
services and utility relocations is $6,620,736. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Transit Center\DESIGN and CONSTRUCTION 2012\COUNCIL APPROALS AND RELATED ITEMS\Testing Services to CC\2nd Amendment\To CC re A_E_AmendmentNo2_CrashWallR2.docx 









Page 1 of 2 
 

 
March 1, 2013 
 
TO:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item – Approval of Contract Amendment No. 2 for 
 Construction of the Safety Crash Wall at the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 
History: 
 
On September 12, 2011 City Council approved Capital Contract No. 2011-0231 with MDOT (Resolution No. 
2011-09-210) that provided a federal grant for the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility.    The $8,485,212 federal grant monies received through MDOT came from the American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), High-Speed Intercity Passenger Rail (HSIPR) Program as administered by the 
Federal Rail Administration (FRA).   
 
On October 22, 2012 City Council approved Contract Amendment No. 1 in the amount of $4,456,141 for 
construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility by Tooles/Clark.  The total contract, including the original 
$648,731 for construction manager services, became $5,104,872.  With Architectural/Engineering services and 
various utility relocations, the total cost of the Transit Center as approved was $6,272,500.  
 
Tooles/Clark has submitted a guaranteed maximum price proposal of $287,623 for construction of the safety 
crash wall required by CN along the west elevator/bridge support tower.  The costs have been reviewed by the 
City Engineer and MDOT and are recommended for acceptance.  The budget includes a 10% contingency of 
$22,888, which will be used for any unknowns that might be encountered during this work. 
 
The added construction will cause the contract completion date to move from July 5th to August 5, 2013.  The 
official opening of the Transit Center is expected to be in mid to late August.             
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
A summary of actions taken to date is provided below: 
 
Original Contract $8,485,212 Original Grant Amount 

 
Amendment #1  $6,272,500 

 
Council Compromise – Reduction approved by City Council 

Amendment #2  
Tooles/Clark 

$287,623 Crash Wall Construction 

Amendment #2  
HRC 

$60,613 Crash Wall Design, Testing and Staking 

Recommended 
Revised Contract  

$6,620,736  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
I-08



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
The total project cost continues to be fully funded, 100% with federal ARRA funds.  No city funding is needed 
for the Transit Center. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approval of Contract Amendment No. 2 in the amount of $287,623 as submitted by 
Tooles/Clark for construction of the safety crash wall. The total contract amount with Tooles/Clark will be 
$5,392,495.  The total funding for the Transit Center, including construction, architectural/engineering services 
and utility relocations is $6,620,736. 
 
G:\Transit Center\DESIGN and CONSTRUCTION 2012\COUNCIL APPROALS AND RELATED ITEMS\GMP Amendment A2\To CC re GMP_AmendmentNo2R2.docx 







CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 1 - 

Father Eric Fedewa from St. Anastasia Catholic Church performed the Invocation.  The Pledge 
of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, February 18, 2013, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Pro Tem Fleming called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 

 
Resolution #2013-02-027 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Campbell  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Dane Slater and 
Council Member Doug Tietz at the Regular City Council Meeting of February 18, 2013. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington 
No: None 
Absent: Slater, Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Smart Investing at Your Library (Presented by Cathy Russ, Library Director) 
 

C-2 Transit Center Monthly Update (Presented by Glenn Lapin, Economic 
Development Specialist) 

 

C-3 MACP (Michigan Association of Chiefs of Police) Award for Excellence in Traffic 

Safety (Presented by Police Captain Robert Redmond) 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous 

Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Fleming OPENED the Public Hearing.  Mayor Pro Tem Fleming CLOSED the 
Public Hearing after hearing public comment from Richard Peters. 
 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Articles 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13 and 16 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the 

City of Troy, pertaining to miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance revisions, be AMENDED to read as 
written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 244), City Council Public 
Hearing Draft, as recommended by the Planning Commission, with a copy of the Planning 

Commission Minutes to be ATTACHED to the Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone Item E-01 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File 
Number: ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions 
 
Resolution #2013-02-028 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by Pennington  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Item E-01 Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 244) – Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting of March 4, 2013.  
 
Yes:  Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz, Slater  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA: 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 3 - 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments - None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Historic District Commission 
 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 

b) City Council Appointments 

 
Resolution #2013-02-029 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Henderson  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
 

Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 

Term Expires:  3/1/2016 W. Kent Voigt 

 Term currently held by: W. Kent Voigt 
 

Yes: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Campbell  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz, Slater  
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Downtown 

Development Authority; b) City Council Nominations – Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

a) Mayoral Nominations 
 

City Council took NO ACTION on this Item. 
 

b) City Council Nominations 
 

City Council took NO ACTION on this Item. 
 

I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 4 - 

I-4 City of Troy Investment Policy and Establishment of Investment Accounts 
(Introduced by:  Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services) 

 
Resolution #2013-02-030 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Pennington  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Investment Policy and 
Establishment of Investment Accounts as outlined in the memorandum and revised from 
Director of Financial Services, Thomas Darling dated February 12, 2013; a copy of which shall 

be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Campbell, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz, Slater   
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

I-5 Transfer of Title for Grant Funded Equipment (Introduced by: Chief William 
Nelson) 

 
Resolution #2013-02-031 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Pennington  
 
WHEREAS, Since 2006, the City of Troy accepted titles for a 2005 Wells Cargo 
decontamination trailer and a 2010 Ford pickup truck, funded by grants from the Department of 
Homeland Security for use by special operation teams in Oakland County, which did not exist 
until 2009.  In 2009, the Oakland County Fire Mutual Aid Association (MABAS Division 3201) 
and the Oakway Mutual Aid Association (MABAS Division 3202) were formed under the Urban 
Cooperation Act and the State Mutual Aid Box Alarm System; and 
 
WHEREAS, These organizations are supported by dues from participating municipalities and 
provide shared services and shared costs among the membership, including the City of Troy; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The use of these vehicles by regional cooperative organizations was the original 
intent of the grant funds provided by the Department of Homeland Security; and  
 
WHEREAS, The 2005 Wells Cargo decontamination trailer is recommended to be transferred 
to the Oakway Mutual Aid Association; and, the 2010 Ford pickup truck is recommended to be 
transferred to the Oakland County Fire Mutual Aid Association for use in special operations 
services and hazardous materials responses in any participating jurisdictions. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the 2005 Wells Cargo decontamination trailer is hereby 

TRANSFERRED to the Oakway Mutual Aid Association; and, the 2010 Ford pickup truck is 

hereby TRANSFERRED to the Oakland County Fire Mutual Aid Association, as recommended 
by City Administration. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 5 - 

 
Yes: McGinnis, Pennington, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson 
No: None 
Absent: Tietz, Slater   
 

MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2013-02-032 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by Henderson  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
printed. 
 
Yes: Pennington, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz, Slater   
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-5 Planning Commission Representative Appointment to the Zoning Board of 

Appeals 
 
Resolution #2013-02-032-J-05 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS Tom Krent as the Planning 
Commission Representative to the Zoning Board of Appeals, as nominated by the Planning 
Commission on January 8, 2013. 
 

J-6 Private Agreement – Contract for Installation of Municipal Improvements – 

Timbercrest Preserves – Project No. 12.915.3 
 
Resolution #2013-02-032-J-06 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Mondrian Properties Preserves LLC, is hereby 

APPROVED for the installation of water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, paving, sidewalks, 
soil erosion and landscaping on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and 

City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

J-7 Request to Grant a Utility Easement to Detroit Edison over City Parcel #88-20-24-

226-110 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 6 - 

Resolution #2013-02-032-J-07 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS a permanent underground utility 
easement to Detroit Edison over a portion of a parcel owned in fee by the City of Troy, said 

parcel having Sidwell #88-20-24-226-110, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
execute the permanent easement document.   
 

J-8 Corrections to Appointments to the Historic District Commission 
 

a) Appointment to Historic District Commission 
 
Resolution #2013-02-032-J-08a 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) 
to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name 
App Resume 

Expire 
Appointment 

Date 
Appointment 

Expire 
Notes 3 

Chambers Barbara A. 2/9/2013 3/19/2012 3/1/2014  

Doyle Hugh Stephen 2/8/2014 3/19/2012 7/31/2013 
Requests 
Reappointment 

Kuppa Padma 8/13/2011 3/19/2012 3/1/2014  

McGee Timothy S. 8/13/2014 8/27/2012 5/15/2015  

Partlan Ann 2/24/2013 4/7/2008 3/1/2014 
Historical Society 
Recommendation 

Schuchter Doris 11/22/2013 6/18/2012 5/15/2015 
Historical Society 
Recommendation 

Voigt W. Kent 1/23/2015 10/17/2011 3/1/2013  
 

Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 

Term Expires:  3/1/2014 Ann Partlan 

 Term currently held by: Ann Partlan 
 

Interested Applicants: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 

Viola Vincent  11/16/2013 Animal Control Appeal Bd. exp. 9/30/2012 
 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 7 - 

b) Proposed Reconsideration of Resolution #2012-03-062 I-1b City Council 

Appointments 
 
Resolution #2013-02-032-J-08b 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2012-03-062, Moved 
by McGinnis and Seconded by Campbell, as it appears below: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires: 07/31/2013 Hugh Stephen Doyle 

 Term currently held by: Brian Wattles 

  
Term Expires: 03/01/2014 Barbara Chambers 

 Term currently held by: Barbara Chambers 

  
Term Expires: 03/01/2014 Padma Kuppa 

 Term currently held by: Sabah Jihad 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

  
Term Expires: 01/31/2015 David Ogg 

 Term currently held by: Gordon Schepke (Appt’d 
to Planning Commission) 

  

Term Expires: 01/31/2015 Lawrence Ted Halsey 

 Term currently held by: Lawrence Ted Halsey 
 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

c) Proposed Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution #2012-03-062 I-1b City 

Council Appointments by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2013-02-032-J-08c 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2012-03-062, City Council 

Appointments, by STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires: 05/15/2015 Hugh Stephen Doyle 

 Term currently held by: Paul Chu Lin 

  

Term Expires: 03/01/2014 Barbara Chambers 

 Term currently held by: Barbara Chambers 

  
Term Expires: 03/01/2014 Padma Kuppa 

 Term currently held by: Sabah Jihad 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Term Expires: 01/31/2015 David Ogg 

 Term currently held by: Gordon Schepke (Appt’d 
to Planning Commission) 

  
Term Expires: 01/31/2015 Lawrence Ted Halsey 

 Term currently held by: Lawrence Ted Halsey 
 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

J-9 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 
 
Resolution #2013-02-032-J-09 
 

RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay the renewal of the City of Troy’s membership 
in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2013, in the amount of $23,800.  Funds are 
available in the 2012-2013 Police Department Operating Funds, Membership and Dues. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 9 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

Balyeat, Laura Spoke expressing concerns about a business operating in Troy. 

Peters, Richard Spoke about the economy, gas prices, and pot holes on streets. 

Savage, James Spoke of Council wish list, Vision 2020, and the City needs. 

Brake, Dan Spoke about the appointment of Dane Slater and the transit center. 

Butterbaugh, Ron Spoke about the Troy Today and business development news. 

M. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 

Placement on the Agenda 

M-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

N-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Fleming questioned Management regarding the resident’s concerns with the 
business housing live chickens.  Mark Miller explained that Code Enforcement is involved in the 
matter. 
 
Lori Bluhm reminded the audience of the rules of decorum during public comment. 
 
Council Member McGinnis complimented Cindy Stewart and Staff for the terrific job they did on 
the Troy Today and the wealth of information it contains.  

O. REPORTS: 

O-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  None Submitted 
 

O-2 Department Reports:  

a) 2012 Year End Calls for Police Service Report 

b) December 31, 2012 - Quarterly Financial Report 

c) Transit Center Construction Status Report – February 2013 

d) SOCRRA Quarterly Report 

e) Federal Aid Funding for Major Roads 
Noted and Filed 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft February 18, 2013 

 

- 10 - 

O-3  Letters of Appreciation 

a) To Chief Mayer From Stephanie Leitch Regarding Officer Garcher’s Assistance in a 
Traffic Accident Situation 

b) To Mitch Grusnick From Kevin Luer – Sulzer Regarding Assistance with Recover of 
Operations after a Fire 

Noted and Filed 
 

O-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
Noted and Filed 

 

O-5  Cancellation of Public Hearing – Michigan Next Energy Exemption – LG Chem, Inc. 
Noted and Filed 

P. STUDY ITEMS: 

P-1  No Study Items 

Q. CLOSED SESSION:  

Q-1  No Closed Session 

R. ADJOURNMENT: 

 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 8:48 PM. 
 
 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 1 - 

Mayor Pro Tem Fleming performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, February 20, 2013, at City 
Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Dane Slater 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Ed Pennington 
Doug Tietz 

 
Resolution #2013-02-033 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member Doug 
Tietz at the Regular City Council Meeting of February 20, 2013, due to being out of the county. 
 
Yes: Slater, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington  
No:  None 
Absent: Tietz 
 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #7 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2012-02-034 
Moved by Slater  
Seconded by Campbell  
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #7 Order of Business to take items out-of-order on the Agenda. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Slater  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

Vote on Resolution to Forward Item C-1d Liquor Violations (Class C; Class C Resort 

&Hotel B): Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau) and Item C-1i Liquor Violations (Class C; 
Class C Resort &Hotel B): Simbad, Inc. (dba: Palm’s / Simbad) to be Addressed Before 
All Other Agenda Items 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 2 - 

Resolution #2013-02-035 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded Fleming 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS Item C-1d Liquor Violations (Class C; 
Class C Resort &Hotel B): Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau) and Item C-1i Liquor Violations 
(Class C; Class C Resort &Hotel B): Simbad, Inc. (dba: Palm’s / Simbad) to be addressed 
before all other Agenda Items. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Slater, Campbell  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

C. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

The following named licensees have been given notice to appear for Public Hearings regarding 
alleged violations: 
 

C-1 Liquor Violations (Class C; Class C Resort &Hotel B):  

d) Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Harold Fried and John Henke, representing Mon Jin Lau 
 
Moved by 
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau) 
Address: 1515 E. Maple Rd., 48084 
License No: Class C (353-2012) 

Violation: ALLOWED OVERCROWDING & INTOX. PERSONS on October 31, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS/ HAS NOT been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced 
licensed establishment;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 3 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, OBJECTS to the renewal 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year OR RECOMMENDS renewal of the 

on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all serving 
employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy Police 

Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone Item C-01d Liquor Violations (Class C, Class C Resort & 

Hotel B):  Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau) to the March 18, 2013 Regular City 

Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2013-02-036 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Fleming 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Item C-01d Liquor Violations (Class 
C; Class C Resort &Hotel B): Mon Jin Lau, Inc. (dba: Mon Jin Lau) to the March 18, 2013 
Regular City Council Meeting. 
 
Yes: Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Slater, Campbell, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

i) Simbad, Inc. (dba: Palm’s / Simbad) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Bill Thomas, representing Palm’s. 
 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Simbad, Inc. (dba: Palm’s / Simbad) 
Address: 336 John R Rd., 48083 
License No: SDM (190650-2012)  Class C (190651-2012); and 

Violation: ALLOWED INTOXICATED PERSON TO OPERATE VEHICLE & 

CONSUMPTION AFTER HOURS; IMPROPER DISPLAY OF LICENSE on 

December 12, 2012; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS/ HAS NOT been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced 
licensed establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, OBJECTS to the renewal 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year OR RECOMMENDS renewal of the 

on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all serving 
employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy Police 

Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone Item C-01i Liquor Violations (Class C, Class C Resort & 

Hotel B): Simbad, Inc. (dba: Palm’s / Simbad) to the March 18, 2013 Regular City Council 

Meeting 
 
Resolution #2013-02-037 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Campbell 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Item C-01i Liquor Violations (Class 
C; Class C Resort &Hotel B):  Simbad, Inc. (dba: Palm’s / Simbad) to the March 18, 2013 
Regular City Council Meeting. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Pennington, Slater, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson 
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

a) El Patio IV, LLC (dba: El Patio Mexican Restaurant) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Maria De La Paz, owner of El Patio Mexican Restaurant. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-038 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Campbell  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 5 - 

 
Name:  El Patio IV, LLC (dba: El Patio Mexican Restaurant) 
Address: 2891 E. Big Beaver Rd., 48083 
License No: Class C (214782-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on November 13, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, RECOMMENDS renewal 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 
serving employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy 

Police Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police 
Department within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Pennington, Slater, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis 
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

b) Gallatin, Inc. (dba: Camp Ticonderoga) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Linda Egland of Gallatin, Inc., operating Camp Ticonderoga. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-039 
Moved by Pennington  
Seconded by Campbell  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Gallatin, Inc. (dba: Camp Ticonderoga) 
Address: 5725 Rochester Rd., 48084 
License No: Class C (8981-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on November 13, 2012; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 6 - 

WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, RECOMMENDS renewal 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 
serving employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy 

Police Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police 
Department within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Slater, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington 
No: None 
Absent: Tietz 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

c) Hooters of Troy, LLC (dba: Hooters) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from John Carlin and Robert Rice, representing Hooters. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-040 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Hooters of Troy, LLC (dba: Hooters) 
Address: 2950 Rochester Rd., 48084 
License No: Class C (159546-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 10, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 7 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, RECOMMENDS renewal 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 
serving employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy 

Police Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police 
Department within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Slater  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  

e) National Coney Island, Inc. (dba: National Coney Island) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Kelly Allen, representing National Coney Island. 
 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  National Coney Island, Inc. (dba: National Coney Island) 
Address: 3364 Rochester Rd., 48084 
License No: Class C Resort (41187-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on November 13, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS/ HAS NOT been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced 
licensed establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, OBJECTS to the renewal 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year OR RECOMMENDS renewal of the 

on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all serving 
employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy Police 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 8 - 

Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police Department 
within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 

Vote on Resolution to Postpone Item C-01e Liquor Violations (Class C, Class C Resort & 

Hotel B):  National Coney Island, Inc. (dba: National Coney Island) to the March 18, 2013 

Regular City Council Meeting 
 
Resolution #2013-02-041 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Campbell 
 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES Item C-01e Liquor Violations (Class 
C, Class C Resort & Hotel B):  National Coney Island, Inc. (dba: National Coney Island) to 
March 18, 2013 Regular City Council Meeting. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Slater, Campbell 
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

f) Nordstrom, Inc. (dba: Nordstrom Café) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Ellie Dello, representing Nordstrom Café. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-042 
Moved by Campbell  
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Nordstrom, Inc. (dba: Nordstrom Café) 
Address: 2850 W. Big Beaver Rd., 48084 
License No: Class C Resort (41004-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 16, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 9 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, RECOMMENDS renewal 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 
serving employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy 

Police Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police 
Department within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Slater, Campbell, Fleming  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

g) Rochester Road Ventures, LLC (dba: Mr. B’s / now Hamlin Pub) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from John Carlin and Jim Tevano, representing Mr. B’s / now Hamlin Pub. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-043 
Moved by Henderson  
Seconded by McGinnis   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Rochester Road Ventures, LLC (dba: Mr. B’s / now Hamlin Pub) 
Address: 3946 Rochester Rd., 48083 
License No: Class C (192874-2012)  SDM (192875-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on November 13, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, RECOMMENDS renewal 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 10 - 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 
serving employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy 

Police Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police 
Department within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Pennington, Slater, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

h) Sams Mayur Indian Cuisine (dba: New Mayur Indian Cuisine) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from representatives of New Mayur Indian Cuisine. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-044 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Sams Mayur Indian Cuisine, LLC (dba: New Mayur Indian Cuisine) 
Address: 5113 Rochester Rd., 48085 
License No: Class C (216067-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on November 13, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Pennington, Slater, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 11 - 

j) Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. (dba: Thunderbird Lanes) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Dennis Ross, Rich Glomb, Eric McEvoy, Michael Stine and Janet Chaney, 
representing Thunderbird Lanes. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-045 
Moved by Pennington  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Thunderbird Lanes, Inc. (dba: Thunderbird Lanes) 
Address: 400 E. Maple Rd., 48084 
License No: Class C (1941-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 10, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, RECOMMENDS renewal 

of the on premises liquor license for the 2013 license year, with the STIPULATION that all 
serving employees receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training acceptable to the Troy 

Police Department, and that licensee PRESENT proof of this training to the Troy Police 
Department within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Slater, Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

C-2 Liquor Violations (SDD/SDM): 

a) Czaryd Enterprises, Inc. (dba: Troy Party Store) 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 12 - 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Joseph Ciaramitaro and Arlene Rydzewski, representing Troy Party Store, and 
Nancy Morrison, from Troy Youth Assistance. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-046 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Pennington  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  Czaryd Enterprises, Inc. (dba: Troy Party Store) 
Address: 6990 John R Rd., 48085 
License No: SDM (11856-2012)  SDD (15685-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on November 13, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, REQUIRES the licensee 
to require all serving employees to receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training 
acceptable to the Troy Police Department, and that licensee present proof of this training to the 
Troy Police Department within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Slater  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

b) NKG Business, Inc. (dba: Buscemi’s) 
 

The Mayor OPENED the Public Hearing.  The Mayor CLOSED the Public Hearing after hearing 
comment from Naji Abdal and Ghazwan “Gus” Abdal, representatives of Buscemi’s, and Nancy 
Morrison, from Troy Youth Assistance. 
 
Resolution #2013-02-047 
Moved by McGinnis  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 20, 2013 

 

- 13 - 

Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy scheduled a hearing, as allowed under State Law and the City of 
Troy Ordinances, Chapter 101, and also the Liquor License Agreement between the licensee 
and the City; to review the following alleged violation:  
 
Name:  NKG Business, Inc. (dba: Buscemi’s) 
Address: 3176 Rochester Rd., 48083 
License No: SDD (188473-2012)  SDM (188474-2012) 

Violation: SALE TO MINOR (Compliance Test) on May 18, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice the licensee was given the opportunity to review this cited 
infraction, and an opportunity to confront witnesses and/or statements of accusers while in the 
presence of this City Council, sitting as a hearing body on Wednesday, February 20, 2013;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That as a result of this hearing, the Troy City Council 

HAS been persuaded that the alleged violation did occur at the above referenced licensed 
establishment;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That due to the violation at the licensed establishment, the Troy 

City Council, after due notice, appropriate hearing and deliberations, REQUIRES the licensee 
to require all serving employees to receive TIPS or TAMS or other comparable training 
acceptable to the Troy Police Department, and that licensee present proof of this training to the 
Troy Police Department within 90 days of today’s date. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a certified copy of this resolution SHALL BE SENT to the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Pennington, Slater, Campbell  
No: None 
Absent: Tietz  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:31 PM. 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

  Page 1 
 

  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  February 22, 2013 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and Landscape 

Services 
 

History 
Three-year requirements of Mowing and Landscape Services with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years was competitively bid and opened on March 1, 2010, in accordance with City Charter 
and Code.  The scope of work includes all labor, tools, equipment, chemicals, transportation, mowing 
and landscape maintenance services for municipal grounds including but not limited to medians, I/75 
overpasses, irrigated athletic fields, parks, fire stations and cemeteries. On March 15, 2010, Troy City 
Council approved the three-year contract with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the 
low total bidder, Green Meadows Lawnscape Inc of Sterling Heights, MI (Resolution # 2010-03-071 
Item I-4b).   
 
Green Meadows Lawnscape has expressed interest in renewing its current contract for one (1) 
additional year under the same pricing, terms, and conditions. When asked, Green Meadows 
Lawnscape also expressed an interest in performing additional mowing and landscape services under 
the same pricing, terms, and conditions, historically performed under two separate additional 
contracts.  This would include mowing of detention ponds, undeveloped properties, ROW, the DDA 
and Civic Center.  The current contract with Green Meadows allows the City of Troy to add additional 
acreage provided the scope of work does not materially change.  The one-year renewal would expire 
December 31, 2013.  
 
Purchasing 
Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting 
new bids for mowing and landscape services as operating costs have increased primarily for fuel. 

 
Financial 
Combining like contracts was recommended by ICMA to be beneficial to the City of Troy. Our 
research concludes that combining three mowing and landscape service functions into one contract 
and realigning service responsibilities will save an estimated annual cost of $60,000. These savings 
will be reflected in the DDA, Civic Center, and Drains budgets, with no reduction of services. Funds 
are available through the Public Works operating budgets.   
 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

  Page 2 
 

  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
February 22, 2013 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
Re:  Exercise Renewal Option – Mowing and Landscape Services 
 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one additional year with Green 
Meadows Lawnscape Inc of Shelby Township, MI (new location) for mowing and landscape services 
of all municipal property at unit prices detailed on the bid tabulation opened March 1, 2010, for an 
estimated total cost of $410,000 to expire December 31, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Awawrd 12-13 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 MowingServicesITB-COT10-04.doc 



February 14, 2013 

 

TO:       Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent of Parks, Streets & Drains  

FROM:      Susan A Leirstein, Purchasing Director  

RE:      MARKET SURVEY – Mowing Services 

 
 
United Lawnscape, Inc     Jeremy   (586) 752-5000 
Per my conversation with Jeremy on 2/14/13, since the last time this contract was formally bid 
(2010), operating costs have increased primarily for fuel.  Labor has remained stable.  Next year 
more changes are anticipated with the enactment of Obama Care. 
 
 
Bowman Associates    Jerry Bowman  (586) 871-5094 
No contact made as bidder’s prices were already more than double that of the low bidder, 
Green Meadows Lawnscape. 
 
 
Purchasing surveyed the MITN website for recent solicitations and found results were not 
comparable as many entities restrict their contracts by pricing per cut per location, instead of by 
the acre, which allows for contract additions and deletions as necessary.  
 
Based upon the above review, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer to renew 
the contract for 2013 Mowing and Landscape Maintenance Services with the current contractor, 
Green Meadows Lawnscape Inc of Shelby Township, MI. (new location)        
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 12‐13 New Format\ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 ‐ MARKETSURVEY – MowingServices02.13.doc 





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final March 15, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS said streets into 
the City of Troy local street system, and said streets are located within the City of Troy; right of 
way is under the control of the City of Troy; said streets are public streets and are for public 
street purposes and were open to the public prior to December 31, 2009; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DECERTIFIES the following 
streets: Alger, Chopin and Eckerman effective on December 31, 2009. 
 
I-7 Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
Resolution #2010-03-070-I-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2010-2011 membership rates for 
Troy Racquet Club as stated in the report from the Parks and Recreation Department dated 
March 5, 2010, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
I-8 Release of Construction Phasing Agreement – 301 and 305 W. Big Beaver 
 
Resolution #2010-03-070-I-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Release of the Construction 
Phasing Agreement dated August 8, 1994 concerning the property at 301 and 305 W. Big 
Beaver Road, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
I-9 Approval of Munchiando Relocation Claim – John R Road Improvement Project, 

Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel 43 – Sidwell #88-
20-02-279-002 

 
Resolution #2010-03-070-I-9 
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, Troy City Council 
hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from James W. Munchiando and Elizabeth S. 
Munchiando pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 6675 John R, having 
Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002, and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $9,144.60. 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Mowing and Landscape 

Maintenance Services   
 
Resolution #2010-03-071 
Moved by Schilling   
Seconded by Kerwin 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – Final March 15, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a three-year contract for Mowing and 
Landscape Maintenance Services for municipal grounds and abandoned properties with an 
option to renew for two additional years to the low total bidder, Green Meadows Lawnscape, 
Inc. of Sterling Heights, MI for an estimated total cost of $229,328.00 per year, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 1, 2010 with the contract expiring December 31, 
2012, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
Yes:  Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Fleming  
No:  None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
   
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time):  
a) Motor Carrier Enforcement Cost Recovery Initiative – April 5, 2010 
b) Cancellation of Troy Daze Festival 

Noted and Filed 
 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
K-1  Using Fund Balance to Advance Sustainability – Referred by Council Member 

Robin Beltramini – No Action Taken 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   Council Comments Advanced 
 
Mayor Schilling encouraged the public to complete and return their 2010 Census forms as soon 
as possible. 
 
Council Member Kerwin indicated that a census worker will not make a personal visit if the 
census form is completed by mail.  
 
Council Member Kerwin would like the training opportunities for members of the Planning 
Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals to continue, and suggested that an ethics policy be 
formulated.  
 
Council Member Howrylak  indicated that the City and its commissions are not allowed by law to 
take a position on any election, but are permitted as individuals to campaign, support 
candidates and endorse issues. 



March 9, 2010 

TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award To Low Bidder – Mowing and Landscape 
Maintenance Services 

Background
� On March 1, 2010, bid proposals were received to provide all labor, tools, equipment, chemicals, 

transportation, and landscape maintenance services including mowing for municipal grounds and 
abandoned properties for three-years with an option to renew for two additional years.

� This contract services a wide range of municipal sites and reduces visual barriers and mosquito breeding 
grounds.

� 318 vendors were notified via the MITN system.
� Five vendors responded, one statement of no bid was received and one vendor did not meet specifications 

for failure to provide the proper bid surety.

Financial Considerations
� Funds will be available from the various departmental Operating Budgets for contractual services. 

Legal Considerations
� ITB-COT 10-04, Mowing and Landscape Maintenance Services was competitively bid as required by City 

Charter and Code. 
� The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper bid and contract 

documents, including insurance certificates, and all other specified requirements.

Recommendations
� City management recommends awarding a three-year contract for Mowing and Landscape Maintenance 

Services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years to the low total bidder, Green Meadows 
Lawnscape Inc of Sterling Heights, MI for an estimated total cost of $229,328.00 per year at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened March 1, 2010 to expire December 31, 2012.

G:/Bid Award 10-11 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – RoughMow  ITB-COT 10-04  03.10.doc 

CCIITTYY CCOOUUNNCCIILL AACCTTIIOONN RREEPPOORRTT

I-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-04
Opening Date -- 3/1/10 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2
Date Reviewed - 3/10/10 jh/sl MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL: FURNISH ALL LABOR, TOOLS, EQUIPMENT, CHEMICALS, TRANSPORATION, AND LANDSCAPE 
              MAINTENANCE SERVICES INCLUDING MOWING FOR 3 YEARS WITH OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO-YEARS
PROPOSAL A: MEDIANS Per Acre Per Acre Per Acre
     Split Mowing Schedule Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

2010 279.5 Acres 25.00$     30.80$    60.00$    
2011 279.5 Acres 25.00$     30.80$    60.00$    
2012 279.5 Acres 25.00$     30.80$    70.00$    

PROPOSAL B: VARIOUS LOCATIONS Per Acre Per Acre Per Acre
     Twice-a-Month Mowing Schedule Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

2010 64.7 Acres 27.00$     28.70$   60.00$    
2011 64.7 Acres 27.00$     28.70$   60.00$    
2012 64.7 Acres 27.00$     28.70$    70.00$    

PROPOSAL C: BENEATH I/75 Per OverPass Per OverPass Per OverPass
Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

2010 OverPass 5 90.00$     312.00$ 50.00$    
2011 OverPass 5 90.00$     312.00$ 50.00$    
2012 OverPass 5 90.00$     312.00$  60.00$    

PROPOSAL D: ABANDONED PROPERTIEPer 1000 Sq Ft Per 1000 Sq Ft Per 1000 Sq Ft
Various Locations Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

2010 280,000 Sq Ft. 0.95$       4.00$      0.05$      
2011 280,000 Sq Ft. 0.95$       4.00$      0.05$      
2012 280,000 Sq Ft. 0.95$       4.00$      0.05$      

PROPOSAL E: IRRIGATED FIELDS Per Acre Per Acre Per Acre
Weekly Mow Unit Price Unit Price Unit Price

2010 56.1 Acres 28.00$     29.70$   60.00$    
2011 56.1 Acres 28.00$     29.70$   60.00$    
2012 56.1 Acres 28.00$     29.70$   70.00$    

SITE Visited Site    Y or N Y Y Y
INSPECTION Date

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation Blank
24 Hr Phone # (586) 871-5094
Pager Blank

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed    Y or N Y Y Y

PAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N Y Y Y

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Y Y Y

DMS:
B & B Landscaping Inc - Re: Did not include bid surety as specified HIGHLIGHTED AREA DENOTES LOW BIDDER

NO BIDS: 
Bobs Landscaping Service, Inc. ___________________________

Susan Leirstein CPPO, CPPB
ATTEST: Purchasing Director
Kurt Bovensiep
Ron Hynd
Diane Fisher
Julie Hamilton G: ITB-COT 10-04 Mowing Services

1,666.17$
1,666.17$

3,366.00$

266.00$               
266.00$               

1,570.80$
1,570.80$

1,120.00$              
1,120.00$              

3,366.00$

250.00$
250.00$
300.00$                

266.00$               

3,927.00$

14.00$                  
14.00$                  

1,570.80$

1,666.17$

8,608.60$              

1,120.00$              

450.00$

450.00$               
450.00$

1,560.00$
1,560.00$

16,770.00$            
19,565.00$            

14.00$                  

1,856.89$              

3,882.00$

4,529.00$             
3,882.00$

1,746.90$            1,856.89$

Bowman Associates

10,000.00$                             
16198238 Letter of Credit

Green Meadows Lawnscape United Lawnscape, Inc

10,000.00$                             10,000.00$                             

Inc.
16203963

  TOTAL COST   TOTAL COST   TOTAL COST

 TOTAL COST

6,987.50$             
6,987.50$             
6,987.50$             

 TOTAL COST  TOTAL COST

8,608.60$              
8,608.60$              

16,770.00$            

 TOTAL COST  TOTAL COST

 TOTAL COST  TOTAL COST

1,560.00$              

1,746.90$
1,746.90$             

1,856.89$

2/24 & 2/28 Multiple Occasions 2/20/2010

7:00 am - 8:00 pm 
(586) 707-1499

 TOTAL COST

  TOTAL COST   TOTAL COST   TOTAL COST

 TOTAL COST

30 Days

Blank

Blank

Net 45

None

9 am to 5 pm 
Will be provided upon award

N/A

Net 30 Days

None



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 10-04
Opening Date -- 3/1/10 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2
Date Reviewed - 3/10/10 MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK #:
CHECK AMOUNT:

PROPOSAL: FURNISH ALL LABOR, TOOLS, EQUIPMENT, CHEMICALS, TRANSPORATION, AND LANDSCAPE 
              MAINTENANCE SERVICES INCLUDING MOWING FOR 3 YEARS WITH OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO-YEARS
PROPOSAL A: MEDIANS Per Acre Per Acre
     Split Mowing Schedule Unit Price Unit Price

2010 279.5 Acres 75.00$     74.00$    
2011 279.5 Acres 75.00$     74.00$    
2012 279.5 Acres 75.00$     74.00$    

PROPOSAL B: VARIOUS LOCATIONS Per Acre Per Acre
     Twice-a-Month Mowing Schedule Unit Price Unit Price

2010 64.7 Acres 68.00$     92.85$
2011 64.7 Acres 68.00$     92.85$
2012 64.7 Acres 68.00$     92.85$    

PROPOSAL C: BENEATH I/75 Per OverPass Per OverPass
Unit Price Unit Price

2010 OverPass 5 125.00$   108.00$
2011 OverPass 5 125.00$   108.00$
2012 OverPass 5 125.00$   108.00$

PROPOSAL D: ABANDONED PROPERTIE Per 1000 Sq Ft Per 1000 Sq Ft
Various Locations Unit Price Unit Price

2010 280,000 Sq Ft. 1.75$       5.50$      
2011 280,000 Sq Ft. 1.75$       5.50$      
2012 280,000 Sq Ft. 1.75$       5.50$      

PROPOSAL E: IRRIGATED FIELDS Per Acre Per Acre
Weekly Mow Unit Price Unit Price

2010 56.1 Acres 69.00$     67.50$
2011 56.1 Acres 69.00$     67.50$
2012 56.1 Acres 69.00$     67.50$

SITE Visited Site    Y or N Y Y
INSPECTION Date

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation
24 Hr Phone #
Pager

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet
Signed    Y or N Y Y

PAYMENT TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT Y or N Y Y

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE Y or N Y Y

G: ITB-COT 10-04 Mowing Services

3,870.90$            3,786.75$

2/26 & 2/27 2/23 & 2/24/2010

3,870.90$            3,786.75$
3,870.90$            3,786.75$

490.00$                1,540.00$               
490.00$                1,540.00$               

  TOTAL COST  TOTAL COST

  TOTAL COST   TOTAL COST
490.00$                1,540.00$               

625.00$               540.00$
625.00$                540.00$                  

  TOTAL COST  TOTAL COST
625.00$               540.00$

4,399.60$            6,007.40$
4,399.60$             6,007.40$               

  TOTAL COST  TOTAL COST
4,399.60$            6,007.40$

20,683.00$             
20,962.50$           20,683.00$             
20,962.50$           20,683.00$             

10,000.00$                               10,000.00$                               

Management, Inc

  TOTAL COST   TOTAL COST

WH Canon, Inc. Landscape Concepts 

332083

20,962.50$           

1555801

M - Sat 7am - 7pm 7:00 am - 7:00 pm 
(734) 732-1761 (734) 368-8493

Blank Blank

Net 30 Blank

Blank Blank



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  February 14, 2013 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
  Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, and Drains 
    
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – Hauling and Disposal of 

Dirt and Debris 
 

 
History 
One-year requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one 
additional year was competitively bid and opened on February 2, 2012, in accordance with City 
Charter and Code.  The scope of work includes hauling and disposal of broken concrete, broken 
asphalt, fill dirt excavated from water and sewer repairs, catch basis sludge and street sweepings.  
Material is located at the Department of Public Works 4693 Rochester Road.  On April 2, 2012, Troy 
City Council approved a one-year contract to provide for the Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
with an option to renew for one additional year to the low bidder, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, 
MI (Resolution # 2012-04-070-J4a).  Bedrock Express LTD is now interested in renewing their 
contract under the same prices, terms, and conditions to expire April 30, 2014. 
 
Purchasing 
Purchasing has conducted a market survey and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting 
new bids for hauling and disposal of excavated and extracted material.  A survey of like services was 
performed on the MTIN website, and another contract bid in 2012 by Sterling Heights reveals pricing 
up for 2013 by 5.5% when compared to Troy.   

 
Financial 
Funds are available through the various Public Works operating budgets.  $36,160 was spent in 2012 
and $64,000 is budgeted. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one additional year with Bedrock 
Express LTD of Ortonville, MI for the hauling and disposal of dirt and debris under the same contract 
prices, terms, and conditions expiring April 30, 2014. 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta Farouk, Project Construction Manager 
 
G:\Bid Award 12-13 New Format\ Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 3 Hauling&DisposalITB-COT12-01.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04b





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Final April 2, 2012 
 

- 19 - 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2012-04-070 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) J-2a, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Hauling and Disposal 

of Dirt and Debris 
 
Resolution #2012-04-070-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one-year contract to provide 
Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one (1) additional 
year to the low bidder, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI, for an estimated total cost 
of $58,840.00, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened February 2, 2012, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a 
contract expiration of March 31, 2013. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON the contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Home Chore Lawn 

and Yard Services 
 
Resolution #2012-04-070-J-4b 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
March 19, 2012 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder –  
   Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris 
 
 
Background  
 
On February 2, 2012, bid proposals were received electronically to provide one-year requirements of 
Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris with an option to renew for one additional year.  74 vendors 
were notified of the bid opportunity via the MITN website, www.mitn.info with eight  (8) on-line bid 
responses received.  Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI is the low bidder for all items to be 
hauled under this contract. 
 
ITB-COT 12-01, Hauling & Disposal of Dirt & Debris was competitively bid as required by City Charter 
and Code.  The award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of properly executed insurance 
certificates, and all other specified requirements.  
 
Recommendation  
 
City management recommends awarding a contract for Hauling & Disposal of Dirt & Debris, to the low 
bidder, Bedrock Express LTD of Ortonville, MI for an estimated total cost of $58,840.00, at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation dated February 2, 2012, to expire March 31, 2013. 
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds are available through the Public Works operating budgets for the Streets and Water Divisions 

 
 
Prepared by: Marina Basta-Farouk, Project Construction Manager  
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 12-13 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 HaulingDisposalTB-COT 12-01.doc 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 12-01
Opening Date -- 2/2/12 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 3
Date Reviewed - 2/22/12 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: sl Bedrock Osburn Ponzio 
Electronic Bid Express Ltd Industries, Inc Construction LLC

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

1 2,000 Broken concrete with & without wire, possibly mixed
 w/fill dirt 4.24$                 4.50$                 7.39$                  

2 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 4.24$                 7.00$                 10.39$                

3 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer
repairs. 4.24 7.00$                 6.39$                  

4 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 16.44$               18.75$               18.49$                
ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: (1 - 4) 58,840.00$        83,750.00$        88,390.00$         

PAYMENT TERMS: 2% disc pmt, net 10 Net 30 Net 30 days
days; 5% disc net
credit card 24hrs

DELIVERY/START DATE: W/I 48 hours 48 hours upon award

MINIMUM ORDER: 50 Tons 50 Tons No

REFERENCES: Y or N Y Y Y
Riverview Veolia / Riverview 

DISPOSAL SITE: Highlands Arbor Hills Landfill

APPROVED SITE Y or N Y Y Y
EPA PERMIT #: 980 680 657 MIK 114185416 200410192

48 HOUR SERVICE - Catch Basin Material  
Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations 8AM-5PM M-F 6AM-5PM M-Sat 5AM-5PM
24 Hr Phone # (810) 217-6324 (313) 363-8080 (586) 960-4142
Tax ID # 38-2691219 38-6061972 45-1797086

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Y N Y
Date 2011 1/31/2012

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD -Box Ckd Y or N Y N N

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Y Y Y

ATTEST: PROPOSAL: One (1) year requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris

Susan Riesterer with an Option to Renew for One (1) Additional Year
Marina Basta-Farouk 
Julie Hamilton 

___________________________
Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB

G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 12-01 Purchasing Director

HIGHLIGHTED AREA DENOTES LOW BIDDER



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 12-01
Opening Date -- 2/2/12 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 3
Date Reviewed - 2/22/12 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: Dales Disposal Madalyn's Technical 
Electronic Bid Contracting LLC Logistic Corp

Did Not Return Bid
Proposal Forms 

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

1 2,000 Broken concrete with & without wire, possibly mixed
 w/fill dirt 9.75$                 10.00$               17.50$                

2 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 9.75$                 10.00$               17.50$                

3 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer
repairs. 9.75$                 8.50$                 17.50$                

4 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 17.00$              32.00$               17.50$               
ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: (1 - 4) 114,500.00$      121,500.00$      192,500.00$       

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30
0% discount

DELIVERY/START DATE: ASAP As specified start 4/1/12

MINIMUM ORDER: 50 Tons $60,000 No

REFERENCES: Y or N Y Y
Riverview Riverview 

DISPOSAL SITE: Land Preserve Landfill

APPROVED SITE Y or N Y Y
EPA PERMIT #: MID980680657 9307 / 399054

48 HOUR SERVICE - Catch Basin Material  
Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet 

M-F
CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations 7AM-5:30PM 7AM-5PM M-F

24 Hr Phone # (586) 524-1948 (734) 644-3581
Tax ID # 20-8191810 38-3413000

SITE VISIT: Yes/No Y N
Date 1/23/2012

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD -Box Ckd Y or N N N

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Y Y

G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 12-01



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 12-01
Opening Date -- 2/2/12 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 3
Date Reviewed - 2/22/12 HAULING/DISPOSAL OF DIRT AND DEBRIS

VENDOR NAME: Trinity Ellsworth 
Electronic Bid Environmental Industries 

Solutions Did Not Return Bid
Proposal Forms 

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY(TONS)   DESCRIPTION TON TON TON

1 2,000 Broken concrete with & without wire, possibly mixed
 w/fill dirt 20.50$               27.50$               

2 1,000 Broken asphalt possibly mixed with fill dirt 20.50$               27.50$               

3 7,000 Fill Dirt, material excavated from water and sewer
repairs. 20.50$               27.50$               

4 1,000 Catch basin sludge and street sweepings. 26.64$              32.50$               
ESTIMATED TOTAL ALL ITEMS: (1 - 4) 231,640.00$      307,500.00$      

PAYMENT TERMS: N/A Net 30

DELIVERY/START DATE: upon award W/I 24 Hours

MINIMUM ORDER: No No

REFERENCES: Y or N Y
Riverview 

DISPOSAL SITE: Land Preserve

APPROVED SITE Y or N Y
EPA PERMIT #: MID 980608657

48 HOUR SERVICE - Catch Basin Material  
Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet 

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operations 7AM-5PM
24 Hr Phone # (313) 218-1045
Tax ID # 27-1019282

SITE VISIT: Yes/No N
Date

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD -Box Ckd Y or N N

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Y

G:\HaulingDirt&Debris ITB-COT 12-01



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:  February 19, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 

Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 – Cooperative Contracts - Upgrade and Expansion of 

Exchange Email System 
 
 
History 
 
The City utilizes Microsoft Exchange Server as the foundation for its email system.  After initial 
implementation it was upgraded to Exchange 5.5 in 1998 then Exchange 2003 in 2004.  Mainstream 
support for Exchange 2003 ended as of April 14, 2009.  Currently Microsoft no longer provides fixes 
for bugs or warranty issues for our current version.  They have continued to provide security updates 
to the product, but that will stop when Extended Support ends in April 2014.   
 
Microsoft released Exchange 2010 in November of 2009 and Exchange 2013 in January of this year.  
These newer products provide many features which would improve City email services from a 
support, management and end user perspective, translating to improved efficiencies.  Some of those 
features are outlined in Attachment A.  
 
Notwithstanding the age of our current email system, the fact that it will be completely obsolete next 
year, and the additional features available in the newer software, we have also had many requests to 
expand mailbox size.  Some of those requests are related to email retention for eDiscovery purposes 
and FOIA requests, but many are related to volume and size of emails as a result of more and more 
business conducted electronically.  The Information Technology department has been very cautious 
when approving requests for larger mailboxes for a couple of reasons. The first is not to overextend 
the limits of our Exchange 2003 server and the other is the additional storage and backup resources 
required.  We are at a point where employees are beginning to spend more and more time managing 
their inbox thereby reducing efficiencies. 
 
Unfortunately there is currently no direct migration from Exchange 2003 to Exchange 2013.  The 
recommended upgrade path is to migrate to Exchange 2010 first.  Once that step is complete and 
stable, then migrate to Exchange 2013.  However, Microsoft has not yet released the required service 
pack for Exchange 2010 that will allow it to communicate with Exchange 2013 to perform that 
migration.  That service pack (SP3) is expected in the first quarter of 2013, but as of yet is not 
available.  In addition, Exchange 2013 is so new that it would be wise to wait at least a year for all the 
bugs to be worked out, and Microsoft has released the first service pack to fix any major issues.  The 
good news is that purchasing Exchange 2013 allows installation of Exchange 2010, while still having 
the option to move to 2013 for no additional license costs when we are ready. 
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-04c



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
The City utilizes a Hewlett Packard Storage Area Network (SAN) to house all data supporting the 
City’s virtual server environment.  The additional servers required for Exchange 2010/2013 can be 
accommodated within this environment; however, additional storage would be required.  That storage 
could easily be expanded by adding a shelf to the SAN and filling it with drives to provide the data 
storage required for much larger mailboxes, plus room for growth.  Currently the majority of mailboxes 
are limited to 50MB with a select group up to 250MB, but our intent would be to expand mailboxes to 
a minimum of 2GB, and allowing even larger mailboxes when necessary on a case by case basis. 
Adding a fully populated shelf would expand capacity by approximately 6TB. 
 
Adding significant storage would require that the City’s disk based backup system would also have to 
be expanded to accommodate the increased volume of data.  The Exagrid system purchased in 
October of 2011 is already close to capacity.  Data growth has been much greater than originally 
anticipated and increasing mailbox size would push the unit beyond its limits.  Adding a second unit 
would easily accommodate this increase plus allow for future growth by doubling our backup capacity. 
 
Purchasing 
 
Pricing for this project was based on the following cooperative contracts:  
 
 In 2008, a National IPA Information Technology Solutions contract was competitively bid by the 

City of Tucson, RFP 083052 and awarded to CDW-G, which included software and hardware, to 
expire August 2013.  On March 3, 2008, Troy City Council authorized the use of NIPA contracts 
with approval for Capital items over $10,000. (Resolution #2008-03-086-F-4c). 

 
 In addition, City staff is authorized to purchase goods and services through the Regional 

Education Media Center Association of Michigan (REMC) program when appropriate (Resolution 
#2002-10-548-E-12).  Software licenses specifically related to the Library are eligible for purchase 
through the program, which will also be provided by CDW-G. 

 
 The standard purchasing three quote process for items under $10,000 will be used for the disk 

expansion portion of the project.   
 

Financial 
 
Attachment B outlines the details of the costs for this project. This project was planned and budgeted 
for $90,000.  Funds are currently budgeted in the Information Technology 2012/2013 capital budget.  
 
Recommendation 
 
To greatly improve the City’s current email environment City management recommends migrating the 
current Microsoft Exchange 2003 email system to Microsoft Exchange 2010, with future plans to 
migrate to 2013, through the NIPA and REMC cooperative contracts with CDW-G, and expanding 
disk and backup resources to accommodate the need for increased mailbox size.  Costs for this 
project as outlined in Attachment B total approximately $79,355.00 with annual recurring costs of 
approximately $2,800. 
 
GMP/gmp/G:\Exchange 2010 Upgrade\City Council\Exchange 2010.Doc



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 

 
Attachment A 

 
Exchange 2010/2013  

Selected Features 
 
 

 Server improvements 
o Improved performance – faster and more reliable than previous versions 
o Allows for larger mailboxes and databases 
o High availability improvements 
o More secure 

 By design – threat models were developed and tested as the system was 
designed 

 By default – most network communications are encrypted and only services 
required are installed 

 
 Management improvements 

o Streamlined and intuitive web based administration 
o Best Practices Analyzer looks for potential problems in the Exchange deployment 

before they occur 
o Server based rules for alerts, block messages, encrypt 
o ActiveSync Mobile Management Policies 
o Retention Policies 
o Multi-mailbox search 
o Role-based access control providing a method to grant access to specific people to 

perform searches 
o Ability to allow users to create and delete distribution groups 

 
 End User improvements 

o Better inbox management through 
 Conversation view 
 Inline compose and reply 

o Ability to track delivery receipt information on all messages 
o Improved Web Interface 

 Allows calendar sharing, view multiple calendars side by side, and use 
scheduling assistant 

 Screen display designed for mobile devices 
 Multiple browser support 
 Cached mode to allow off-line activity 

 
 Hybrid deployment – ability to deploy mailboxes on-premises, online or both 

o Provides a mechanism to step into cloud services if and when this option becomes 
more feasible 



 

 

4 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 

 
Attachment B 

 
Detailed Costs 

 
  Description  Vendor/Contract Quantity  Unit Cost   Total Cost 

Hardware           

  Exagrid Expansion includes 
first year maintenance  CDWG/NIPA  1    22,000.00  

 
22,000.00 

 
SAN Expansion  Quote Estimate  1      8,000.00  

 
8,000.00 

Software       

  Exchange Server  
Enterprise 2013  CDWG/NIPA  1

  
2,800.00  

 
2,800.00 

  Client Access License   

 
Standard City  CDWG/NIPA  430            54.00  

 
23,220.00 

 
Standard Library  CDWG/REMC  70              3.00  

 
210.00 

Implementation Fees   

 
Consulting fees  CDWG/NIPA  125          185.00  

 
23,125.00 

 
Total One‐time Fee     

 
$79,355.00 

       

Maintenance        

  Exagrid Annual 
Maintenance  CDWG/NIPA   

2,800

       

  Total Annual Recurring 
Maintenance   

  $2,800

 
 



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  February 18, 2013 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
    
Subject: Addendum #1 - Charnwood Hills Phase 1 Contract #12-05 
  Chip Seal Treatment in Charnwood Hills  
   
History 
 
Last year bids were received for chip seal treatment on roads in the Charnwood Hills subdivision, 
located east of Beach Road in Section 6.  The low bidder was Highway Maintenance & Construction 
Co. at $165,375, which was 3.29% below the Engineer’s estimate.   
 
Last year’s work consisted of approximately 25,000 square yards of double chip seal (a double layer 
of asphalt emulsion and crushed stone) and a single fog seal treatment (a single application of liquid 
asphalt on top).  The project was completed in August, 15% under budget and none of the 
contingency monies for unexpected road base repairs were used.     
 
Based on Highway Maintenance Company’s high quality work last year, they were asked to extend 
their unit prices for the same work in the Charnwood Hills subdivision west of Beach and they agreed.   
This chip and fog seal work, if approved, would be done this spring.   
 
Financial 
 
Funds for this work are available in the 2012/13 budget. The budgeted amount includes funds for 
engineering, construction, inspection and contingencies. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that City Council approve Addendum #1 for additional work by Highway 
Maintenance & Construction Co. to apply double chip seal and fog seal to all roads in the Charnwood 
Hills, Phase 2 project area located west of Beach Road.  The estimated total cost is $230,000.  In 
addition, we are requesting authorization to approve additional road work, if needed, not to exceed 
20% of the addendum cost. 
 
 
 
SF/sf\G:\Contracts\Contracts - 2012\Contract 12-5 - Charnwood Phase I Chip Seal\Correspondence\Addendum#01R2.doc 

stewartc
Text Box
J-05







 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  February 26, 2013 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council  
  
From:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
    
Subject: Request for Special Budget Study Session Date Change 
 

 
I would like to request that the Special Budget Study Session Scheduled for Monday, April 29th at 
7:30pm in the Council Boardroom at 500 W. Big Beaver Road be canceled and a new date of 
Wednesday, April 24th at 7:30pm in the Council Boardroom at 500 W. Big Beaver Road be scheduled. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G: my documents/Agenda/03.04.13 – Request for Special Budget Study Session Meeting Date Change 

stewartc
Text Box
J-06



stewartc
Text Box
J-07





























 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:        February 27, 2013                       
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  

Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
Subject: 3rd Annual Regional Arts & Culture Awards 
 

 
Background 
 
Planning is underway for Paint Creek Center for the Arts’ (PCCA) 3rd annual Regional Arts & Culture 
Awards. The event will be held once again at the Royal Park Hotel in early June. The Regional Arts & 
Culture Awards encompass eight municipal awards honoring those who are fostering arts & culture in 
their local communities and one distinguished Regional Arts Award by PCCA to an individual or 
organization fostering arts & culture in the greater southeast Michigan area.  The City of Troy 
nominated the Image and Arts Council of Troy for this award last year. 
 
PCCA will work once again with the original eight municipalities in its service region including 
Rochester, Rochester Hills, Oakland Twp., OrionTwp., Auburn Hills, Troy, Shelby Twp. and 
Washington Twp., to coordinate the selection of an award recipient representing each of these 
communities. The awards are intended to recognize those who are fostering arts & culture in 
meaningful and impactful ways. Award recipients could include: an individual who has committed their 
time, resources, leadership and expertise to advance an arts related mission; an individual, family or 
business who has made a significant financial contribution to the arts; an arts educator; an individual 
who has demonstrated leadership in founding, reenergizing or sustaining an arts organization; a 
group, individual or organization creating awareness or support for the arts or an artist or arts 
organization serving the community in broad and impactful ways. 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is our recommendation that the City nominate the Belian Art Center and Gallery Director Zabel 
Belian to represent Troy.  In 1985 Dr. Gary Belian had a vision to combine his two passions: art and 
dentistry. He converted an old house on a busy corner of 5980 Rochester Road and Square Lake to 
an art gallery and dental office. He gave his patients the opportunity to enrich their lives with beautiful 
art and antiquities during their dental visits. His son Dr. Raffi Belian had the pleasure of joining the 
practice in 2003 after completing his dental studies.  
 
The Belian Art Center features exhibits of internationally recognized artists as well as a number of 
local artists including Richard Hunt, Edward Avedisian and Emil Kazaz.  They also offer a wide  
 

stewartc
Text Box
J-08



 

 

2 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
assortment of fine pottery. Zabel Belian, Gallery Director is an artist who is skilled in painting and raku 
pottery. She also conducts art and watercolor painting classes for children and adults. 
 
The Belian Art Center gives back to the community by donating art pieces for fundraisers to help 
many non-profit organizations each and every year.  Zabel Belian also continues to take classes to 
advance her own artistic skills.  She works together with other artists on creative projects.   
 
Most recently Zabel Belian and Linda Shears really let their creativity flow with an amazing 
transformation of a courthouse chair. They invested over 50 hours in bringing this chair to life. The 
project began as a part of an art challenge presented by the Michigan Municipal League. Their theme 
was public art. Interested municipalities selected old courtroom style chairs to be decorated by each 
community's artists. The transformed chairs have been auctioned for charity. 
 
Zabel Belian also hosts the Image and Arts Council of Troy for monthly meetings at her Gallery.  She 
is a wonderful example of all the traits that the Paint Creek Center for the Arts is looking for to foster 
arts & culture in our community and the Image and Arts Council wholeheartedly support this 
nomination.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date: February 25, 2013 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From: Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
 R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 

Subject: ANNOUNCEMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING (MARCH 18, 2013) – REZONING 
APPLICATION (File Number Z 742) – Proposed 1071 Villa Park (part of Parcel 
Identification No. 88-20-02-301-010), East Side of Rochester Road, South of South 
Boulevard, Section 2, From R-1D (One Family Residential) District to RT (One Family 
Attached Residential) District 

 
 
A public hearing for this item is scheduled for the March 18, 2013 City Council Regular meeting. 
 
The public notice language is attached. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Map 
2. Public notice language 

 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z 742  Rochester Villas  Sec 02\CC Memo_Announce Public Hearing 2013 03 18.doc 

 
 

stewartc
Text Box
K-01a



RO
CH

ES
TE

R

W
AL

KE
R

WOODSIDE

VILLA PARK

EM
ER

AL
D 

LA
KE

SA
ND

SH
OR

ES

CONGRESS

POND RIDGE

OTTAWA

DIANE

MARENGO

THREE LAKES

SANDY POINT

Ë 1 inch = 300 feet

Proposed Rezoning Parcel
R-1D to RT

Rochester Villas Proposed
Rezoning Sketch

Parcel #88-20-02-301-010



 

 

CITY OF TROY 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City Hall, 

500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan, on Monday, March 18, 2013, at 7:30 p.m. or as soon 

thereafter as the agenda will permit, to consider a City Initiated Rezoning Request to 

rezone the following described property from the R-1D (One Family Residential) district to 

the RT (One-Family Attached Residential) district.  The subject property was rezoned in 

error to the R-1D (One Family Residential) district in April 2011 when the comprehensively 

rewritten Zoning Ordinance was adopted.  This rezoning will correct the error. 

 
The subject property is located on the east side of Rochester Road, south of 
South Boulevard, commonly known as Rochester Villas. 
 
The subject property address is 1071 Villa Park, part of Parcel ID # 88-20-02-301-010. 

 
Comments can be expressed at the Public Hearing, or written comments can be directed 
to the attention of the Planning Department, City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, 
Michigan 48084, or by e-mail to planning@troymi.gov no later than 3:00 p.m. on the date 
of the meeting.  If you have questions you may contact the Planning Department by e-mail 
or by phone at (248) 524-3364. 
 
The application on file can be viewed and/or copies can be purchased at the Planning 
Department, City of Troy, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan 48084. 
 
Notices and information for public hearings will also be posted on the City website at 
http://www.troymi.gov/PublicHearings/ . 
 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
 Aileen Bittner, CMC 
 City Clerk 
 
NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

mailto:planning@troymi.gov�
http://www.troymi.gov/PublicHearings/�
mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�


stewartc
Text Box
K-02a





















stewartc
Text Box
O-01a



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                    September 27th, 2012                                            

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
September 27th, 2012 at the Troy Community Center, room 504.  Vice Chairperson, Janice 
Zikakis called the meeting to order at 6:50 p.m. 
 
Present:  Janice Zikakis, Orestes Kaltsounis, Jeff Stewart, Gary Hauff, Stu Redpath, Jeff 
Biegler, Kurt Bovensiep, Aditya Yelamanchi (student representative)    
 
Absent: Tod Gazetti, Kathleen Fejes, Meaghan Kovacs 
 
Visitors:  Justin Breyer, intern City Manager’s Office 
 
Resolution # PR - 2012 - 09 - 001 
Moved by Orestes Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Jeff Stewart 
 
RESOLVED, that the minutes of November 17, 2011are approved as submitted. 
 
Yes: 6   
No: 0   
MOTION CARRIED 
 

I.  New Business 
A. Election of Officers 

 
Resolution #PR – 2012 - 09 - 002 
Moved by Orestes Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Gary Hauff 
 
RESOLVED, that Janice Zikakis be elected as Chairperson for Parks and 
Recreation Board 
 
Yes: 6   
No: 0   
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #PR – 2012 - 09 - 003 
Moved by Gary Hauff 
Seconded by Jeff Orestes Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, that Jeff Stewart be elected as Vice Chairperson for Parks and 
Recreation Board 
 
Yes: 6   
No: 0   
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. Parks and Recreation Master Plan.  Jeff Biegler introduced Justin Breyer as the 
intern working with the City of Troy Manager’s office to update the plan as it 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01b



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                    September 27th, 2012                                            

was a 5 year plan and is up for renewal.  A draft of the Potential Goals and 
Objectives was distributed for the board to review.  The city plans on doing 
workshops as well as online discussion for public to make comments and make 
further changes to the draft.  The board will review again and then the potential 
Goals and Objectives will be presented to Troy City Council.    The goals and 
objectives should be attainable in current economic environment.  The 
workshops will help determine what are the priorities of city residents toward 
developed and undeveloped park properties.  The Planning department is 
developing a map of all properties to make available to the public as part of the 
workshop.  The workshops will be set up and facilitated by a planning 
contractor.  The planning contractor will be seen as a neutral 3rd party leading 
the discussion, and was more cost effective to hire a contractor. 
Please email Justin at j.breyer@troymi.gov with suggestions for goals and 
objectives. 
Jeff Biegler discussed this as a vital document if we apply for any grants.  Most 
grants require city matching funds which would be from the capital budget.  We 
will continue to present capital expenditures to City Council. 
 

C. Budget Discussion—Recreation Budget covers programs and activities.  Senior 
Budget covers all senior programs and activities.  Community Center Budget 
covers this building.  Administration Budget covers Smart, computers, payroll 
expenses and does not have a lot of revenues.  The Community Center budget 
deficit for year 2011/12 reflects a RecTrac billing issue this past June as about 
$80,000 of income from passes for the month of June was not attributed until 
July.  The Troy Family Aquatic Center never had more revenue than expenses. 
This year even covered depreciation.   We had great weather and promotions.  
Billy Casper is doing a great job managing both courses, and are showing 
increased revenues.   

 
II. Old Business—none 

 
III. Staff Reports 

 
A. Jeff Biegler.  Recreation 

 Fitness Room is having a wall removed to add more equipment. 

 Community Center Pass Update.  We have 6,059 ongoing passes which 
is only 78 less than our high in 2008.  

 The main pool had filters and valves repaired this week and the pool was 
closed for 3 days. 
  

B. Kurt Bovensiep.  Parks 

 A cricket field is being installed in the field west of the Community Center 
in the center of the track.  It will be available for practice games and 
represents a very low cost as the field will require no additional 
maintenance. 

 The Community Center parking lot is being resurfaced from the north 
entrance around to the east banquet entrance. 

 There is a new metal roof at Jaycee north restroom and new shingles will 
be put on the roof at the Jaycee south restroom this fall. 

mailto:j.breyer@troymi.gov


Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                    September 27th, 2012                                            

 Milverton will have LED lights in the shelter and a barbeque added this 
fall so will be similar to any other shelter. 

 New fencing has been placed around detention pond at Beaver Trail 
Park 

 Problems this year attracting seasonal employees which hurt 
maintenance of parks.  Seasonal workers are employed from April 1st to 
October 31st. 

 A tree planting grant will be applied to the Rochester Road median.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, November 15th, 2012 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Zikakis, Vice Chairperson 
 
_________________________________ 
Lynne Lambert, Recording Secretary 



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                October 25, 2012                                            

PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
A special meeting of the Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory Board was held Thursday, 
October 25th, 2012 at the Troy Community Center, Administration Meeting Room.   
Chairperson, Janice Zikakis called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Present:  Janice Zikakis, Orestes Kaltsounis, Jeff Stewart, Kathleen Fejes, Laurie Huber, Jeff 
Biegler, Kurt Bovensiep, Aditya Yelamanchi (student representative)    
 
Absent: Tod Gazetti, Meaghan Kovacs, Gary Hauff 
 
Visitors:  Justin Breyer, intern City Manager’s Office 
 
Discussion Item 
 
At the November 12th, 2012 City Council meeting the resolution for the Parks and Recreation 
Five-Year Planning process will be forwarded to the City Council. 
 
The survey that is approved tonight will then be placed online on Tuesday, November 13th, 
2012.  Justin is looking into various ways to let residents know the survey is available online.  
Hard copies will be available at the Planning Department. 
 
Resolution # PR - 2012 - 10 - 001 
Moved by Orestes Kaltsounis 
Seconded by Kathleen Fejes 
 
RESOLVED 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Parks and Recreation Plan of 2007-2012 expires on December 
31, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, It is necessary to develop a Parks and Recreation Five Year Master Plan to 
apply for park improvement grants through the Michigan Department of Nature Resources; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and City administration seek 
comprehensive and inclusive public input in to the Parks and Recreation planning process; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board and City administration find it prudent 
to develop a Parks and Recreation Five-Year Plan to use as a guide for the future of the 
Parks and Recreation Departments;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board supports the furtherance of the Parks and Recreation Five-year planning process 
 
Yes: 5   
No: 0   
MOTION CARRIED 
 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01c



Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - FINAL                                October 25, 2012                                            

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
Next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, November 15th, 2012 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Janice Zikakis, Vice Chairperson 
 
_________________________________ 
Lynne Lambert, Recording Secretary 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JANUARY 2, 2013 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on January 2, 2013 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Michael Carolan 
Brian Kischnick 
 

Members Absent: 
Teresa Brooks 
 

Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Carolan 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 5, 2012 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 

Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Brooks 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, AFRAH ALBANNA FOR AUTOMOTIVE CASTLE, 1251 

ROCHESTER – A variance for relief of the Sign Code to place a third ground sign 
measuring 40 square feet in size on the property.  Section 85.02.05 (C) limits the 
maximum number of ground signs on this parcel to two signs. 
 
Mr. Grusnick briefly reviewed the request that was heard and postponed by the 
Board at their November 7, 2012 meeting.  Mr. Grusnick reported the proposed 
sign location would fall within the Sunoco private easement.  He said Sunoco 
confirmed they have no objections to the placement of the sign on their easement 
but they do request their presence on site during any excavation.  Mr. Grusnick 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01d



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JANUARY 2, 2013 
  

 
 

2 
 

said there are currently two signs on the property as well as one temporary sign.  
Should the applicant be granted to place a third sign, the temporary sign would be 
removed.  Mr. Grusnick reported that the department received two written 
comments in response to the public hearing notice.   
 
The applicant, Afrah Albanna of Automotive Castle, was present.  Mr. Albanna 
gave a history of the property and existing signage.  He said transferring his 
existing sign from the shared signage with his neighbor at 1263 Rochester Road 
(Horn Corporation) to a central location in front of his business would provide 
better wayfinding and building visibility. 
 
Chair Dziurman opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Dziurman closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Chair Dziurman acknowledged receipt of two written comments; one objectionable 
comment from Snell’s Storage and a favorable comment from Horn Corporation. 
 
Mr. Albanna addressed his business relationship with Snell’s Storage with respect 
to road access and signage. 
 
Mr. Grusnick clarified the Mr. Horn’s written comment specifically states he wants 
to retain full use of his existing sign for which he paid and received a permit. 
 
There was discussion on the following: 

 Uniqueness of site; multiple buildings as relates to frontage. 

 Setback distance and requirements. 

 Sunoco private easement. 
o Applicant only property owner affected. 
o Applicant to reach agreement with Sunoco on location of sign. 
o Applicant to coordinate Sunoco’s presence on site during excavation. 

 Snell’s Storage; no frontage or property ownership. 

 Code violations relating to outside storage/display/signage. 
o Whether variance granted or denied, applicant responsible to comply and 

will be cited for any code violations going forward. 

 Due diligence at time of property purchase. 

 Horn Corporation sign to remain as original size and in same location. 

 Visibility of signs. 

 Removal of temporary sign. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL JANUARY 2, 2013 
  

 
 

3 
 

Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Carolan 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the variance request to place a third ground sign on the 
property at a 15 foot setback and beyond from the property line. 
 

Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Brooks 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, PATTI FRANZ FOR AVER SIGN COMPANY, 4889 
ROCHESTER – A variance for relief of the Sign Code to place a ground sign 
measuring 200 square foot, set back 12.67 feet from the Rochester Road right-of-
way line.  Table 85.02.05 requires a 30 foot minimum setback for the proposed 
200 square foot sign. 
 
Mr. Grusnick gave a brief description of the request.  He indicated the department 
received no comments in response to the public notice. 
 
Terry Ulch of Aver Sign Company and Adam Crane of The Kroger Company were 
present. 
 
Messrs. Ulch and Crane addressed the site plan approval and sign permit process 
as relates to the setback requirements prior to and after the Rochester Road right 
of way taking.  They requested approval of the variance so that the sign could be 
installed as originally shown on plans approved by the Planning Commission and 
for clear visibility from a business standpoint. 
 
There was discussion on: 

 Sign size, dimensions, base of sign, setback requirements. 

 Determination by Engineering Department that sign location would not be 
jeopardized by potential future right of way taking. 

 Site plan approval; Zoning Ordinance requirements met. 

 Standard sign for Kroger fuel stations. 
 
Chair Dziurman opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Dziurman closed the floor for public comment. 







PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 22, 2013 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on January 22, 2013 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
 

Absent: 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Thomas Strat 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-01-007 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as printed. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Kempen, Krent, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-01-008 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 8, 2013 Regular meeting as 
printed. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Kempen, Krent, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 22, 2013 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
There was no report as the ZBA representative was absent. 

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
There was no January DDA meeting. 

 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant presented the 2012 Planning Commission Report. 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
8. INTERPRETATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE – Residential Treatment and Recovery 

Facility 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the tour of the Shelby Township sober living facility 
that was conducted on January 17, 2012. 
 
There was discussion on this item. 
 
Paul Smith and David Lord, representing a possible sober living facility in Troy, were 
present and participated in the discussion.  The potential location for this facility is 2447, 
2461 and 2501 Rochester Court. 
 
The Planning Commission reached consensus on their support of sober living facilities 
and the need for developing appropriate language in the Zoning Ordinance to permit 
and regulate these facilities in Troy. 
 
It was determined that the Planning Department will begin working on draft language 
regulating sober living facilities.  The Planning Commission agreed that conceptually, 
they should be regulated similar to adult foster care facilities.  That is, smaller facilities 
should be permitted by right in single family neighborhoods but larger facilities, more 
commercial in nature, should be permitted by special use in more intense districts such 
as multiple family districts. 
 
Some members of the Planning Commission mentioned the importance of informing the 
neighbors of potential facilities in the area.  



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – DRAFT JANUARY 22, 2013 
  

 
 

3 
 

9. PLANNING COMMISSION CODE OF ETHICS 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the Boards and Committees Code of Ethics 
recently adopted by Troy City Council.  This document will be provided to Planning 
Commission members in the future by the Clerk’s Office. 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
10. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items on Current Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 
11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENT 

 
There was general discussion. 
 

 
 
The Special/Study meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
John Tagle, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2013 PC Minutes\Draft\2013 01 22 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 22, 2013 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Tagle called the Special/Study meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order 
at 7:00 p.m. on January 22, 2013 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Philip Sanzica 
Gordon Schepke 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
 

Absent: 
Edward Kempen 
Tom Krent 
Thomas Strat 
 

Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2013-01-007 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the agenda as printed. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Kempen, Krent, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2013-01-008 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schepke 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 8, 2013 Regular meeting as 
printed. 
 

Yes: All present (6) 
Absent: Kempen, Krent, Strat 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01f



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING – FINAL JANUARY 22, 2013 
  

 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
5. ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA) REPORT 

 
There was no report as the ZBA representative was absent. 

 
 
6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 

 
There was no January DDA meeting. 

 
 
7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 

 
Mr. Savidant presented the 2012 Planning Commission Report. 

 
STUDY ITEMS 

 
8. INTERPRETATION OF ZONING ORDINANCE – Residential Treatment and Recovery 

Facility 
 
The Planning Commission discussed the tour of the Shelby Township sober living facility 
that was conducted on January 17, 2012. 
 
There was discussion on this item. 
 
Paul Smith and David Lord, representing a possible sober living facility in Troy, were 
present and participated in the discussion.  The potential location for this facility is 2447, 
2461 and 2501 Rochester Court. 
 
The Planning Commission reached consensus on their support of sober living facilities 
and the need for developing appropriate language in the Zoning Ordinance to permit 
and regulate these facilities in Troy. 
 
It was determined that the Planning Department will begin working on draft language 
regulating sober living facilities.  The Planning Commission agreed that conceptually, 
they should be regulated similar to adult foster care facilities.  That is, smaller facilities 
should be permitted by right in single family neighborhoods but larger facilities, more 
commercial in nature, should be permitted by special use in more intense districts such 
as multiple family districts. 
 
Some members of the Planning Commission mentioned the importance of informing the 
neighbors of potential facilities in the area.  





stewartc
Text Box
O-01g



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT FEBRUARY 6, 2013 
  

 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on February 6, 2013 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks 
Michael Carolan 
Brian Kischnick 
 

Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Carolan 
Support by: Abitheira 
 

RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the January 2, 2013 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, PATRICK STIEBER FOR ALLIED SIGNS, INC., 70 WEST 

MAPLE – 1) In order to place two ground signs (menu boards), each measuring 44 
square feet in area, a variance from the Sign Code that limits the area of signs not 
visible from the road to 36 square feet each.  Both signs will not be visible from the 
public right of way. 2)  In order to place three 9.57 square foot ground signs, a 
variance from the Sign Code which allows a maximum of two ground signs on the 
site, and 3) In order to place a 33 square foot wall sign, a 28.19 square foot variance 
from the requirement that the total combined area of all wall signs not exceed 10% 
of the front area of the structure. 
 
CODE SECTIONS:  1) 85.01.04 (A) (3);  2) 85.02.04 (C) (4) (a and b); 
 3) 85.02.04 (C) (4) (d) 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01h



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT FEBRUARY 6, 2013 
  

 
 

2 
 

Mr. Grusnick gave a report on the item.  He stated building permits were issued to 
construct a new McDonald’s restaurant at this location and the requested variances 
pertain to the new restaurant.  The site currently has two existing ground signs that 
will be refaced to include McDonald’s.  Five wall signs totaling 80.4 square feet were 
approved by the City; a fifth west elevation wall sign was denied. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported that the department received no response to the public 
hearing notice. 
 
The applicant, Patrick Stieber of Allied Signs, and property owner, Peter Ruppe, 
were present. 
 
Mr. Stieber addressed the three variance requests.  1) The two menu boards are 
McDonald’s standardized signs and are sized to accommodate food choices.  The 
same size menu boards can be found at several nearby locations.  2) The 
directional ground signs at the approaches will help reduce traffic congestion and 
confusion.  3) The west elevation wall sign is a standard sign used on newer 
restaurant designs. 
 
Mr. Ruppe announced there was an approved lot split that should allow for 
additional ground signs.  He provided Mr. Grusnick the approved lot split survey. 
 
Mr. Grusnick agreed and advised the Board members that each parcel is permitted 
two ground signs.  The request for variance (2) shall be reduced from three to one 
additional 9.57 foot ground sign located at the West Maple Road approach. 
 
There was Board member discussion on the following: 

 Uniqueness of site; multiple buildings and drive approaches. 

 The necessity of a directional sign at the approaches.  Some thought it not 
necessary at West Maple Road as the approach is clearly marked and the 
building is very visible. 

 Multiple wall signage already approved and the need for an additional sign on 
the west elevation. 

 The site has two existing tenant ground signs that will be refaced to include 
McDonald’s. 

 
Moved by: Kischnick 
Support by: Carolan 
 

RESOLVED, (1) To approve the variance to place two 44 square foot ground signs 
(menu boards); (2) To deny the revised request for a third ground sign at the West 
Maple Road approach; and (3) To deny the variance request for the wall sign. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT FEBRUARY 6, 2013 
  

 
 

3 
 

Discussion of the motion on the floor. 
 
Mr. Kischnick addressed reasons for recommendation of denial for requests (2) and 
(3).  The lot split approval permits one additional ground sign on both parcels.  The 
revised request for one additional directional ground sign at the West Maple Road is 
unnecessary and would add sign clutter.  The proposed wall sign is not highly 
visible; it faces another building to the west.  Mr. Kischnick said McDonald’s signage 
is a brand of its own and is very visible through building architecture. 
 
Vote on the motion on the floor. 
 

Yes: All present (5) 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 

 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Regular meeting of the Board of Building Appeals adjourned at 3:25 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2013\Draft\2013 02 06 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 





ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft February 25, 2013 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held February 25, 2013, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bittner called the Meeting to order at 8:02 AM. 

Roll Call:  

 
PRESENT: David C. Anderson, Timothy Dewan, M. Aileen Bittner – City Clerk 

Approval of Minutes  

 
Resolution #EC-2013-02-002 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 

RESOLVED, That the following Minutes are APPROVED as submitted: 
 
Election Commission Meeting – September 27, 2012 
Election Coordinating Committee Meeting – January 25, 2013 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bittner, Dewan 
No:  None 
 

MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of Precincts 

 
Resolution # EC-2013-02-003 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 

RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 

applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED 
for the May 7, 2013 Special Election in accordance with MCL 168.659. 
 
Yes:   Bittner, Dewan, Anderson 
No:  None 
  
 

MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:04 AM. 
 
 

 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 

stewartc
Text Box
O-01i



 

 

1 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 

 
Date:  February 25, 2013 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From:  Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police    
    
Subject: 2012 Towing Contract Report – A & M Towing (Introduced by: Keith A. Frye, Captain – 

Investigative / Administrative Services Division) 
 
 
History 
 
On September 14, 2009, A&M Service Center, Inc. of Troy was awarded a 3 year contract to tow 
vehicles for the Troy Police Department and the City of Troy Department of Public Works. City 
Council requested a review of A&M’s performance and compliance at the end of every year.   
 
Report 
 
Over the 2012 calendar year, A&M Service Center, Inc. dealt with over 2,000 impounded / 
abandoned vehicles, this number does not include the assistance received from them on Police 
Department vehicles or for other City department vehicles.   
 
In every instance, the staff of A&M Service Center, Inc. displayed an eagerness to cooperate and 
work with the Police Department. There were very few complaints from officers regarding the service 
provided by A&M Service Center, Inc.  Any minor concerns raised by officers were amicably resolved 
between the Police Department and A&M Service Center, Inc. staff. 
 
The Police Department received one complaint from a vehicle owner regarding damage alleged to 
have occurred during an impound that was associated with an arrest.  After a thorough investigation, 
it was determined that the damage was not caused by the towing and most likely happened after the 
vehicle had been released to the owner.   
 
There have been no complaints or evidence of non-compliance with contract prices/fees, and A&M 
Service Center, Inc. owners agreed to conduct the police and private party auctions for the City under 
the administrative oversight of Police Department personnel. 
 
As a result of the exemplary performance of A&M Service Center, Inc. staff, on September 06, 2012, 
City management recommended City Council exercise the option to renew towing and storage 
services with A & M Service Center, Inc. of Troy, for an additional three years under the same 
contract prices, terms, and conditions as stipulated in the original contract.  On September 10, 2012, 
Troy City Council passed a resolution renewing the contract with A&M Service Center, Inc expiring 
September 30, 2015.   
 
KAF/kaf\Agenda Items\03.04.13 – 2012 Towing Contract Review 

stewartc
Text Box
O-02a



stewartc
Text Box

stewartc
Text Box
O-03a



stewartc
Text Box
O-03b



stewartc
Text Box
O-03c



stewartc
Text Box
O-03d



stewartc
Text Box
O-03e



stewartc
Text Box
O-03f



stewartc
Text Box
O-05



























































stewartc
Text Box
O-06




	March 4, 2013 City Council Agenda 
	Cover Memo
	Vision Statement & Goals
	Agenda: Return to 1st Page
	Explanation Booklet: Return to 1st Page
	Attachments.pdf
	20130304 Agenda - C-02 Troy Historical Village - A City of Troy - Troy Historical Society Partnership.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8

	20130304 Agenda - H-01 ZOTA 244 Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance Revisions
	ADP114.tmp
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND

	ADP123.tmp
	PUBLIC HEARING OPENED

	2013 01 08 PC Minutes Excerpt.pdf
	PUBLIC HEARING OPENED

	Troy Zoning Ordinance Amendments February 18, 2013.pdf
	Troy Zoning Ordinance Amendments
	Background
	1. Parking in Front of Building 
	1. Parking in Front Yard
	2. Automotive and transportation uses in IB
	2. Automotive and Transportation Uses in IB
	3.  Extended Stay Facilities
	3. Extended Stay Facilities 
	4. Oil Change Facility
	4. Oil Change Facility
	5. Wireless Communication Facility 
	5. Wireless Communication Facility
	6. Lodging
	6. Lodging
	7. Landscaping in Form-Based Districts
	7. Landscaping in Form-Based Districts
	7. Landscaping in Form-Based Districts
	8. Reduce Drive-through Width 
	8. Reduce Drive-through Width 
	9. 1-story MF in IB Districts
	9. 1-story MF in IB Districts 
	10.  Outdoor Special Events
	10. Outdoor Special Events
	11.  Rezoning Standards
	11. Rezoning Standards
	12.  Frontage Requirements
	Slide Number 27
	12. Frontage Requirements
	12. Frontage Requirements
	12. Frontage Requirements
	Minor Amendments
	Minor Amendments
	Minor Amendments
	Troy Zoning Ordinance Amendments


	20130304 Agenda - I-04  DTE Energy Solar Currents Proposal
	20130304 Agenda - I-05 2013 Tri-Party Program - Concrete Slab Replacements on County Roads
	20130304 Agenda - I-06 2nd Amendment MDOT Capital Contract for Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility
	20130304 Agenda - I-07 2nd Amendment to Architectural-Engineering Services Contract for Design of Safety Crash Wall
	20130304 Agenda - I-08 Contract Amendment No 2 for Construction of Safety Crash Wall at Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility
	ADP267.tmp
	SECOND AMENDMENT to RAIL PASSENGER STATION CAPITAL CONTRACT
	2011-0231/S2/SA2
	TROY MULTI-MODAL TRANSIT FACILITY
	CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK
	City of Troy – Tooles Contracting Group LLC/Clark Construction Co.
	MDOT Project No. 113143
	By
	Its  Mayor
	By
	Its  City Clerk


	20130304 Agenda - J-02a City Council Minutes-Draft-February 18, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - J-02b City Council Minutes (Liquor Violation Hearings)-Draft-February 20, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - J-04a  SPR3 Exercise Renewal Option - Mowing and Landscape Services
	Agenda 03.04.13 - SR3 MowingServicesMemoITB-COT10-04
	Agenda 03.04.13 - SR3 MowingServicesITB-COT10-04

	20130304 Agenda - J-04b  SPR3 Exercise Renewal Option - Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris
	Agenda 03.04.13 - SR3 Hauling&DisposalMemoITB-COT12-01
	Agenda 03.04.13 - SR3 Hauling&DisposalITB-COT12-01

	20130304 Agenda - J-04c  SPR4 Cooperative Contracts - Upgrade & Expansion of Exchange Email System
	20130304 Agenda - J-05 Addendum #1 Charnwood Hills Phase I Contract 12-05 Chip Seal Treatment
	20130304 Agenda - J-06 Request for Special Budget Study Meeting Date Change
	20130304 Agenda - J-07  Gennari v City of Troy Lawsuit
	20130304 Agenda - J-08 Paint Creek 3rd Annual Regional Arts & Culture Award Nomination
	20130304 Agenda - K-01a Announcement of Public Hearing - March 18, 2013 - Rezoning Application (Z 742) - Proposed 1071 Villa Park
	ADP111.tmp
	PUBLIC HEARING
	The subject property is located on the east side of Rochester Road, south of South Boulevard, commonly known as Rochester Villas.
	The subject property address is 1071 Villa Park, part of Parcel ID # 88-20-02-301-010.


	20130304 Agenda - K-02a  Proposal to Amend Chapter 69 - Precious Metal, Gems and Items
	20130304 Agenda - O-01a  Election Commission-Final-September 27, 2012
	20130304 Agenda - O-01b  Parks & Recreation Advisory Board-Final-September 27, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - O-01c  Parks & Recreation Advisory Board-Final-October 25, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - O-01d  Building Code Board of Appeals-Final-January 2, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - O-01e  Planning Commission Special-Study-Draft-January 22, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - O-01f  Planning Commission Special-Study-Final-January 22, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - O-01g  Election Coordinating Committee-Final-January 25, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - O-01h  Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft-February 6, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - O-01i  Election Commission-Draft-February 25, 2013
	20130304 Agenda - O-02a  2012 Towing Contract Report – A & M Towing
	20130304 Agenda - O-03a LoA to Chief Mayer from David McCain, US Dept. of Justice
	20130304 Agenda - O-03b LoA to Chief Mayer from Asteria Diana re Officer Scott Allan
	20130304 Agenda - O-03c LoA to Chief Mayer from Stephanie Bergeron, Walsh College re Traffic Assistance
	20130304 Agenda - O-03d LoA to Troy PD from Bethany Mosshart re Police Services
	20130304 Agenda - O-03e LoA to Officer Bednard from Shelley and Henry Rosenfield re Police Services
	20130304 Agenda - O-03f LoA to Chief Mayer from Jeffrey Kreibich re Armed Robbery Incident
	20130304 Agenda - O-05 Troy Historical Society Annual Report
	20130304 Agenda - O-06  Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs Notice of Public Hearing




